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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011

or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 001-34774
CBOE HOLDINGS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 20-5446972
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
400 South LaSalle Street
Chicago, lllinois 60605
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code
(312) 786-5600

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(IhefAct:

Title of Each Class Name of Exchange on Which Registered
Unrestricted Common Stock, NASDAQ Global Select Market
par value $0.01 per share
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a vikelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40%edBéturities Act. Ye€d No X
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ortfeecl5(d) of the Act. Yedd No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b filed all reports required to be filed by Secti or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l
during the preceding 12 months and (2) has begedutb such filing requirements for the past 99d&’es Xl No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ibsritted electronically and posted on its corpovegbsite, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te R of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of this chapderjng the preceding 12 months (of for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to submitost such files). Yefl No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiélers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i$ contained herein, and will not be contained, to
the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitivexy or information statements incorporated by nefiee in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendirten
this Form 10-K. Xl

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantle&rge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company
See the definitions of "large accelerated fileatcelerated filer" and "smaller reporting compaimyRule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check One):

Large accelerated filekl Accelerated filerO Non-accelerated filef] Smaller reporting compani
(Do not check if a
smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the A¢gs O No

As of June 30, 2011, the aggregate market valtieeoRegistrant's outstanding voting common equetd by non-affiliates was approximatel y $2.2
billion based on the closing price of $24.60 pearsiof unrestricted common stock.

The number of outstanding shares of the registranthmon stock as of December 31, 2011 was 88,868/8ares of unrestricted common stock.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Documents Form 10-K Reference

Portions of the Company's Proxy Statement for hel2Annual Meeting of Part Il
Stockholders
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CERTAIN DEFINED TERMS

Throughout this document, unless otherwise spekcdiethe context so requires:

"CBOE Holdings" refers to CBOE Holdings, Incdaits subsidiaries after the completion of thertegtiring transaction which
occurred on June 18, 2010.

"CBOE" or the "Exchange" refers to (1) priorth@ completion of the restructuring transactionic@jo Board Options
Exchange, Incorporated, a Delaware non-stock catjmor, and (2) after the completion of the resttiog transaction, the
Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated, aWiale stock corporation. CBOE became a wholly-owswdasidiary of
CBOE Holdings, Inc. on June 18, 2010.

"C2" refers to C2 Options Exchange, Incorporatellich became a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOHdiws, Inc. on
June 18, 2010.

"CFE" refers to CBOE Futures Exchange, LLC, vaHiecame a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdjrigs. on June 18,
2010.

"CFTC" refers to the U.S. Commodity Futures Tradl@mmissior

"Delaware Action” refers to the lawsuit, whiclasventitled CME Group Inc. et al. v. Chicago Bo@mtions Exchange,
Incorporated et al. (Civil Action No. 2369-VCN) afikd in the Delaware Court on August 23, 2006wimch the CBOE and its
directors were sued in the Delaware Court by ther8of Trade of the City of Chicago, Inc. ("CBOTQBOT Holdings, Inc.
and two members of the CBOT who purported to reprethe Exercise Member Claimants.

"Delaware Court" refers to the Court of ChancerthefState of Delawai

"Exercise Member Claimants" refers to a purpbriass of individuals who claimed in the DelawArion that they were, or
had the right to become, members of the CBOE.

"Member" or "Members" refers to, prior to themgletion of the restructuring transaction, any persr organization (or any
designee of any organization) that held a membgiistithe CBOE.

"Our exchanges" refers to CBOE, C2 and (

The "restructuring transaction” refers to trangaction on June 18, 2010 , in which CBOE congdrtan a Delaware non-stock
corporation owned by its Members to a Delawarekstmeporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBB&dings, a
Delaware stock corporation.

"SEC" refers to the U.S. Securities and Exchanger@iegion

"Settlement Agreement" means the StipulatioBettlement, as amended, approved by the Delawarg {bahe Delaware
Action.

"SPX" refers to our a.m. settled S&P 500 excharayett optior

"We," "us," "our" or "the Company" refers to (i)ior to the completion of the restructuring tractson, CBOE, and, as the
context may require, CBOE Holdings, and (2) after ¢completion of the restructuring transaction, ERabldings and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries.

"VIX" refers to the CBOE VIX methodolog

References to "options" or "options contracts'hia text of this document refer to exchange-trageshons and references to "futures”
refer to futures contracts or options on futures.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardlimg statements within the meaning of the Pri&geurities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995 that involve a number of risks and utaiaties. You can identify these statements bwéod-looking words such as "may,"
"might," "should,"” "expect," "plan," "anticipate’believe," "estimate," "predict," "potential” ordntinue," and the negative of these terms and
other comparable terminology. All statements tefiect our expectations, assumptions or projectabwut the future other than statement
historical fact are forwartboking statements, including statements in thesiBess" and "Management's Discussion and Analygtinancial
Condition and Results of Operations.” These foralaoking statements, which are subject to known amkchown risks, uncertainties and
assumptions about us, may include projections ofwure financial performance based on our grostthtegies and anticipated trends in our
business. These statements are only predictiorsllmasour current expectations and projections tfobure events. There are important
factors that could cause our actual results, lefattivity, performance or achievements to diffeaterially from that expressed or implied by
the forward-looking statements. In particular, whwuld consider the risks and uncertainties desgrilmder "Risk Factors" in this Annual
Report.

While we believe we have identified material ristkgse risks and uncertainties are not exhaudtleecover, we operate in a very
competitive and rapidly changing environment. N&skg and uncertainties emerge from time to time, iiis not possible to predict all risks
and uncertainties, nor can we assess the impatit faictors on our business or the extent to whic factor, or combination of factors, may
cause actual results to differ materially from #hasntained in any forward-looking statements.

Some factors that could cause actual results ferdifclude:

» the loss of our exclusive licenses to list certadex options
» decreases in the amount of trading volumes orfaistthe mix of products traded on our exchan
» legislative or regulatory changes affecting thdayg market:

» increasing competition by foreign and domestitities, including increased competition from newtrants into our markets and
consolidation of existing entities;

* increasing price competitic
e our ability to maintain access fee reven
e economic, political and market conditio

e our ability to operate our business without atolg the intellectual property rights of othersldine costs associated with
protecting our intellectual property rights;

e our ability to accommodate increases in tradiolgime and order transaction traffic without faflor degradation of
performance of our systems;

» our ability to protect our systems and communicatietworks from security risks, including cybemlaks
* our ability to attract and retain skilled managetrard other personn

* our ability to maintain our growth effective

» our dependence on third party service providerd

« the ability of our compliance and risk managemeeathuds to effectively monitor and manage our r

For a detailed discussion of these and other fa¢hat might affect our performance, see PareimliA. of this Report. We caution you
not to place undue reliance on the forward-loolstajements, which speak only as of the date ofittrig.
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PART |
Item 1. Business
Overview

CBOE Holdings, Inc. is the holding company for Gigjo Board Options Exchange, Incorporated, C2 Ogtixthange, Incorporated,
CBOE Futures Exchange, LLC and other subsidia@&OE Holdings builds on the legacy of CBOE, theatwe of listed options and the
largest U.S. options exchange.

The primary business of the Company is the oparatfanarkets for the trading of listed options cants on three broad product
categories: 1) the stocks of individual corporati¢aquity options), 2) various market indexes (indptions) and 3) other exchange-traded
products such as exchange-traded funds (ETF optiomtsexchange-traded notes (ETN options). WedaTeo futures and options on futures
products through a futures market. The Company amadsoperates three staalbne exchanges, but reports the results of itsatipes in oni
reporting segment. CBOE is our primary market difier® trading for listed options through a singystem that integrates electronic trading
and traditional open outcry trading on our tradiegr in Chicago. This integration of electroniading and traditional open outcry trading
into a single market is known as our Hybrid tradingdel. C2, launched in October 2010, is ouedktronic exchange that also offers trac
for listed options, but with a different market nebdnd fee schedule than CBOE. Finally, CFE, oelakttronic futures exchange, offers
futures and options on futures on the CBOE Votgtlldex (the VIX Index), as well as on other protiu All of our exchanges operate on
proprietary technology platform known as CB@iEect.

The market for listed options has increased draraliifisince their introduction by CBOE in 1973.1874, the first full year of trading,
CBOE traded over 5.6 million contracts. In 1988, years after its inception, CBOE traded over 8liani contracts. By 1993, CBOE volun
had grown to over 140 million contracts. In 200BAE traded over 284 million contracts. In 2011, st recent fiscal year, CBOE volui
had grown to 1.2 billion contracts. In additiong thumber of exchanges operating markets for thi#niyaof exchange-traded options has
expanded to nine options exchanges.

The following chart illustrates total options tragivolume across the different categories of pritsitraded at the Company for the
periods indicated:

Annual Options Contract Volume

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Equities 516,136,93 572,688,13 634,710,47 604,024,95 500,964,71
Indexes 320,389,99 269,989,51 222,787,51 259,499,72 230,527,97
Exchange-traded funds 368,364,05 276,362,70 277,266,21 329,830,38 212,979,24
Total 1,204,890,98 1,119,040,34 1,134,764,20 1,193,355,07 944,471,92

Futures contracts traded at CFE have increased ¥rmillion in 2007 to 12.0 million in 2011.

Our operating revenues are primarily driven by deation fee revenue with respect to the numbeowfracts traded on our exchanges.
In order to increase the volume of contracts tramledur exchanges, we strive to develop and proemtéacts designed to satisfy the
trading, hedging and risk-management needs of aukeh participants. We also derive revenue frons famlected for access to our
exchanges and from the sale of market data infoomat

Our principal executive offices are located at &aith LaSalle Street, Chicago lllinois 60605, andtelephone number is (312) 786-
5600.

Our web site isvww.choe.comInformation contained on or linked through ourvggte is not incorporated by reference into this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

History

CBOE was founded in 1973 as a r&toek corporation owned by its Members. CBOE wasfitist organized marketplace for the trac
of standardized, listed options on equity secugitie 2004, CBOE began to operate a futures exehaige. CBOE Holdings was
incorporated in the State of Delaware on AugusDB6. In June 2010, CBOE demutualized (see "Rasitiing Transaction") and CBOE, !
and CFE became wholly-owned subsidiaries of CBOHKlidgs. CBOE Holdings completed its initial pubtiffering of its unrestricted
common stock in June 2010. On October 29, 2010th@2Company's all-electronic exchange, initiatpdrations.
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Restructuring Transaction

On June 18, 2010, CBOE converted from a non-stogiaration owned by its Members into a stock caaion that is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CBOE Holdings. In the restructuringnisaction, each CBOE regular membership (an "Exgh&eat") owned by a CBOE
Member on June 18, 2010 converted into 80,000 shidr€lass A common stock of CBOE Holdings. Seatens received a total of
74,400,000 shares of Class A common stock of CBOHIHgs in the restructuring transaction. In aduditicertain persons who satisfied the
qualification requirements set forth in the SetéatinAgreement in the Delaware Action received altot 16,333,380 shares of Class B
common stock of CBOE Holdings on June 18, 2010strant to the Settlement Agreement, qualifying membéthe plaintiff class received
a cash payment of $300.0 million.

Immediately following the issuance of the Classml £lass B common stock, the board of directoilSBOE Holdings declared and
paid a special dividend of $1.25 per outstandirayesiof Class A and Class B common stock, or $1d8libn in the aggregate.

The initial public offering of 13,455,000 sharesusifrestricted common stock, including 2,085,774 ehaf unrestricted common stock
sold by selling stockholders, for a price of $290@0 share, was completed on June 18, 2010. Neépds to the Company after deducting
underwriter's fees and commissions and other etktpenses were $301.2 million. Costs directly eiased with the Company's initial public
offering were recorded as a reduction of the gpweseeds received in arriving at the amount reabmdedditional paid-in capital.

Upon consummation of the initial public offeringetshares of Class A and Class B common stockamected into unrestricted
common stock and sold in the initial public offeriautomatically converted into 44,323,803 sharesSlags A-1 common stock and
44,323,803 shares of Class A-2 common stock.

The restructuring transaction, completed on Jun€@80, converted CBOE from a non-stock compani Wiembers into a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdings, a corporatiothvgtockholders. Members that owned an Exchangetf@eame stockholders of CBOE
Holdings. Following the restructuring transactiancess to CBOE was made available through tradinmips rather than through the
ownership of memberships (see "Market Model-Tradtegmit Holders").

Tender Offers

On November 24, 2010, the Company completed twewwent tender offers for 5,983,713 shares of (dadscommon stock and
5,983,713 shares of Class A-2 common stock at ehpse price of $25.00 per share. The purpose détiter offers was to allow Class A-1
and Class A-2 stockholders to obtain liquidity éocertain portion of their shares. Subsequentdalhsing of the tender offers and automatic
conversion of Class A-1 common stock, an additi®1ar23 shares of unrestricted common stock ant4&8hares of Class A-2 common
stock were purchased by the Company due to a alexijustment. The net proceeds received fromratiali public offering were used to
purchase the shares of Class A-1 and Class A-2 ammstock in the tender offers.

Conversion of Class A-1 and Class A-2 Common Stock

On December 15, 2010 and June 13, 2011, respagtaeth share of Class A-1 and Class A-2 commarksssued and outstanding,
totaling 38,340,090 and 38,297,994, respectivaipyerted into one share of unrestricted commorkstotaling 76,638,084 shares. As a
result, as of December 31, 2011, no shares of @lassr Class A-2 common stock were outstanding.

Industry

Our primary business of offering exchange-tradetibap and futures is part of the large and grovglupal derivatives industry.
Derivatives are financial contracts whose valugeisved from some other underlying asset or ref@resalue. These underlying assets and
reference values include individual stocks, stoxlekes, debt instruments, interest rates, currenceemmodities and various benchmarks
related to trading and investment strategies. demeyears, derivatives have also been developed@momic indicators and "artificial" assets
such as pollution rights. The global derivativedustry includes both exchanges and a large ovecdhater market. The most common types
of derivatives are options, futures and swap cotgrd hese products allow for various types of tiske isolated and transferred.

Exchange-Traded Options and Futures

Options represent a contract giving the buyer itytet rbut not the obligation, to buy or sell a sfied quantity of an underlying security
or index at a specific price for a specific peraddime. Options provide investors a means for lregigspeculation and income generation,
while at the same time providing leverage with eztio the underlying asset. Options on U.S. seesrare traded privately between two
parties (known as "over-the-counter” or "OTC" ops} as well as traded on U.S. securities exchafgsvast majority of derivatives traded



on U.S. securities exchanges are options on inaivid
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equities, market indexes and ETFs. Over-the-cowpgons that are traded also include options dividual equities, ETFs and indexes,
including options on the S&P 500 Index.

Futures represent a contract in which the buyersafidr agree on a price today for a product tdédevered and paid for in the future.
Each contract specifies the quantity of the iterh @@ time of delivery or payment. An option oruéufes contract is a right, but not an
obligation, to buy or sell a futures contract apacified price on or before a certain expiratiated

Trading

In the listed options market, there are currenfiiians contracts covering approximately 3,300 ulyiteg stocks, ETFs and indexes. ~
presence of dedicated liquidity providers, inclgdboth specialists and market-makers, is a keyfeatf the options markets. Specialists and
market-makers provide continuous bids and offersfibstantially all listed option series. In retfonthese commitments, specialists and
market-makers receive margin exemptions as weltleer incentives such as participation rights a®ificentives.

Until 2000, trading in options products on U.S.iops exchanges traditionally occurred primarilyphysical trading floors in areas
called "pits" through an auction process knownagseh outcry," which refers to face-to-face tradi@ger the past decade, electronic access
has allowed exchange participants, including traigeBOE, to provide electronic bids and offers withbeing physically present on the
trading floor. Now, all of the U.S. options exchasgeither exclusively or in combination with opericry trading, provide electronic trading
platforms that allow participants to submit bidfecs and orders directly into the exchange's tradiystem. As a result, many liquidity
providers now operate remotely, away from the ptaldrading floors, and the majority of optionsdirey volume is executed electronically.

Trends
Consolidation

Perceived economies of scale have driven a waeertfolidation among exchange holding companies tneelast several years. For
example, NYSE Euronext now owns both NYSE Arca WIY&6E Amex. Deutsche Borse has acquired the Intienmat Securities Exchange,
and NASDAQ OMX owns both the Philadelphia Stock amge ("PHLX") and NASDAQ Options Market ("NOM"). Mie some recent
transactions have failed to gain approval fromifpra@egulators, we believe competitive pressurebtha scalability of trading platforms
continue to provide a compelling rationale for gt consolidation.

Maker-Taker Pricing Structure

Several options exchanges, including C2 for muyltigted classes, utilize a different pricing mottedln CBOE, in which orders that
take liquidity from the marketplace are chargethagaction fee, and orders that provide liquidityhte marketplace may receive a rebate for
doing so, both dependent on origin type. This kihtee schedule, known as "maker-taker," is ativadb participants who regularly provide
liquidity but not necessarily to firms representmgstomer orders, as those orders are generablystak liquidity.

High Frequency Trading

High frequency trading refers to the practice aeeng buy and sell orders in rapid successiorroéts many as thousands of orders per
second. The strategies pursued by high frequeadgits depend on sophisticated algorithms to spotisrbefore others can react to them and
to exploit minor fluctuations in securities pric#ts. practitioners are professional traders whacity use high-speed computers co-located at
exchanges with direct connections to exchange galging systems to reduce latency. High frequdraging has driven up trading volume
on equity exchanges and is estimated to accourfitdor 50% to 70% of stock trading. It currently ydaa small but growing role in options
markets and has led many exchanges to create aategory of market participant known as profesdionatomer, which enables those
exchanges to charge different fees than on ottetomer orders.

Competitive Strengths

We have established ourselves as a global leadenaanvator in the options industry. We believeave well positioned to further
enhance our leadership position through severatkeypetitive strengths:

* Leading Brand, Reputation and Market Positio As the world's first options exchange, CBOE'sl&xahip role in options
trading is recognized worldwide. We are one oflérgest options exchanges in the world and theskirgptions exchange in the
U.S., based on both contract volume and notionalev®ur opinions and positions on industry issaressought by regulators,
elected officials, industry and finance leaders polity
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experts worldwide.

* Innovation and Product Developmer In addition to being the original marketplace $tandardized, exchange-traded options,
we created the world's first index options and Haeen the source of many other innovations witpeesto products, systems
and market structure in the options industry.

* Innovatior— We work closely and collaboratively with market igpants to introduce new products and servicesdet
the evolving needs of the derivatives industry. Ndee introduced innovative products such as ingons, options and
futures on the VIX Index and other volatility index Long-Term Equity Anticipation Securities ("LESH and FLEX
options. Our option strategy benchmark indexed) siscthe CBOE S&P 500 BuyWrite Index, the CBOE S0P PutWrite
Index, and the CBOE S&P 500 Implied Correlationdrdhave received industry awards for innovation.

e Exclusive Product—We have the exclusive right to list securities opsi based on the S&P 500, the S&P 100 and the
indexes and have created our own proprietary irglare index methodologies, including the VIX Ind8ame of our
exclusive products are among the most activelyetlgotoducts on CBOE and in the industry. Our pedgry indexes and
index methodologies provide benchmarks for optigsers and investment product issuers, serve dm#ig for our
exclusive products and provide us with licensingraie.

» Hybrid Trading Model. Our Hybrid trading model on CBOE integrates opatcry and electronic trading into a single market.
We believe that this innovative approach offersusars more choices, a diverse pool of liquiditgl tre ability to execute
complex strategies that may not be available oelpwcreen-based trading systems.

» Leading Proprietary Technology Platforn We own, operate and maintain our core tradingiaftdmation technology and
systems, and we continue to commit substantialress towards ongoing development and implememtatithese capabilitie
Market participants rely on our technology andasfructure, which provides a high level of avaiigpand reliability. We
believe the CBOHlirecttrading platform is among the most advanced traglatforms in the world. It can simultaneously
support both screen and floor-based trading fotiplaltrading models, products and matching alpani. The technology
underlying CBOHlirectis designed for extremely high performance, capablendling over a million transactions a second
with micro-second response time. It is built onrogtandards providing platform independence anigssgned to be scalable for
both capacity and throughput.

» Liquidity. We support the options trading activities of TngdPermit Holders, i.e. individuals or firms thadld trading permits
(TPH organizations). We believe that this diverselpf liquidity providers, in combination with obroad range of products,
Hybrid trading model and the CBQtrecttrading platform, offers our users the liquid maskiley require to effectively
execute their trading strategies.

» Experienced Management Tear Our management team has extensive experienbe ioptions industry. William J. Brodsky,
our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, has @&ears of experience with exchange managemerdenitive products.
The remaining seven members of the senior managdassn have an average of over 25 years of experignthe options
industry. Our management team has demonstrateliléy 8o grow our business through continued pratdand technological
innovations and to respond to changing industryadyics through ongoing adaptation of our market rhode

Growth Strategy

Trading in derivative products has expanded apaleace over the past several years as a resalbhofmber of factors including
technological advances that have increased invastass, declining costs to users, globalizati@hgaeater understanding of the products by
increasingly sophisticated market participants. Toenpany is well positioned to leverage its contpetistrengths to take advantage of these
trends.

We intend to further expand our business and iserear revenues and profitability by pursuing teofving growth strategies:

e Continue to Enhance Our Market Model and Trading &form. We recognize that the opportunity to particigatthe growth
of the derivative markets will be driven in greartiby the trading functionality and systems calitas that an exchange offers
to market participants. We believe our Hybrid tredmodel offers flexibility to market participantghile the CBOHlirect
trading platform offers state-of-the-art functiahglspeed, performance, capacity and reliabilit4e intend to use our strong in-
house development capabilities and continued invest to further augment the functionality and cétyaaf our trading
systems. We launched C2, a second, all-electrgatiorts market that currently trades substantidllpfahe industry's leading
multiply-listed
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Products

products. C2, which also uses the CB@#ect trading platform, operates under a separate exehiéanse with its own board
directors, rules, connectivity, systems architextamd access structure.

Develop Innovative Product: We intend to continue to build on our reputatisnan industry innovator through the
development of new and innovative products. Wenidti® use licensed products and proprietary il property to create
exclusive products that meet the needs of the afévias industry and enhance our brand. We anteeitiett our new and
innovative products will help drive trading volumi@g attracting new customers to our exchanges apdneling the array of
products available to existing customers. In additive believe our continuing product innovationk generate increased use
our other products, in the same way that VIX prasand the CBOE S&P 500 BuyWrite Index have geredratditional tradin
activity in SPX.

Offer Compelling Economic ModelOur fee schedule provides benefits to market ppaits who concentrate their overall
trading activity, whether market-maker, agencyin foroprietary, on CBOE. We believe that our feecture encourages
market participants to increase their businessB8E by reducing the per contract fee or increapigcontract incentives bas
on the attainment of certain monthly volume thrédsioWe regularly review and update our fee screettuprovide an industry-
leading economic offering.

Over-the-Counter Market Participants.We seek to attract participants from the overdgbenter market, who have been under
pressure to move trading to a centrally clearedcamdrally traded environment. CFLEX, our electoosystem for trading FLE.
options, allows participants to customize key cacitterms including strike price, exercise styld arpiration dates of up to
fifteen years with the administrative ease andralgaguarantees of standardized listed options eéWpect to launch a new
version of CFLEX in 2012 that will enable userstmveniently access FLEX options, which is of matr appeal to dealers
who are active in OTC equity options.

Expand Service Offerings We believe there are significant opportunitieséoive revenue from new and expanded service
offerings. For example, our subsidiary, Market Dxaress, LLC ("MDX") sells historical options datalue-added proprietary
information and a real-time data-feed of certainPS&d CBOE index values to market data users.14,20DX increased its
service offerings with CBOE Streaming Markets("CSMCSM is a high-availability, low latency streamidata feed, with data
similar to market data from the Options Price RépgrAuthority ("OPRA") but also includes complexajes and trades,
breakdown of customer versus non-customer conteddtee best displayed bids and offers ("BBOs") emtingent order
information. In addition, through a set of arrangens with S&P, we permit S&P to license the Compapyoprietary indexes
and index methodologies for certain purposes targézs firms and other exchanges. The CompanyS#id have agreed that
S&P may license one or more clearing agenciesear @@ TC options based on the S&P 500 index that oeg&ain criteria, and
that S&P will compensate us for any transactioargd under such a license based on the notionad wdlthe transaction.

Pursue Select Strategic Opportunitie We evaluate strategic opportunities that we beligill enhance stockholder value. We
specifically look for strategic opportunities begoour current businesses that will capitalize onamre competencies and
diversify our sources of revenue.

Our options exchanges provide a marketplace fotrétting of options contracts that meet criteri@lelsshed in rules of the respective
exchange. The options contracts listed for tradiefude options on individual equities, optionsvamious market indexes as well as options
on ETFs and ETNs. In addition, we provide markegpsafor trading futures contracts and cash equhiesigh CFE and CBOE Stock
Exchange, LLC ("CBSX"), respectively. CBSX is nat@nsolidated subsidiary of the Company.

Equity Options. We offer trading in options with terms of up @@ months on the stocks of over 2,600 corporatidhe stocks
underlying our individual equity options are listed equity exchanges. In addition, we also offaditng in LEAPS on
approximately 800 stocks with terms of up to thintge months.

Index Options. We offer trading in options on six different basbased market indexes, including the VIX Indegraprietary
index that we have developed, which has becomealalyiecognized measure of equity market volatilltge index options we
list include some of the most widely recognized sueas of the U.S. equity markets, such as the SERthe DJIA, the
NASDAQ 100 and the Russell 2000. Options baseddexes are among our most actively traded prodwitts several option
listed exclusively with us (for example, optionstae S&P 500, S&P 100, DJIA and the VIX Index). Also trade LEAPS on
several of our index products.

Options on ETFs and ETNs. We offer trading in options on over 260 ETFs &TdNs based on various domestic and foreign
market indexes, as well as on commodities, curesnand fixed income instruments. We also offer

7




Table of Contents

trading in LEAPS on 84 ETFs and ETNSs.

« Futures. We provide a marketplace for trading futures tigto our wholly-owned subsidiary, CFE. To date, @R focused on
the trading of futures and options on futures eglab CBOE-created volatility indexes.

« Equities. In early 2007, the Company invested, along witbesal broker dealers, in a new exchange that gesva marketplace
for individual equity securities. This trading féigi, known as CBSX, provides a marketplace foding stocks listed on equity
exchanges. As stated above, CBSX is not a consetidaubsidiary of the Company.

Proprietary Products

The Company has developed several of its own petapsi indexes and index methodologies. These irchathtility based on various
broad-based market indexes (such as the S&P 50MitA, the NASDAQ 100 and the Russell 2000), \litaindexes based on ETFs and
individual stocks, the CBOE S&P 500 Implied Cortigla Index and a series of option strategy bencksancluding BuyWrite, PutWrite
and Collar indexes based on the S&P 500 and BugWhitexes based on other broad-based market indéealso have licensed others to
use some of these indexes to create products arddméered into agreements whereby we have grémigthers the rights to sub-license
some of these indexes. The Company generates eWermm the calculation and dissemination of ovétytreal-time index values for third
party licensors and from the licensing of our pretary indexes.

Strategic Relationships

The Company also has long-term business relatipashith several providers of market indexes. Wenge their indexes as the basis
for index options. In some instances, these licepsevide us with the exclusive right to list opisocontracts based on these indexes. Of
particular note are the following:

e S&P 500 and S&P 100 Indexe We are able to offer options contracts on the S&@ Index and the S&P 100 Index as a result
of a licensing arrangement with Standard & Poariacial Services LLC. Under our license with Stamk& Poor's, CBOE ar
C2 have the exclusive right to list options on themlexes until 2018 and the right to use thesesamdral other indexes
published by Standard & Poor's as the basis fodstalized, exchange-traded options contracts 202P.

« DJIA. We are able to offer contracts on the Dow Jondasdtrial Average (DJIA) as a result of a licensamgangement with
CME Group Index Services LLC ("Index Services")idTlicense provides us the right to use the DJIA several other indexes
published by Index Services as the basis for staiimtal, exchange-traded options contracts. Undgeli¢dbnse, the Company has
the exclusive right to list securities options ba DJIA during standard U.S. trading hours untic€aber 31, 2012. Each party
has the right to extend the exclusive license erBlA until 2017 and the Company expects the ageedt to be extended.

«  NASDAQ 100. We are able to offer contracts on the NASDAQ [rifex as a result of a licensing arrangement wASNAQ.
This license provides CBOE the right to use the BA® 100 as the basis for standardized, exchangedraptions contracts.
The license with NASDAQ is non-exclusive and iseffve until the end of 2015.

* Russell Indexes We are able to offer contracts on the RusselD20® other indexes in the Russell index familg assult of a
licensing arrangement with Frank Russell Co. Tieisnse provides CBOE the right to use the Russééhxes as the basis for
standardized, exchange-traded options contracts.lifense is non-exclusive and is effective thitotiie end of 2012.

Market Model

CBOE and C2 provide a reliable, orderly, liquid afficient marketplace for the trading of optio@BOE operates a quote-driven
auction market that employs a combination of spistsa market-makers, floor brokers and electra@ucess permit firms (order flow
providers), while C2 employs market-makers andtedeic access permit firms (order flow providersjyo At CBOE, DPMs (see definition
below) are specialists that are charged with maiimtg fair, orderly and continuous markets in sfie@ption classes, either from the trading
floor or remotely. In certain heavily traded clagSEBOE assigns multiple remote-only specialisBRgs) to enhance CBOE's competitive
position in that product. Both DPMs and eDPMs tramdheir own accounts and are not permitted taaaagent on behalf of customers,
although they may be affiliated with large finai@ampanies that also operate agency businessekeiMaakers, operating from remote
locations or in-person on the trading floor, supmeat the liquidity provided by the specialists moting both bids and offers for their own
accounts in their assigned classes. Floor brolarasaagents on the trading floor to facilitatenaily large or complicated orders that
customers choose not to direct to the electrorstesy.

CBOE and C2 offer different but complementary markedels, offering customers and participants athmange of
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choices.

CBOE operates a Hybrid trading platform that bomas an electronic trading system, supported b@EBirect, together with .
traditional open-outcry trading floor. The matchagorithm is modified pro-rata, with customer pitip. CBOE's modified pro-
rata algorithms grant liquidity providers, who meettain criteria, additional participation rightgsed on a variety of factors.
CBOE utilizes a pricing model in which transactfers are charged to most professionals, includiacket-makers, but are not
charged for most retail customer orders.

C2 operates on CBCOdirect, a fully electronic platform. The matching algbrit from inception until November 2011 was a
modified price-time algorithm for multiply-listedptions classes. The matching algorithm was chaigBidvember 2011 to pro-
rata for multiply-listed options classes. C2 usesaker-taker pricing model for multiply-listed omtis products in which orders
that take liquidity from the marketplace are chdrgedransaction fee and orders that provide lidyigi the marketplace receiv:
rebate.

Market Participants

Direct access to the CBOE marketplace is grantéadigiduals and firms through trading permits.rAding permit entitles the holder
conduct business on the exchange in one of thizipant roles described below. On C2, only firma oétain trading permits.

Market-Maker. A marketmaker is an individual or firm that engages in imgdour products either for its own account ortfre
account of its firm. A market-maker may operatdtmntrading floor or remotely. Market-makers do act as an agent
representing customer orders. Market-makers hataiceuoting obligations in their appointed prodolasses. Like stock
specialists, they are granted margin relief to emluey can conduct business without requiring siwe amounts of capital.
Market-makers must have a relationship with a ahgglirm that will hold and guarantee their positso When a person is
referred to as a "trader," it typically implies tllae individual acts as a market-maker. The migjaf trading permits in use on
CBOE are used for market making.

Lead Marke-Maker, or LMM. An LMM is a market-maker that assumes specidabakibns with respect to providing
electronic and/or open outcry quotes for specifitamns classes at CBOE. Currently, LMMs are utdize three roles: a) as
electronic and open outcry quote providers in S&P Bdex ("SPX") options, b) as electronic and opettry quote providers
S&P 100 Index ("OEX" and "XEQO") options, and c)dertain classes where an off-floor DPM is in ogeraand providing
electronic markets only, to ensure that tradingrflgersonnel can always obtain verbal marketshéndtter two, the LMMs
receive participation rights, both electronic aneépen outcry for (b) and in open outcry only foy. (n SPX, LMMs do not
receive participation rights, and multiple LMMs agpointed who rotate each expiration cycle, witleast two quoting at any
given time. All LMMs are required to maintain a gigal presence in the trading crowd of their apfgalrclasses.

Floor Broker. An individual who represents orders on the CB@idihg floor as an agent is known as a floor brokéyor
brokers generally do not trade for their own ac¢@und do not receive any margin benefit. They gaearevenue by charging
commissions to their customers for their serviéeBoor broker may represent orders for his firpreprietary account provided
it is done in accordance with CBOE rules.

Designated Primary MarkeMaker, or DPM. A DPM is a market-maker firm that has been asgiggpecialist responsibilities
in certain options classes at CBOE. As such, thre t®PM" and "specialist" are used interchangeablhis document.
Although they may be affiliated with a firm thatrohucts an agency business, DPMs trade for theirasgount and are not
permitted to act as agent on behalf of customePdi®are obligated to provide continuous quotesdir tappointed classes but
at a higher standard than that of regular marketemsa DPMs are also expected to participate innassi development efforts to
attract business to CBOE for their appointed ckdsi&ke market-makers, they receive margin red#Ms also are granted
"participation rights" in their appointed classBarticipation rights guarantee DPMs a minimum sléeach trade for which
they are on the best market. As of December 311 2B&re were eight ofleor DPM firms covering approximately 1,602 clas
across eighteen different trading crowds and eiffatoor DPMs covering approximately 1,485 classesoss eight trading
posts.

Electronic Designated Primary Mark-Maker, or eDPM. An eDPM is a market-maker that has been assigpecialist
responsibilities similar to a DPM but only operatesiotely, not on the trading floor. They also gir@nted participation rights in
their appointed classes but at a lower level thahaf DPMs, reflecting their slightly lesser olaigpns. eDPMs serve to
supplement the role of the DPM and are also mad/&b engage in business development efforts indippointed classes. The
appointments and class allocations granted to DéMseDPMs are not permanent and may be revokezhesigned for cause.
As of December 31, 2011, there are
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five eDPM firms at CBOE, covering 469 classes.

* Member Firm. The term "member firm" is typically used to referthose firms that bring order flow to the exches and that
are Trading Permit Holders for the purpose of ekiagitheir customers' orders on the CBOE or C2 etpilace. These firms are
also referred to as "order flow providers." Theygmte revenue by charging commissions for theiiees to their customers
and in some cases through the receipt of paymetiéir order flow.

Several of the functions described above, nametyket-maker, DPM, eDPM and LMM, are often groupagether as "liquidity
providers." This name refers to the fact that thkbyprovide liquidity to the options market throutiteir various obligations to provide to the
marketplace two-sided quotes at which they aregatdid to trade. Any of these liquidity providersyn& designated as a preferred market-
maker by a member firm routing an order to CBOEe preferred market-maker is afforded a participatight on specific orders provided
that he or she meets certain other requirementsregipect to the relevant option class and quatiigations.

Trading Permit Holders

Purchasing a monthly Mark&laker Trading Permit (CBOE, C2), Electronic Accessmit (CBOE, C2) or Floor Broker Trading Per
(CBOE) for the respective exchange conveys "Traéiagnit Holder" status on the respective exchaagkee permit holder. For CBOE,
additional tier appointments are required to ac asarket-maker in SPX options or as a market-maké#oor broker in VIX options. For C2,
an additional tier appointment is required to acaanarket-maker in SPXpm, an electronic versioouwnfS&P 500 option product with p.m.
settlement.

Trading Permit Holders are broker-dealers and mealpde large banks, proprietary trading firms, lemalges and investment houses and
clearing firms. Trading on our open outcry tradftogr is conducted exclusively by Trading Permitléhers in Chicago. Trading Permit
Holders can execute trades for their own accotiotglearing firm accounts, for the accounts ofestpermit holders or for the accounts of
customers of clearing firms.

Trading Permit Holder status enables a market-mksubmit electronic quotes into the trading systen CBOE or C2 or make
markets in open outcry on CBOE. Trading Permit ldoktatus allows Floor Brokers on CBOE to condusitess on the Exchange Floor or
enter orders into the trading system. Trading Peruoider status for Electronic Access Permits afldie holder to enter electronic orders
into the trading system. A broker/dealer can ajighand hold a trading permit at CBOE, C2 or bottep@nding on the products intended to
be traded. Rights and privileges of trading permitsexchange-specific.

Trading Permits:

e Market-Maker Trading Permit Holders (CBOE, C2}The Market-Maker Trading Permit entitles the holtbeact as a market-
maker (including a market-maker trading remoteBM, eDPM or LMM on the respective exchange, iflaggble on such
exchange. This permit provides an appointment tédi.0 (which is a measure of how many classedtiading Permit Holder
can quote), a quoting and order entry bandwidthwalhce, up to three logins, trading floor access®nading Permit Holder
status. Trading all classes listed on CBOE requrgsnimum of thirty-three permits.

The quoting bandwidth allowance for a Market-MaKkeading Permit is equivalent to a maximum of 31iftiom quotes over the
course of a trading day. To the extent a marketanakable to submit electronic quotes in a HyBri@iclass (such as an LMM
that streams quotes in the class or a market-n@kaviM that streams quotes in a series of a HyBriilclass that trades on the
Hybrid Trading System), the market-maker receibhesdquoting bandwidth allowance to quote in, ang @ml that class.

»  Electronic Access Permit ("EAP") (CBOE, (—The EAP entitles the holder to electronic accegté¢ exchange. Holders must
be broker-dealers registered with the exchang@énas more of the following capacities: (a) Clegrirrading Permit Holder;
(b) Trading Permit Holder organization approvedrémsact business with the public; (c) Propriefenigding Permit Holder; and
(d) order service firm. The CBOE EAP permit doesprovide access to the trading floor. A Proprigfarading Permit Holder is
a Trading Permit Holder with electronic acceshméxchanges to submit proprietary orders thahatrenarket-maker orders (i.e.
that are not market-maker orders for the Propetaading Permit Holder's own account or an affdthmarket-maker account).
The EAP provides an order entry bandwidth allowangpeto three logins and Trading Permit Holder &at

* Floor Broker Trading Permit (CBOE—The Floor Broker Trading Permit entitles the holtteact as a Floor Broker. This permit
provides an order entry bandwidth allowance, uthtee logins, trading floor access and Trading Rddwmider Status. A "Floor
Broker" is a Trading Permit Holder who can act &saker for other Trading Permit Holders or registebroker-dealers as an
agent on the floor of the exchange.
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Tier Appointments

In order for a Market-Maker Trading Permit to bediso act as a market-maker in either SPX, VIXBKXBm, the Trading Permit
Holder must obtain a "Tier Appointment” for thepestive option class. Each Tier Appointment is slggecific. Tier Appointments are
exchange-specific.

Applicants for Trading Permit Holder Status

Applicants for Trading Permit Holder status mustéadequate financial resources and credit to asskienresponsibilities and
privileges of Trading Permit Holder status. All @inag Permit Holders must understand the rules agdlations of the applicable exchange
and agree to abide by them. Additionally, they nuashply with the provisions of the Exchange Act @mel rules and regulations issued by
the SEC.

Our Regulatory Services Division is the investigatarm of our exchanges with regard to exchangssrdirading Permit Holders who
are found to have violated a rule can be subjesatwtions such as fines, trading suspensions r&xjpolsion from the particular exchange.

CFE

Parties are required to have CFE Trading Privildgkler status in order to have trading privilegesGf-E. CFE has the flexibility to
establish different trade allocation methods irpitsducts. For example, the trade allocation metbho®IX futures is pricetime priority. CFE
also has the flexibility to appoint designated @ignmarket markers (DPMs) and to establish marketenprograms in its products. In light
of the level of liquidity in VIX futures, CFE nohger has a DPM in VIX futures and does not curyeimélve a market maker program in that
product.

Trading Privilege Holders are required to pay a thiyraccess fee in addition to transaction feedrorsactions on the exchange. CFE
Trading Privilege Holders who are also CBOE Traddggmit Holders are eligible for certain lower saation fees.

Hybrid Trading Model

Most options are traded on CBOE both electronicatigl in open outcry using its Hybrid trading mod®th C2 and CFE are all-
electronic exchanges.

We developed the first Hybrid trading model, in ethaspects of both open outcry and electronicricadie integrated to function as a
single market. This trading model is supportedtayesof-the-art technology, including the CB@iEecttrading platform. Since we began
operating our Hybrid trading model in 2003, a diigaint portion of the volume in our products hagrated to electronic execution.

The Hybrid trading model enables CBOE market-mat@employ their own, individual pricing models aadstream their own
individual quotes and orders into the CBOE tradingine. CBOE market-makers present on the tradiiog &re able to both stream their
guotes into CBOE's central trading engine and ttgigate in open outcry transactions effectedhigirttrading crowd. Our Hybrid trading
model allows CBOE to offer both electronic and opetcry trading models simultaneously without Sigirig the benefits each brings.

At the core of the Hybrid trading model are the chatg algorithms, which is the means by which teadee executed and allocated to
market participants. CBOE's technology and ruleside for a variety of different algorithms for nahing buyers and sellers. CBOE has the
ability to apply different matching algorithms tdfdrent products, and currently has two differalgorithms in operation for various
products. Each matching algorithm is designed tetrte needs of a particular market segment. Tti@g®f the matching algorithm affects
the share of each trade that a market particigggives and is central to the opportunity and ppafiential of market-makers and other
liquidity providers.

Our Hybrid trading system calculates the NationestBid and Offer ('"NBBO"), and orders are not exed at a price inferior to the
displayed NBBO except pursuant to limited excepiprovided in CBOE's rules. The system monitorsthlér option marketplaces, and it
has the capability to route orders to other matkegs for execution if a better price exists elsswhThis linkage model is based on the
Regulation NMS (National Market System) inter-mardkgkage structure that exists for U.S. equitydirg. The structure requires price
protection of the exchanges' BBO when they arbeatNBBO and utilizes Intermarket Sweep Orders (‘43@o trade multiple prices at
multiple exchanges nearly simultaneously. Undispthlpids and offers and bids and offers at pricasdte inferior to an exchange's BBO do
not receive protection under this plan.

The Hybrid trading system also supports off-floartipants, including remote market making, offet DPMs and eDPMs. Currently,



eDPMs make markets in approximately 450 classes.

Our market model continues to evolve and expangeamnovate and adapt to changes in the marketplzetails on our
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technological capabilities, as well as key systeffexings available to customers, are describéd@ @chnology.”
Competition

CBOE is the largest options exchange in the U.Setb@n both total contract volume and notional @a@lficontracts traded. The market
share for all options traded on U.S. exchanges theepast five years for CBOE and C2, combined raaged from 26.4%0 33.3% annually
For 2011, our market share was 26.4% .

The U.S. options industry is extremely competitidée compete with a number of registered nationalistes exchanges and may
compete with other exchanges or other trading v&nuthe future. The seven other U.S. options exgbs that are our primary direct
competitors are BATS Options, BOX, ISE, NYSE Arb&,SE Amex, NASDAQ OMX PHLX and NOM.

Competition among options exchanges has intenssfiiste CBOE was created in 1973, and we expectrénisl to continue. We
compete with a number of entities on several diffiefronts, including the cost, quality and spekdus trade execution, the functionality and
ease of use of our trading platform, the rangeunfpsoducts and services, our technological infowaand adaptation and our reputation. Our
principal competitors are the seven other U.S omgtiexchanges. We also compete against futuresiegeh trading similar products and
other financial institutions that write over-theucer derivatives. There are three futures exchatige offer competing products. The Dodd-
Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection(A2odd-Frank") legislation creates a categorynafrketplaces called a Swap
Execution Facility ("SEF"). SEFs will serve as arked places for the matching of swap transactigis.expect to compete against SEFs to
attract OTC patrticipants.

Most equity options and options on ETFs listed aded on CBOE and C2 are also listed and tradestter U.S. options exchanges.
Some order-providing firms on our exchanges hakertawnership positions in other options exchanigascompete with us, which may
give those firms an added incentive to direct ®derthe exchanges in which they have ownershipdtition, several options exchanges
utilize a pricing model in which orders that talgulidity from the marketplace are charged a tramsadee, and orders that provide liquidity
to the marketplace may receive a rebate for doindpsth dependent on origin type. This type ofdeleedule, known as "maker-taker," is
attractive to participants who regularly providgulidity but not necessarily to firms representingtomer orders, as those orders are
disproportionately takers of liquidity.

Our competitive challenge is to convince brokerlglesato route options orders to CBOE or C2 rathantto our competitors and to
convince liquidity providers to concentrate theanket making activity on our exchanges. This igipalarly true with respect to options on
individual equity securities and ETFs, which teadbé traded on multiple exchanges. We compete glhrawariety of methods, including:

- Offering market participants an efficient, traasent and liquid marketplace for trading optionthithrough traditional open
outcry methods and through our electronic platfc@BOEdirect;

* Providing advanced technology that offers brivattionality, significant bandwidth, fast executjeease of use, scalability,
reliability and security;

» Offering participants access to a broad array oflpcts and services, including proprietary prod

« Offering customers a deep, liquid market with tngdmechanisms to enable potential price improve)
e Offering liquidity providers and order flow providea compelling economic moc

« Facilitating payment for order flow through the adistration of marketing fee

«  Offering market participants potential partidipa rights for order flow that they direct or cau® be directed to our exchanges;
and

< Providing brokers and their customers with a cotepdeurce of information on options as well as esitee options educatic
Technology
Our technology supports trading on multiple exclen@BOE, C2, CFE, CBSX and OneChicago. Our systamsimultaneously
support multiple trading models and multiple matchalgorithms per exchange. For example, diffepeatiucts could trade simultaneously

using open outcry, screen based or a Hybrid madichin these trading models, different products bartraded using different matching
algorithms. CBOHlirectalso supports trading options on futures. We heemsed our platform for use by CBSX and OneChicago
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Trading Platform

CBOEdirect, the central platform for our Hybrid trading systemas launched in 2003. The CB@Eect platform integrates the CBOE
directtrading engine with the routing, display systemd laroker handling systems that support the traflowy. It provides features of
screen-based and floor-based trading in what wievels a "best of both worlds" market model.

CBOE uses a quote-driven market model where litpjatioviders have quoting obligations. The CB@itecttrade engine includes the
match engine, order book and quote processor. Cit@Et accepts orders on behalf of all market participant streaming quotes from
market-makers, DPMs, eDPMs and LMMs.

CBOEdirectfunctionality includes: multiple allocation algdrins, a complex order book, preferenced ordersrakaection
mechanisms, Quote Lock, Quote Risk Monitor and Wseut Monitor. The various allocation algorithme @onfigurable by product.

CBOEdirect'sunderlying technology is a Java application withirgrastructure designed for high performance andeisigned to be
scalable for capacity and throughput. CB@iectis capable of accommodating significantly more ttlenover 3,000 options classes and
over 300,000 options series currently trading omieddition to simple orders, our systems suppating spreads and other complex orders,
as well as options that expire weekly. In 2011,Gleenpany transmitted to OPRA peaks of over 990¢iifles per second.

CBOEdirect'sdesign allows for a quick introduction of differdgpes of derivative and securities products, iditlg options, futures,
options on futures and stock products. In additaum,system facilitates different trading modelkwing us to provide both a floor-based
model and a screen-based model.

CBOEdirectprovides application programming interfaces, or #Rd facilitate both quote and order entry as aglauction processir
These include a proprietary API called CBOE Maikétrface ("CMi") and the industry-standard Finah¢nformation Exchange ("FIX").

In 2012, CBOE plans to launch CFLEX 2.0, built be €CBOEdirecttrade engine. It will be the first trading systeon FLEX options
that is fully integrated with standard option traglicapability.

Order Routing, Trade Match, Ticker Plant and Markeita
The order routing system allows Trading Permit ldodcdto use FIX or CMi.

The Trade Match system uses CB@ieecttechnology. It sends matched trades to the OCG;iwdettles and clears the trades. The
Trade Match system provides matched trade infoomat clearing firms via CBOHirecttechnology. Brokers have access to their trades an
related account information via a web-based interfar through an API.

The ticker plant, XTP, takes in market data feedsyfCTS/CQS, OPRA, NASDAQ, the CME Group, Inc. afiter sources and
disseminates the data internally to other systeme publish/subscribe basis. XTP's most recentgssing peak was 3.8 million messages per
second, or MPS, inbound from the OPRA, with ove6Blllion messages per day.

The system disseminates options market data to Oi#RlAo Trading Permit Holders via FIX, CMi and CSBBM is a new high speed
multicast feed for distribution of current marketta The system also uses Ticker Express to prdagieaccurate market data to Trading
Permit Holders.

CFE disseminates futures market data via the CBid&nkEial Network ("CFN"), our futures market dattwork.

Our fully integrated real-time system tracks elewtc trading for Help Desk troubleshooting and tatpry analysis. We have invested
in an extensive data warehouse with terabytesstbtical trading data that provides fast and easgss to data for analysis.

Disaster Recovery

With two options exchanges, we have multiple datster locations running on the same technologyqgrlat We use a remote data
center to provide a point of redundancy for our EB&hd CFE exchanges. Our remote facility fully iegikes our primary CBOE data center
and is designed to ensure the operation of oufopfats functionality in the face of external thieainforeseen disasters or internal failures. In
the event of an emergency, CBOE Trading Permit elsldonnecting to the CBOE trading platform cartgada the back-up facility. Our
primary data center continuously collects and salleésade information and periodically transmitsa the back-up facility. For that reason,



we expect that our disaster recovery system woane fcurrent, and in most cases real-time, infolwnati the event of a platform
outage. In the event that we were required to ceta changeover to a back-up disaster facilityameeipate that our platform would
experience minimal downtime.
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Clearing System

The OCC acts as the issuer, counterparty and guarfan all options contracts traded on our optiershanges and other U.S. options
exchanges. Upon execution of an option trade, amstnit to the OCC a record of all trading actiVdy clearing and settlement purposes. The
OCC fulfills these same functions for futures pro@itraded on the CFE.

Market Data

Our markets generate valuable information regarthiegprices of our products and the trading agtivitthose markets. Market data
relating to price and size of market quotations #edprice and size of trades is collected andaateted by OPRA. OPRA disseminates the
information to vendors who redistribute the datarnokers, investors and other persons or entitigsuse our markets or that monitor general
economic conditions, such as financial informatiooviders, brokedealers, banks, futures commission merchants, pahtl private pensic
funds, investment companies, mutual funds, inswaompanies, hedge funds, commaodity pools, indalithwvestors and other financial
services organizations. After costs are deductedfees collected are distributed among exchandieipants based on their cleared
transactions pursuant to the OPRA Plan. As of Déezr8011, our market data was displayed on appteiyn 170,000 terminals worldwid
See "Regulatory Environment and Compliance" fothferinformation on OPRA.

Through our subsidiary, MDX, we are expanding oarket data offerings. MDX is a market data vendowjling information on
specialized indexes, time and sales informationsgpetialized reports of historical market data.

Support Services

Trading Permit Holders and affiliates have accés®vmail and telephone to our specialized netveaitinistration center, which
provides support with respect to general technimadjness and administrative questions. Our Tra@ipgrations Help Desk is staffed Moni
through Friday from 6:00AM CST to 4:30PM CST. Oystems Operations support is staffed 24 hours as#axen days a week.

Regulatory Environment and Compliance

The following discussion cover the more significardas of regulation of us by the SEC and the Coditpn&utures Trading
Commission ("CFTC").

Recent Developments

Laws and regulations regarding our business acgiémtly modified or changed, including in respottsadverse financial conditions,
new products, competition or at the request of etgplarticipants. The following is a summary of r#aegulatory developments that may
impact our business.

Market Access

On November 3, 2010, the SEC adopted a new rutenthiald require brokers or dealers with accessading directly on an exchange
or automated trading system ("ATS"), including th@soviding sponsored or direct market access $toowers or other persons, to implement
risk management controls and supervisory procedessonably designed to manage the financial, atgyl and other risks of this business
activity. The new rule encompasses trading inedusities on an exchange or ATS, including equitiggions, exchange-traded funds and
debt securities. The new rule also applies brotdbil access to trading on an exchange or ATSigealvby a broker-dealer, but does not
apply to non-broker-dealers, including non-brokbeg are subscribers to an ATS. Market participargee required to be in compliance with
certain requirements by July 14, 2011 and in faihpliance by November 30, 2011.

May 6, 2010-Related Proposals

On May 6, 2010, markets dropped significantly apdraximately 30 S&P 500 Index stocks fell at leE&tpercent in a five-minute
period. In response, on June 10, 2010, the SE®apg@rule changes submitted by the national séesigtxchanges and Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority, Inc. ("FINRA") under whicha@hexchanges would pause trading in certain indalidtocks and overlying options if the
price in the stock moved by a specified percenbagefive-minute period. The markets proposed thakes in consultation with FINRA and
staff of the SEC to provide for uniform market-wistandards for individual securities in the S&P Bfex that experience a rapid price
movement. The program has since been expandedd@aber all NMS stocks, other than rights and amts, and overlying options. The
pause is intended to give the markets the oppdyttmiattract new trading interest, establish @oeable market price and resume trading in a
fair and orderly fashion. These rules are in eféach pilot basis through July 31, 2012. Duringphet period, the SEC staff is studying the



impact of the pilot and continuing to evaluate fiertinitiatives to address market structure issaesaled by the events of May 6, 2010,
such as a proposed national market system planigatrby the stock markets and FINRA that would
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refine the single stock circuit breakers by incogbimg a limit-up/limit-down type mechanism and posed rule changes submitted by the
national securities exchanges and FINRA that woefithe the existing market-wide circuit breaker hugetology for determining when to halt
trading in all securities. We cannot predict whatfe actions the SEC might take with respect ¢outhusual market events of May 6 or the
impact that any such actions may have on our bssine

Agency Rulemaking Areas

In addition to the above identified areas, the $A€ been directed under Dodd-Frank to implemenymaw rules, both alone and in
conjunction with the CFTC. These areas includefplotmargining and swap clearing and execution.

In 2010, the SEC and CFTC formed a joint Advisopn@nittee charged with developing recommendationsrarging and ongoing
issues relating to both agencies. The Advisory Cidtaenmade certain recommendations in February 28iating to the events of May 6,
2010 regarding market structure issues that mag hawtributed to the volatility, as well as disgarsiading conventions and rules across
various markets. Both the SEC and CFTC are corisgleules for implementing these recommendations.

Finally, the SEC has proposed rules, includingressotidated audit trail, option fee caps and banfimgh orders, that it has not acted
upon. We expect that the SEC will approve ruleatieg to the consolidated audit trail, but do nobw when such rules will be implemented.
The exchanges and their participants are likeip¢ar significant costs related to the implemewntaif the consolidated audit trail
requirements, once formulated. While we do not exfiee SEC to take action with respect to optiendaps or banning flash orders, as these
proposals are dated, if one or both of the progosate adopted, they could cause significant ctetweur market that may reduce our
revenue per contract or reduce the volume of tggdimour exchange.

Compliance
Options Industry-CBOE and C2

Federal securities laws have established a tweetisystem for the regulation of securities markets market participants. The first tier
consists of the SEC, which has primary respongitfitir enforcing federal securities laws. The settiar consists of Self-Regulatory
Organization ("SROs"), which are non-governmenidities that must register with and are regulatgthie SEC. CBOE and C2 are SROs,
each registered under Section 6 of the Exchang@®\at"national securities exchange" and are sufgjeversight by the SEC. CBSX is a
stock trading facility of CBOE.

SROs in the securities industry are an essentiapooent of the regulatory scheme of the Exchangdokgroviding fair and orderly
markets and protecting investors. To be registagea national securities exchange, an exchangesuestssfully undergo a rigorous
application and review process with the SEC belf@ginning operations. Among other things, the SEGtrdetermine that the exchange has
the capacity to carry out the purposes of the ExghaAct. An SRO must comply with the Exchange Aal have the ability to enforce
compliance by its members and persons associatadtsrmembers with the provisions of the ExchaAgg the rules and regulations
thereunder and the rules of the exchange.

In general, an SRO is responsible for regulatiagriembers through the adoption and enforcemenil@$ governing the business
conduct of its members. The rules of the exchanggt miso assure fair representation of its memibdtse selection of its directors and
administration of its affairs and, among other ¢isinprovide that one or more directors be represigatof issuers or investors and not be
associated with a member of the exchange or wittoker or dealer. Additionally, the rules of theckange must be adequate to ensure fair
dealing and to protect investors and may not impogeburden on competition not necessary or apjaiepin furtherance of the purposes of
the Exchange Act.

As registered national securities exchanges, Viytadl facets of our CBOE and C2 operations argject to the SEC's oversight, as
prescribed by the Exchange Act. The Exchange Adtthe rules thereunder impose on us many regulatodyoperational responsibilities,
including the day-to-day responsibilities for markad broker-dealer oversight. Furthermore, as SRBOE and C2 are potentially subject
to regulatory or legal action by the SEC or otimeliested parties. The SEC also has broad enfortgroeers to censure, fine, issue cease-
anddesist orders, prohibit us from engaging in someuwfbusinesses, suspend or revoke our desigradiaregistered securities exchang
to remove or censure any of our officers or directeho violate applicable laws or regulations.

As part of its regulatory oversight, the SEC condyeriodic reviews and inspections of exchangas,GBOE and C2 have been
subject to such routine reviews and inspectiongh&aextent such reviews and inspections resuédunlatory or other changes, we may be
required to modify the manner in which we conduetlousiness, which may adversely affect our busines



CBOE and C2 are also subject to the record keagqgirements of Section 17 of the Exchange Actuifiag the requirement pursuant
to Section 17(b) of the Exchange Act to make centecords available to the SEC for examination.
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Section 19 of the Exchange Act also provides thatwist submit to the SEC proposed changes to aoyrafption exchanges' rules,
including revisions of their certificates of incormation and bylaws. The SEC will typically publigte proposal for public comment, followi
which the SEC may approve, disapprove or abrofpat@rtoposal, as it deems appropriate. The SEGtndstdesigned to ensure that the
CBOE's and C2's Rules and procedures are consigithrthe Exchange Act and the rules and regulatiomder the Exchange Act.

CBOE Holdings

Certain aspects of CBOE Holdings are subject to 8#sight, including certain ownership and votiagtrictions on its stockholders.
The focus of the SEC's regulation of CBOE Holdiigg® assure fair representation of Trading PeHoiders in the selection of CBOE and
C2 directors, public participation in the govermnainé¢ CBOE and C2 and that CBOE and C2 can satigfy tegulatory responsibilities under
the Exchange Act. Furthermore, the SEC requirdsGB®E Holdings give due regard to the preservatioiie independence of the self-
regulatory function of CBOE and C2 and to CBOE Hindg' obligations to investors and the generalipubhe SEC also requires that CBt
Holdings not take any actions that would interfeith the effectuation of any decisions by the boafrdirectors of either CBOE or C2
relating to their regulatory functions or the sture of the market that it regulates or that wdatdrfere with the ability of the exchanges to
carry out their responsibilities under the ExchaAge To the extent that CBOE Holdings' businegsvaies involve or relate to the
exchanges, the officers and directors of CBOE hhgjsimay be deemed to be officers and directorlseoékchanges for purposes of and
subject to oversight under the federal securit@s| Accordingly, the SEC may exercise direct suipiem and disciplinary authority over
certain CBOE Holdings' activities and those ad#gitmay be subject to SEC approval and, in somescasiblic notice and comment.

Futures Industry-CFE

The operations of CFE are subject to regulatiothkeyCFTC under the Commaodity Exchange Act. The Corityp Exchange Act
generally requires that futures trading in the BahiStates be conducted on a commodity exchanggndésd as a contract market by the
CFTC under the Act. The Commodity Exchange Act @rd C regulations establish criteria for an exchaogee designated as a contract
market on which futures and futures options comsratay be traded. Designation as a contract méwkéte trading of a specified futures
contract is non-exclusive. This means that the CFEY designate additional exchanges as contradtetsafior trading the same or similar
contracts.

CFE is a designated contract market that is subjeitte oversight of the CFTC and to a variety mja@ing regulatory and reporting
responsibilities under the Commodity Exchange &¢iE has surveillance and compliance operationgpamtkedures to monitor and enforce
compliance by trading privilege holders with CFEesu

The National Futures Association ("NFA") is perfangn most of these functions pursuant to a Reguds@rvices Agreement with
CFE. CFE retains overall responsibility for theukagion of its marketplace. CFE also remains restbe for bringing disciplinary actions
against trading privilege holders, including thdigbto issue fines in the case of serious rulelations. In the case of financially distressed
Trading Privilege Holders, CFE may take various iyaBcy actions to protect customers, other Tra#irglege Holders and CFE. CFE is
also a party to cooperative and regulatory inforomasharing agreements with other SROs and is abeenf the Intermarket Surveillance
Group.

Dodd+rank amended the core principles with which destiggh contract markets like CFE must comply underGommodity Exchanc
Act. The CFTC has proposed a number of new reguiatapplicable to designated contract marketsderdo implement the amended core
principles. These proposals include certain owriprahd voting restrictions on stockholders likesbaequired by the SEC for securities
exchanges, other regulations designed to mitigattengial conflicts of interest and regulations fielg to the trading rules that designated
contract markets may implement. CFE cannot prextiestimate the full extent to which the proposads/ affect CFE or its operations.

Regulatory Responsibilities

Our options exchanges are responsible for takieygssio ensure that their Trading Permit Holderspdgiwith the exchanges' rules and
with the applicable rules of the SEC. The mainvtigis that the exchanges engage in to measurel@me with these rules include: (1) the
review of surveillance exception reports desigreddtect violations of exchange trading rulestii2)review of surveillance exception rep
designed to detect possible manipulation and vaiatof other SEC rules; (3) the further invesiigmbf matters deemed to be problematic
upon review of the exception reports or mattersrakto be problematic as a result of examinatifjsthe investigation of complaints about
possible rule violations brought by customers, memior other SROs; and (5) the examination of CB@& C2 Trading Permit Holders for
compliance with rules such as those related taagital, books and records, market access and othtters related to the Trading Permit
Holders' exchange business function. As furthecrilesd below, each option exchange is also resplnfr reviewing its Trading Permit
Holders' activities related to the conduct of basmdirectly with public customers, or sales pcactiVe have
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delegated the responsibility to conduct sales mmetxaminations for options to FINRA, except tivatretain responsibility for some of the
sales practice examinations of Trading Permit Hsldleat are not also members of FINRA or anoth&:. Wecurities exchange.

Section 17(d) of the Exchange Act and the relatecthBnge Act rules permit SROs to allocate certegulatory responsibilities to avc
duplicative oversight and regulation. Under ExcteAgt Rule 17d-1, the SEC designates one SRO thebBesignated Examining Authority
("DEA") for each broker-dealer that is a membenmafre than one SRO. The DEA is responsible for ¢éigeilatory oversight of the financial
responsibility aspects of that broker-dealer. Wethe DEA for many of our members.

Exchange Act Rule 17d-2 permits SROs to enteragreements, commonly called Rule 17d-2 agreemenhish are approved by the
SEC and concern the enforcement of rules applidatddl of those SROs and relating to members ti&#%8s have in common. We have
entered into Rule 17d-2 agreements under which RIRallocated responsibility for enforcing ruledated to options sales practices with
respect to CBOE and C2 Trading Permit Holders asiér trading rules with respect to CBSX Tradimgrit Holders. We have entered into
another Rule 17d-2 agreement that allocates regplityso each SRO for ensuring that their alladicommon members complied with rules
governing expiring exercise declarations, optioositon limits and large options position reportengd position adjustments. Finally, we h
entered into a Rule 17d-2 agreement that alloca@eain responsibilities under Regulation NMS toarket participant's DEA.

The SEC approved a national market system plan didineeOptions Regulatory Surveillance AuthorityrP(8ORSA Plan") with the
purpose of permitting the U.S. securities optioxshanges to act jointly in the administration, gtien and maintenance of a regulatory
system for the surveillance, investigation and ctéia of the unlawful use of undisclosed, mateinérmation in trading in one or more of
their markets. Through the sharing of the costhe$e regulatory activities and the sharing ofrfgilatory information generated under the
ORSA Plan, the ORSA Plan is intended to enhanceffeetiveness and efficiency with which the exdpmregulate their respective markets
and the national market system for options and/éadaduplication of certain regulatory efforts. TG®RSA Policy Committee delegated the
operation of the surveillance and investigativelitgaccontemplated by the ORSA Plan to CBOE. Theleanges have entered into a
Regulatory Services Agreement with CBOE, as semiogider, pursuant to which CBOE performs certaigulatory and surveillance
functions under the ORSA Plan and uses its autaimasider trading surveillance system to perforesthfunctions on behalf of the
exchanges.

In 2011, CBOE entered into Regulatory Services Agrents with other exchanges under which CBOE hiasddo provide certain
regulatory services to the respective exchangeQEB currently providing these services to oneharge and expects to begin providing
services to one or more additional exchanges 2201

In order to ensure market integrity, we extensivelyulate and monitor our Trading Permit Holdeaslimg activities. Providing
effective regulation is important for attractingdaretaining the confidence and participation of ketsmakers, broker-dealers and institutional
and retail investors.

We expend considerable time, financial resourceseéiort to ensure that the exchanges' rules agulagons conform to regulatory
"best practices" within the securities exchangeigtiy and within the regulatory regime overseenh@ySEC, our primary regulator. In order
to support our efforts and those of our marketigigeints to comply with applicable law and our optexchange rules, we have developec
own automated market surveillance systems to momitoket activity on our option exchanges and &tb$. options markets.

As part of the self-regulatory process, discipljnaratters, other than minor matters covered byMinor Rule Violation Plan, are
reviewed by our Business Conduct Committee, whicluides both market participants and public represives. We are also a participant in
the Intermarket Surveillance Group ("ISG"). IS@Gisinformation-sharing cooperative governed by itewr agreement that provides for a
comprehensive surveillance sharing arrangememddition to the agreement for confidential inforimoatsharing, the 1SG provides a
framework for the coordination of regulatory effoemong exchanges trading securities, commoditydatand related products to address
potential intermarket manipulations and tradingsasu There are approximately 52 ISG member orgémizaworldwide.

We collect certain fees derived from our regulatiomyction and fines in connection with our disaiglity proceedings. Under the rules
each of our options exchanges, as required by Sny revenue derived from the regulatory feekfames cannot be used for non-
regulatory purposes.

OPRA Plan, CTA Plan and NASDAQ Unlisted Trading Riieges Plan

CBOE and C2 are member exchanges in OPRA. The Qipit&d liability company agreement, which has bagproved by the SEC,
provides that any securities exchange approvetddBEC for the trading of securities options magobge a member exchange of OPRA.
The agreement sets forth a system for reportingopinformation that is administered
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by the member exchanges through OPRA, a limitdailifa company consisting of representatives of tirember exchanges. OPRA is the
designated securities information processor forketanformation that is generated through the trgdif exchange-listed securities options in
the U.S., and it disseminates certain core tragifagmation, such as last sale reports and quatstid/e also participate in the Consolidated
Tape Association, or CTA, the Consolidated QuotaBtan, or CQ Plan, and the NASDAQ Unlisted Tradniyileges Plan, which perform
analogous services for the U.S. equities markeYSHBTechnologies, formerly the Securities Indugtagomation Corporation, acts as the
"processor” for OPRA, CTA and the CQ Plan. NASDAsas the processor for the NASDAQ Unlisted Trgdttan.

Options Intermarket Linkage Plan

Options linkage was designed to facilitate theirguof orders between exchanges in furtherancenattianal market system. The
principal purposes of linkage is to promote pricet@ction and to assure that brokers may execustars' orders at the best market price.
The options exchanges implemented a new linkagegiiaAugust 31, 2009 to replace the original Lirk&dan. Under the plan, direct
exchange-to-exchange access through broker-désilesed to transmit intermarket sweep orders sirtolaweep orders that are available in
the stock market under Regulation NMS.

Options Listing Procedures Plan and Symbology Plan

We are a party to the Options Listing Proceduras Rihich sets forth the procedures that the optéhanges must follow to list new
options. We are also a party to the National Mafigettem Plan for the selection and reservatioraofisties symbols.

Intellectual Property

We own or have rights to a number of intellectualpgerty assets, including trademarks, service madain names, trade names,
copyrights, trade secrets and patents. While thjentyaof our intellectual property is protectedder U.S. law, we have many intellectual
property assets protected by the laws in Europm, &sd other parts of the world. We license sontelactual property assets to other entit
While we consider our intellectual property to lzdued assets, we do not believe that our compefitosition is wholly dependent on
intellectual property protection. We attempt totpod our intellectual property rights, while resiieg the legitimate intellectual property
rights of others.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011 , we employed 596 indiaisluOf these employees, 2@&re involved in systems development or operat
93 were involved in direct support of trading opienras and 82 were involved in regulatory activiti€éhe remaining 160 personnel provide
business development, product development, edudii@ncial, legal, planning and research, adriiaive and managerial support.

We have eight building engineers that are coveyea tollective bargaining agreement, which expmeday 31, 2015, with the
International Union of Operating Engineers Loca®38FL-CIO. Management believes that we have stretafionships with our employees
and we have never experienced a work stoppage.

Executive Officers of CBOE Holdings

Set forth below is information regarding our ex@eibfficers and certain other key employees:

Name Age Position

William J. Brodsky 68 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Edward T. Tilly 48 President and Chief Operating Officer

Alan J. Dean 57 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officedarreasurer
Richard G. DuFour 68 Executive Vice President of Corporate Planning Bedelopment
Joanne Moffic-Silver 59 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Gatp&ecretary
Gerald T. O'Connell 60 Executive Vice President and Chief Information €éfi

Edward L. Provost 59 Executive Vice President and Chief Business Devakg Officer
David S. Reynolds 58 Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

William J. Brodsky. Mr. Brodsky is Chairman and Chief Executivei€df. He has served in that capacity since 199@r Ry joining
the Company in 1997, Mr. Brodsky was presidentehidf executive officer of the Chicago MercantibecBange from 1985 to 1997.
Mr. Brodsky is a director of Integrys Energy Groum;. and its predecessors. He also is the past
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chairman of the World Federation of Exchanges asi ghairman of the International Options Markessdciation. He is a member of the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York's Internationavidary Committee. Mr. Brodsky also serves on thédgg School of Management
Advisory Council and as a trustee of Syracuse Unitye He is chairman of the board of directordNairthwestern Memorial Hospital.

Mr. Brodsky holds an A.B. degree and a J.D. defjaa Syracuse University and is a member of theibdlinois and New York.

Edward T. Tilly. Mr. Tilly is President and Chief Operating @€&t. He has served in that capacity since Nove2®gt. He served :
Executive Vice Chairman from August 2006 until Nowmer 2011. He was a member of CBOE from 1989 @016, and served as Member
Vice Chairman from 2004 through July 2006. Mr. i the chairman and a director of CBOE Futureshaxge, serves on the board of
directors of the CBOE Stock Exchange and the OGChélds a B.A. degree in Economics from Northwestémiversity.

Alan J. Dean. Mr. Dean is Executive Vice President, Chiefdfioial Officer and Treasurer. He has served indhpacity since 1988
and has been employed at the Company in the fiabai@a since 1979. Mr. Dean serves on the boaddedtors of The Institute for
Transfusion Medicine. He is a CPA, and he holdsS Begree in Accounting from Western lllinois Usrisity and an M.B.A. from
Northwestern University's Kellogg Graduate Schddflanagement

Richard G. DuFour. Mr. DuFour is Executive Vice President of Caiqte Planning and Development. He has served trctpmacity
since 1999 and has been employed at the Comparyy $880. He serves on the board of OneChicagosatréasurer of the International
Options Markets Association. Mr. DuFour is a dicedadf the Lincoln Park Renewal Corporation and IPXldings, LLC. Mr. DuFour holds
B.B.A. degree from the University of Notre Dame @amdM.B.A. from the University of Michigan.

Joanne Moffic-Silver. Ms. Moffic-Silver is Executive Vice Preside@eneral Counsel and Corporate Secretary. She hasise that
capacity since 1997 and has been employed at thgp@uy since 1980. She is currently a member obtlaed of advisors of Northwestern
University School of Law. Ms. MoffiSilver received her B.A. degree with high honord asas elected a member of Phi Beta Kappa fror
University of Wisconsin-Madison. Ms. Moffic-Silveeceived her J.D. degree with honors from Northerestniversity School of Law.

Gerald T. O'Connell. Mr. O'Connell is Executive Vice President artdef Information Officer. He has served in that @eipy since
1993 and has been employed at the Company sinee B80'Connell serves on the board of directdrthe CBOE Stock Exchange. He
holds a B.S. degree in Mathematics from Lewis Ursiitg and a J.D. degree from John Marshall Law $tho

Edward L. Provost. Mr. Provost is Executive Vice President andeEBiusiness Development Officer. He has servetiasi¢ad of
our Business Development Division since 2000 arsddeen employed at the Company since 1975. Mr.d3t®erves as Chairman of the
board of directors of the CBOE Stock Exchange. bld$ia B.B.A. in Finance from Loyola University ©hicago and an M.B.A. from the
University of Chicago Graduate School of Business.

David S. Reynolds. Mr. Reynolds is Vice President and Chief Acamg Officer. He has served in that capacity siktay 2009.
Prior to that, Mr. Reynolds was with Hudson HigtdaBroup, Inc., where he served in various rolekitling vice president, controller and
chief accounting officer. From February 2005 tofeeby 2007, Mr. Reynolds was vice president, cdigir@and chief accounting officer of
Bally Total Fithess Corporation. Prior to that,dpent twenty-two years in various financial role€amdisco, Inc., rising to senior vice
president and controller. Mr. Reynolds began his@aat Ernst & Young. Mr. Reynolds is a certiffeblic accountant and a certified cash
manager. He is a graduate of Lehigh University wher obtained an M.B.A. and a B.S. in Finance.

Information Sharing

The Company provides information to the ISG ungberceic circumstances related to the enforcemenégiilations. See "-Regulatory
Responsibilities."

In 2005, CBOE entered into a series of Memorandaraferstanding with the three futures exchangegtamtivo stock exchanges in
the Peoples Republic of China. These agreemengxigdie sharing of information on market and prodievelopment and provide for
CBOE to potentially work with these exchanges talthe development of new markets for derivativedpats. Similar agreements have also
been entered into with the Korea Exchange, the dmikautures Exchange, the China Financial Futureb@nge and the Thailand Futures
Exchange. In April 2010, the China Financial FusuExchange began trading stock index futures.

Seasonality
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In the securities industry, quarterly revenue fhations are common and are due primarily to sedsamniations in trading volumes,
competition and technological and regulatory chan@enerally, we have historically experiencedtiedty higher trading volume during the
first and second quarters and lower trading voluméke third and fourth quarters. However, sudmsseality may also be impacted by
general market conditions or other events thateauwsrket volatility, such as domestic and inteoral uncertainties surrounding certain
political events. During 2011, 24% of our consdi@hrevenues were recognized in the first qua2&¥s in the second quarter, 28% in the
third quarter and 24% in the fourth quarter.

Available Information

Our website is www.cboe.com. The Company files ahmuarterly and current reports, proxy statemantsother information with tt
SEC under the Exchange Act. The Company makesadgjlfree of charge, on its website its annuabrepn Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and ammands to those reports filed or furnished purstasection 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act, as soon as reasonably practicaldesafth reports are electronically filed with, emished to, the SEC. The Company's
reports filed with, or furnished to, the SEC arsoadvailable on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

In addition, we have posted on our website thetelmfor our (i) Audit Committee, (i) Compensati@ommittee, and (iii) Nominating
and Governance Committee, as well as our Code sinBas Conduct and Ethics and Corporate Goverr@uitkelines. We will provide a
copy of these documents without charge to stockdisldpon written request to Investor Relationsgitibon Ms. Debbie Koopman, CBOE
Holdings Inc., 400 South LaSalle Street, Chicafioois 60605.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Certain statements contained in this report undepus sections, including "Business” and "Managgra®iscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,"farevard-looking statements that involve risks amdertainties. See "Forward-Looking
Statements." These risks could materially and adhgaffect our business, financial condition agsifts of operations.

Risks Relating to Our Business
Loss of our exclusive licenses to list certain indeptions could have a material adverse effect am &inancial performance.

We hold exclusive licenses to list securities indp&ons on the S&P 500 Index, the S&P 100 Indexkthie DJIA, granted to us by the
owners of such indexes. In 2011, approximately 86%ur transaction fees were generated by our skaly-licensed index products, the
bulk of which are attributable to our S&P 500 Ind®ption products, which are our largest productsdwenue. As a result, our operating
revenues are dependent in part on the exclusigadis we hold for these products.

The value of our exclusive licenses to list se@sitndex options depends on the continued algifiipdex owners to require licenses
the trading of options based on their indexes. \lgh recent court decisions have allowed the tgadfroptions on ETFs based on indexes
without licenses from the owners of the underlyiimdexes, none of these decisions has overturnetirexiegal precedent that requires an
exchange to be licensed by the owner of an undeyliyidex before it may list options based on tlein However, in two pending cases
International Securities Exchange, Inc., or ISEsgeking a judicial determination that it (and gxyension, other options exchanges) has the
right to list options on the S&P 500 Index and ERBA without licenses and, therefore, without reber our exclusive licenses to list
securities options on those indexes.

Because these cases are still pending, there reraaisk that ISE may be successful in obtainipglaial determination eliminating tl
right of index owners to require licenses to us@rtimdexes for options trading. In addition, cortipg exchanges may convince the SEC, or
seek a judicial action, to limit the right of indewners to grant exclusive licenses for index aoptitrading or to prevent exchanges from
entering into such exclusive licenses. If unlicehsading of index options were permitted or if lewsive licenses for index options trading
were prohibited or limited, we likely would lose rkat share in these index options. An adversegutirthe ISE litigation could also result in
legal challenges to our exclusive use of our pedpry indexes for options.

There is also a risk, with respect to each of aurant exclusive licenses, that the owner of tldeinmay not renew the license with us
on an exclusive basis or at all. In the first eyerg would be subject to multiple listing in thading of what is now an exclusive index
product, which could result in a loss of marketrstend negatively impact the profitability of theeinsed products. In the second event, we
could lose the right to list the index product egiti. The loss or limited use of any of our exchasindex licenses for any reason could have a
material adverse effect on our business and pbiliita See "Business—Products—Strategic Relatigmshfor a discussion of these licenses
and their expiration dates.
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Furthermore, our competitors may succeed in pragiéi market for the trading of index-based prodtieis are economically similar to
those for which we have exclusive licenses. Ii$s possible that a third party may offer tradingridex-based products that are the same as
those that are the subject of one of our exclustemses, but in a jurisdiction in which the ind@xner cannot require a license or in a manner
otherwise not covered by our exclusive license.

Recently, we agreed with S&P that it may license onmore clearing agencies to clear OTC optiosgdan the S&P 500 index that
meet certain criteria and that S&P will compensetéor any transaction cleared under such a licbased on the notional value of the
transaction. Although we expect these transactogenerate incremental revenue, the clearing téopon the S&P 500 index that are
traded OTC could lead to the migration to the OT&kat of some trades that today would be entertedan our exchanges, and there can be
no assurance that the revenue gained will reptazegvenue lost due to any migration.

A significant portion of our operating revenues agenerated by our transacti-based business. If the amount of trading volume aur
exchanges decreases, or the mix shifts to loweerawe products, our revenues from transaction feel decrease.

In 2011, 2010 and 2009, approximately 73% , 76% 7t of our operating revenues, respectively, wereerated by our transaction-
based business. This business is dependent omitity & attract and maintain order flow, bothabsolute terms and relative to other market
centers. Our total trading volumes could declineuif market participants reduce their trading digtifor any reason, such as:

* areduction in trading by custome

» heightened capital requirements or other regulatoiiggislative action
» reduced access to capital required to fund tradatiyities, o

« significant market disruptior

In addition, the transaction fees generated aferdifit based on type of product and other factoctyding the type of customer and
certain volume discounts. See "Management's Digmussid Analysis -- Operating Revenues -- Averagedaction fee per contract.” If the
transaction volume generated is concentrated ipmducts that generate lower revenues per contrggtneral, our revenues from
transactions may decrease. If the amount of odirigavolume decreases, or the mix traded shiftaitdower revenue products, our revenues
from transaction fees will decrease.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and mag subject to censures, fines and other legal pratiegs if we fail to comply with legal
and regulatory obligations.

CBOE and C2 are registered national securitiesan@bs and self-regulatory organizations, or SRA, @ such, are subject to
comprehensive regulation by the SEC. In additidBSK is a stock trading facility of CBOE and CBOKjuéates CBSX. In December 2011,
CBSX acquired NSX, a registered national securéieshange that trades stocks. While NSX is not#itiaof CBOE, in the acquisition,
CBOE committed to support NSX in fulfilling its $ekgulatory responsibilities. CBOE has also erdénto agreements with certain other
exchanges to provide regulatory services to thaskanges.

Our ability to comply with applicable laws and rsiis largely dependent on the establishment andter&nce of appropriate systems
and procedures, as well as our ability to attract@tain qualified personnel. The SEC has broadepeto audit, investigate and enforce
compliance and to punish noncompliance by SROsupmtgo the Exchange Act and the SEC's rules andations under the Exchange Act.
If the SEC were to find one of our programs of eodémnent and compliance to be deficient, CBOE oc@2d be the subject of SEC
investigations and enforcement proceedings thatmesylt in substantial sanctions, including revimeabf its registration as a national
securities exchange. Any such investigations ocgedings, whether successful or unsuccessful, gesldt in substantial costs and the
diversion of resources and potential harm to oputation, which could have a material adverse effacur business, results of operations or
financial condition. In addition, CBOE or C2 may flegjuired to modify or restructure their regulatfugctions in response to any changes in
the regulatory environment, or they may be requicectly on third parties to perform regulatory anersight functions, each of which may
require us to incur substantial expenses and miay bar reputation if our regulatory services arerded inadequate.

CFE is a designated contract market registeredtwdlCFTC. Because CFE is subject to comprehensgdation by the CFTC, CFE
subject to substantially similar risks with respiecits regulatory and legal obligations as CBOH &2 in relation to their regulation by the
SEC.

Although CBOE Holdings itself is not an SRO, CBOBI#ings is subject to regulation by the SEC ofatitis that involve the
exchanges. Specifically, the SEC will exercise eiggtt over the governance of CBOE Holdings and its
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relationship with the CBOE and C2. See "Regulatmyironment and Compliance—Regulatory Responsgisslit
Regulatory changes affecting the listed options rketr could have a material adverse effect on our in@ss.

Changes in regulation by the SEC or other govertmetion, including SEC approval of rule filings bther SROs, could materially
affect our markets. As a result of the financiatemainty of the past few years, the Dodd-Frankwas adopted in 2010, under which the
SEC and CFTC, among other agencies, are still itr@ebin rulemaking. We cannot predict what futurgcars the SEC or CFTC might take
with respect to their rulemakings under Ddeldnk or other matters, or the impact that any sutions may have on our business. Chang
proposed changes in regulation may result in aatditi costs of compliance and modification of mageaticipants' trading activity on our
exchanges. See also "—Risks Relating to Litigaséiod Regulation.”

Intense competition could materially adversely affeur market share and financial performanc

We compete with a number of entities on severdéidiht fronts, including the cost, quality and spe&our trade execution, the
functionality and ease of use of our trading platfothe range of our products and services, olmtgogical innovation and adaptation and
our reputation. Our principal competitors are theen other U.S. options exchanges. We also conagetest investment banks and other
entities that trade options over-the-counter.

Most of the equity options and options on ETF®ldsand traded on our exchanges are also listettaaheld on other U.S. options
exchanges. Some order-providing firms on our exgbarmave taken ownership positions in options exgbs that compete with us and such
exchanges have given those firms added econongaiives to direct orders to them. As a result esthcompetitive developments, our
market share of options traded in the U.S. felifrapproximately 33% in 2007 to approximately 2692011.

Changes we have implemented in response to thesgetibive pressures may not be successful in maintpor expanding our market
share in the future. Likewise, our future resporieghese or other competitive developments maypaatuccessful in maintaining or
expanding our market share.

Some of our competitors and potential competit@ngehgreater financial, marketing, technologicatspanel and other resources than
we do. These factors may enable them to develojfesior more innovative products, to offer lowearisaction fees or better execution to
their customers or to execute their business giieganore quickly or efficiently than we can.

Furthermore, our competitors may:
» respond more quickly to competitive presst
» develop products that compete with our produc@rermreferred by our custome
» price their products and services more competiti
» develop and expand their technology and serviceriofis more efficienth
e provide better, more uséiendly and more reliable technoloi
» take greater advantage of acquisitions, allianoesother opportunitie
* market, promote and sell their products and sesuigere effectively

» leverage existing relationships with customerd alliance partners more effectively or explodrt names to market and sell
their services; and

» exploit regulatory disparities between tradiigmegulated exchanges and alternative markedisiding over-the-counter
markets, that benefit from a reduced regulatoryglearand lower-cost business model.

In recent years, the derivatives industry has sited increased consolidation among market pantitspancluding option exchanges
and marketplaces. Consolidation and alliances amangompetitors may create greater liquidity tianoffer. As a result, the larger
liquidity pools may attract orders away from ugdig to reductions in trading volume and decreaseenues. In addition, consolidation or
alliances among our competitors may achieve castatéons or other increases in efficiency, whichyrahow them to offer better prices or
services than we do.

If our products, markets, services and technolagynat competitive, our financial condition and mimg results will be materially
harmed. A decline in our transaction fees or asg laf customers would lower our revenues, whichlevadversely affect our profitability.



For a discussion of the competitive environmentirich we operate, see "Business—Competition."

Our business may be adversely affected by price petition.
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The business of operating options exchanges isicteaized by intense price competition. The prigimadel for trade execution for
options has changed in response to competitive ehadaditions and we and our competitors have &fjusur transaction fees and fee
structures accordingly, including by launching ecs&l exchange, C2. These changes have resulteghificaint pricing and cost pressures on
us. It is likely that this pressure will continuedseven intensify as our competitors continue &kge increase their share of trading by further
reducing their transaction fees or by offering offirgancial incentives to order providers and ldjty providers to induce them to direct orc
to their markets.

In addition, one or more competitors may engagegugressive pricing strategies and significantlyrelase or completely eliminate their
profit margin for a period of time in order to cap a greater share of trading volume. If any eéhevents occur, our operating results and
profitability could be adversely affected. For exde) we could lose a substantial percentage ogbare of trading if we are unable to price
transactions in a competitive manner. Also, oufipreargins could decline if competitive pressufexe us to reduce fees.

We may not be able to maintain operating revenueserated by making trading permits available in é&enge for a fee.

The right to trade on our exchanges is made avaithbough trading permits for which the user payee. These fees account for a
significant portion of our operating revenues --588 in 2011, the first full year during which CB@Bllected this fee. CBOE charges the
highest relative trading permit rates in the opdiomdustry. We may face pressure from our custoneei@ver these rates or may see larger
firms electing to use fewer permits to access auohange. If the demand for trading permits to ownhanges is less than historic levels or if
we are unable to maintain permit rates, our abititgenerate operating revenues through the gaanfipermits for trading access would be
negatively impacted, which could adversely affagt jprofitability.

General economic conditions and other factors beglasur control could significantly reduce demand faur products and services and
harm our business.

The volume of options transactions and the demandur products and services are directly affebigdconomic, political and market
conditions in the United States and elsewhereanatbrld that are beyond our control, including:

» broad trends in business and fina

e concerns over inflation and wavering institutionaketail confidence level

« changes in government fiscal and monetary polidy/fareign currency exchange ra
» the availability of short-term and lorigrm funding and capit:

« the availability of alternative investment oppoitigs;

» changes in the level of trading activity in undertyinstrument:

» changes and volatility in the prices of securi

» the level and volatility of interest rat

» unforeseen market closures or other disruptionisatiing; an

» concerns about terrorism and v

General economic conditions affect options tradimg variety of ways, from the availability of ctadito investor confidence. The
economic climate in recent years has been chaizatidby challenging business, economic and politioaditions throughout the world.
Adverse changes in the economy can have a negaipart on our revenues by causing a decline inrtgadolume. Because our managen
structure and overhead costs will be based on agstsams of certain levels of market activity, sigoént declines in trading volumes or
demand for market data may have a material adedfiset on our business, financial condition andrapieg results.

We may not be able to protect our intellectual peoty rights.

We rely on patent, trade secret, copyright ancetrzatk laws, the law of the doctrine of misapprapimaand contractual protections to
protect our proprietary technology, proprietaryergbroducts, index methodologies and other pragmyeatghts. In addition, we rely on the
intellectual property rights of our licensors imoection with our listing of exclusively-licensatdiex products. We and our licensors may not
be able to prevent third parties from copying, threowise obtaining and using, our intellectual gy without authorization, listing our
proprietary or exclusiveljicensed index products without licenses or othsewnfringing on our rights. We and our licensosyrhave to rel
on litigation to enforce our intellectual properights, determine the validity and scope of theppietary rights of others or defend against
claims of infringement or invalidity. We and oucéinsors may not be successful in this regard. Sigdttion, whether successful or



unsuccessful, could result in
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substantial costs to us, diversion of our resouocasreduction in our revenues, any of which confterially adversely affect our business.
For a description of current litigation involvingmnong other things, these matters, please seel'Pegeeedings."”

Computer and communications systems failures anga&eity constraints could harm our reputation and pbusiness.

We must operate, monitor and maintain our commyetems and network services, including thoseeela our electronic trading
systems, in a secure and reliable manner. A faitudo so could have a material adverse effecheriunctionality and reliability of our
market, reputation, business, financial conditind aperating results. System failure or degradat@mrid lead our customers to file formal
complaints with industry regulators, file lawsudtgainst us or cease doing business with us. Idcalgb lead regulators to initiate inquiries or
proceedings for failure to comply with applicatdevs and regulations. Any of these effects couldnhaur reputation, business, financial
condition and operating results.

The computer systems and communication networksmupdiich we rely may be vulnerable to security riskisd other disruptions.

The secure and reliable operation of our compytsiesns and communications networks, and thoserasenvice providers and market
participants, is a critical element of our openasioThese systems and communications networks maylberable to unauthorized access,
computer viruses and other security problems, disase¢o acts of terrorism, natural disasters ahédorce majeuresvents. If our security
measures are compromised or if there are inteonptr malfunctions in our systems or communicatiogtworks, our business, financial
condition and operating results could be materiatigacted. We may be required to expend significasburces to protect against the threat
of security breaches or to alleviate problems uditlg harm to reputation and litigation, causedhby breaches in security or system failures.
Although we intend to continue to implement indysttandard security measures and otherwise to gedair the integrity and reliability of
our systems, these measures may prove to be inatgeigupreventing system failures or delays ingystems or communications networks,
which could lower trading volume and have an adveffect on our business, financial condition apdrating results.

As one of the largest options exchanges in the wiahd the largest options exchange in the U.S.,ma&y be at a greater risk for a cyb
attack and other cyber security risks.

The frequency of cyber attacks is increasing inegaln and various groups have specifically targétedinancial services industry due
to its perceived role in the current economic ctieat the date of this filing, we have no evideoné@any cases of data theft, corruption of
data or compromised customer data. In February,2088 sites for CBOE and other exchanges wereteatgeith a large distributed denial
service attack. While this attack lasted only a,ddfected only Internet-based systems and hadhminimpact on CBOE’s overall trading
activities, the potential for more serious attaickhe future exists.

Security breaches may have significant costs imgesf cash outlays, business disruption, reversegek internal labor, overhead and
other expenses. Both as a standard practice dighirof recent attacks in the financial industie continue to employ resources to monitor
the environment and protect our infrastructure rgtaecurity breaches and misappropriation of wtadlectual property assets. These
measures may prove insufficient depending uporattaek or threat posed, which could result in sysi@lures and delays that could caus
to lose customers, experience lower trading volun@yr significant liabilities or have a negativegdact on our competitive advantage.

If we fail to attract or retain highly skilled mangement and other employees, our business may benledrt

Our future success depends in large part on ouaganent team, which possesses extensive knowledig@anagerial skill with
respect to the critical aspects of our business.fatture to retain certain members of our manageresam could adversely affect our ability
to manage our business effectively and executduasiness strategy.

Our business is also dependent on highly skilleglepees who provide specialized services to o@ntdi and oversee our compliance
and technology functions. Many of these employee® lextensive knowledge and experience in higldiyrteeal and complex areas of the
options trading industry. Because of the compleaity risks associated with our business and theajzed knowledge required to conduct
this business effectively, and because the growtiur industry has increased demand for qualifed@gnnel, many of our employees could
find employment at other firms if they chose tosio particularly if we fail to continue to providempetitive levels of compensation. If we
fail to retain our current employees, it would hifficult and costly to identify, recruit and traneplacements needed to continue to conduct
and expand our business. In particular, failureetain and attract qualified systems and compligoesonnel could result in systems errors or
regulatory infractions. Consequently, our reputatizay be harmed, we may incur additional costsaamgrofitability could decline.
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We may not effectively manage our growth, which twmaterially harm our business.

In recent years, we have launched a new optiorisagxye and experienced significant increased volumaur futures exchange. We
expect that our business will continue to grow,ckhinay place a significant strain on our managenpamsonnel, systems and resources. We
must continually improve our operational and finahsystems and managerial controls and procedanesye will need to continue to
expand, train and manage our technology workfdAé&e must also maintain close coordination amongechnology, accounting, finance,
marketing and sales functions. We cannot assurg¢haiwe will manage our growth effectively. If vial to do so, our business could be
materially harmed.

Our continued growth will require increased investinby us in technology, facilities, personnel &indncial and management systems
and controls. It also will require expansion of poocedures for monitoring and assuring our compkawith applicable regulations, and we
will need to integrate, train and manage a grovemployee base. The expansion of our existing bases any expansion into new
businesses and the resulting growth of our emplbgse will increase our need for internal audit mrwhitoring processes, which may be
more extensive and broader in scope than thoseawe Historically required. We may not be successfidentifying or implementing all of
the processes that are necessary. Further, unleggawth results in an increase in our revenuasighproportionate to the increase in our
costs associated with this growth, our operatinggma and profitability will be adversely affected.

We depend on third party service providers for eémtservices that are important to our business. Berruption or cessation of such
service by any third party could have a materiahadse effect on our busines

We depend on a nhumber of service providers, innwtianking and clearing organizations such as tb€ @nd its member clearing
firms; processors of market information such asGbasolidated Tape Association and OPRA; and vari@ndors of communications and
networking products and services. We cannot aggudhat any of these providers will be able tottare to provide these services in an
efficient manner or that they will be able to adatgly expand their services to meet our needsnfarruption or malfunction in or the
cessation of an important service by any thirdyparnd our inability to make alternative arrangeraénta timely manner, or at all, could have
a material adverse impact on our business, finhooradition and operating results.

If our risk management methods are not effectiveirdusiness, reputation and financial results mag ladversely affecte:

We have methods to identify, monitor and managerisls. If our methods are not effective or we mwesuccessful in monitoring or
evaluating the risks to which we are or may be eggdpour business, reputation, financial condifind operating results could be materially
adversely affected. In addition, our insurancegies may not provide adequate coverage.

We may selectively explore acquisition opporturstier strategic alliances relating to other business products or technologies. We may
not be successful in integrating other businesseducts or technologies with our business. Any Butansaction also may not produce
the results we anticipate, which could adverseljeat the market price of our unrestricted commorosk.

We may selectively explore and pursue acquisitiwh@her opportunities to strengthen our businagsgagow our company. We may
enter into business combination transactions, raakeisitions or enter into strategic partnershimst ventures or alliances, any of which
may be material. The market for acquisition targetd strategic alliances is highly competitive, eth¢ould make it more difficult to find
appropriate merger or acquisition opportunitiesvéfare required to raise capital by incurring detissuing additional equity for any reason
in connection with a strategic acquisition or inwesnt, financing may not be available or the teofsuch financing may not be favorable to
us and our stockholders, whose interests may heediby the issuance of additional stock.

The process of integration may produce unforesegulatory and operating difficulties and expendituand may divert the attention of
management from the ongoing operation of our bssiaad harm the reputation of the companies. Wernoaguccessfully achieve the
integration objectives, and we may not realizeahicipated cost savings, revenue growth and syegeng full or at all, or it may take longer
to realize them than expected, any of which coelgatively impact our results of operations, finahcbndition or the market price of our
common stock.

Risks Relating to Litigation and Regulation
Any infringement by us on patent rights of otherswld result in litigation and could have a materialdverse effect on our operation

Our competitors as well as other companies andiithatils have obtained, or may obtain, patentsahatelated to the types of products
and services we offer or plan to offer. We mayhlmmaware of all patents containing claims that pase a risk of infringement by our
products, services or technologies. In additiome@atent applications in the United States aréidemtial until a patent is issued, and



therefore we cannot evaluate the extent to whiaetpoaducts and services may be
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covered or asserted to be covered in pending papptications. Thus, we cannot be sure that owlymts and services do not infringe on the
rights of others or that others will not make claiof infringement against us. Claims of infringernare not uncommon in our industry. If ¢
or more of our products, services or technologiesevaetermined to infringe a patent held by angplaety, we may be required to stop using,
developing or marketing those products, servicdsainologies, obtain a license from the holderthefpatents or redesign those products,
services or technologies to avoid infringing théepa If we were required to stop using, develogingnarketing certain products, our
business, results of operations and financial cmrdivould be materially harmed. Moreover, if weravenable to obtain required licenses,
may not be able to redesign our products, serdcéschnologies to avoid infringement, which conidterially adversely affect our business,
results of operations or financial condition. Fatiscussion of patent litigation involving us, deasee "Legal Proceedings."

Legislative or regulatory changes, particularly iresponse to adverse financial conditions, could bamaterial adverse effect on o
business.

In recent years, the securities trading industiy, &mparticular, the securities markets have tsdaject to significant regulatory chan
as a result of increasing government and publigtsgr in response to the global economic crisis.

In 2010, Congress passed the Dodd-Frank Act aret tegislation. While certain of its requiremengs/é been implemented, many of
the provisions in Dodd-Frank that impact our maskeguire additional action by the SEC or the CFD&pending on how the SEC and
CFTC interpret and implement these laws, exchaligesurs could be subject to increased competitiod additional costs. It is also poss
that there will be additional legislative changad ahanges in the regulatory environment in whiehoperate our businesses, including in
response to the bankruptcy of MF Global, althoughcannot predict the nature of these changes writiygact on our business at this time.
Actions on any of the specific regulatory issuesently under review in the U.S. and other propssaluld have a material impact on our
business. For a discussion of the regulatory enwient in which we operate and proposed regulatoanges, see "Business—Regulatory
Environment and Compliance."

We and our market participants operate in a higbdyulated industry. Congress, the SEC and othedatgy authorities could impose
legislative or regulatory changes that could adelgrenpact the ability of our market participantsuse our markets. Legislative and
regulatory changes by Congress, the SEC or othetatry authorities could result in the loss alignificant number of market participants
or a reduction in trading activity on our marketsy of which could have a material adverse effecbar business.

Potential conflicts of interest between our *-profit status and our regulatory responsibilitieaay adversely affect our business.

As a forprofit business with regulatory responsibilitidsete may be a conflict of interest between our leguy responsibilities and t
interests of some of our market participants. Aaijufe by us to fulfill our regulatory obligatiomsuld significantly harm our reputation,
increase regulatory scrutiny and adversely affactmisiness, results of operations or financiabéoon.

Our compliance methods might not be effective andymesult in outcomes that could adversely affeat dinancial condition and
operating results.

As the parent company for SROs, we are responfaiblmaintaining exchanges that comply with SEC, CRand our own rules. Our
ability to comply with applicable laws and ruledasgely dependent on our establishment and mannof compliance, audit and reporting
systems, as well as our ability to attract andimedaalified personnel throughout the company. falicies and procedures to identify,
monitor and manage compliance risks may not bg &ffective. Management of legal and regulatori rexquires policies and procedures to
properly monitor, record and verify a large numbktransactions and events. We cannot assure ywtin policies and procedures will
always be effective or that we will always be sissfel in monitoring or evaluating the compliancgks to which we are or may be exposed.

Our ability to implement or amend rules could benlited or delayed because of regulation, which coulefjatively affect our ability to
implement needed changes.

Our subsidiaries registered with the SEC must stiproposed rule changes to the SEC for its reviegy Bn many cases, its approval.
Even where a proposed rule change may be effegtiva filing with the SEC, the SEC retains the righsuspend and disapprove such rule
changes. The SEC review process can be lengthgamnsignificantly delay the implementation of preed rule changes that we believe are
necessary to the operation of our markets. If th€ $fuses to approve a proposed rule change ayslés approval, this could negatively
affect our ability to make needed changes or implarbusiness decisions.

Similarly, the SEC must approve amendments to obsidiaries' certificates of incorporation and lydeas well as
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certain amendments to the certificate of incorporeand bylaws of CBOE Holdings. The SEC may nqirape a proposed amendment or
may delay such approval in a manner that could theda affect our ability to make a desired changhich could prevent or delay us from
improving the operations of our markets or recogmicome from new products. In addition, the CFT&yratay or disapprove CFE rule
changes that are submitted to the CFTC.

Misconduct by our customers or others could harm

Although we perform significant self-regulatory fitions, we run the risk that our Trading Permitdésk, other persons who use our
markets or our employees will engage in fraud bepmisconduct, which could result in regulatorgctions and serious harm to our
reputation. It is not always possible to deter migitict, and the precautions we take to preventatett this activity may not be effective in
all cases. In addition, misconduct by, or failugsparticipants on our exchanges may discouraghirtg on our exchanges, which could
reduce revenues.

Changes in the tax structure affecting us and ouranket participants could have a material adverséeet on our business.

At the federal level, there is a proposal thatscidt repeal of the "60/40 Rule,” which allows metrknakers to pay a blend of capital
gains and ordinary tax rates on their income. litaah, federal and state legislation has beermdced that would impose a new tax on
securities, futures and swap transactions, inctudichange-traded options. If either the propospdal of the "60/40 Rule" or a transaction
tax were to become law, the resulting additions¢$acould have a negative impact on the optionssing and us by making options
transactions more costly to market participantdctvimay reduce trading in options. In addition,esthtates are attempting to increase their
tax revenues by asserting that they have nexusoav&ain companies. If another state were to ssfuisassert nexus against us, we may
experience a higher marginal tax rate.

Any decision to pay dividends on our common stodk ae at the discretion of our board of directoend will depend upon the earnings
our operating subsidiaries. Accordingly, there cé¥e no guarantee that we will pay dividends to otwckholders.

We have paid quarterly dividends since the redrig transaction and initial public offering andend to continue paying regular
quarterly dividends to our stockholders. Howevey;, decision to pay dividends on our common stodkbe at the discretion of the board of
directors, which may determine not to declare dinis at all or at a reduced amount. The boardssrdetation to declare dividends will
depend upon our profitability and financial conalitj contractual restrictions, restrictions impobgdpplicable law and the SEC and other
factors that the board deems relevant. As a holdimgpany with no significant business operationsgsoéwn, CBOE Holdings will depend
entirely on distributions, if any, it may receiver its subsidiaries to meet its obligations ang gigidends to its stockholders. If these
subsidiaries are not profitable, or even if they @and they determine to retain their profits fag irstheir businesses, we will be unable to pay
dividends to our stockholders.

Certain provisions in our organizational document®uld enable the board of directors to prevent @lay a change of control.
Our organizational documents contain provisions ithay have the effect of discouraging, delayingmaventing a change of control of,
or unsolicited acquisition proposals for, us thatakholder might consider favorable. These inelptbvisions:
» prohibiting stockholders from acting by written cent
* requiring advance notice of director nominationd ahbusiness to be brought before a meeting aksimiders
* requiring the vote of majority of the outstandiriaees of common stock to amend the bylaws
» limiting the persons who may call special stockleadtimeeting
In addition, our organizational documents includevgsions that:

»  restrict any person from voting or causing tb&ng of shares of stock representing more than 80&ur outstanding voting
capital stock; and

» restrict any person from beneficially owning s#saof stock representing more than 20% of thetandéng shares of our capital
stock.

Furthermore, our board of directors has the authtwiissue shares of preferred stock in one orenseries and to fix the rights and
preferences of these shares without stockholdeoapp Any series of our preferred stock is likedybe senior to our common stock with
respect to dividends, liquidation rights and, polgsivoting rights. The ability of the board of dators to issue preferred stock also could have
the effect of discouraging unsolicited acquisitmoposals, thus adversely affecting the markeepsfoour common stock.
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In addition, Delaware law makes it difficult foroskholders that have recently acquired a largeéstén a corporation to cause the
merger or acquisition of the corporation againstdirectors' wishes. Under Section 203 of the Datavizeneral Corporation Law, a
Delaware corporation may not engage in any mergether business combination with an interestedkstolder for a period of three years
following the date that the stockholder becamenéerésted stockholder except in limited circumsésnancluding by approval of the
corporation's board of directors.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

Our principal offices are located at 400 South U&eSatreet, Chicago, Illinois 60605. Through ourolrowned subsidiary, Chicago
Options Exchange Building Corporation, we own thi@ding in which our principal offices are locatadd occupy approximately 300,000
square feet of this building. In addition to ouingipal offices, we also lease additional officasp. We lease 23,828 square feet of office
space at 111 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicagooillis0604, which houses our Regulatory Divisiolne Tease on this space expires in 2014
and contains an option to renew for an additiowal years. We lease a 2,881 square foot office &réhdway, New York, New York 10006.
The lease on this space expires in 2017 and insladeption to renew for another five years. Wede?,400 square feet of space outside the
City of Chicago for our disaster recovery facilifyhe lease on that facility expires in August 2@h2 will not be renewed by the Company as
the Company reviews potential locations for itsadtsr recovery facility. Finally, we lease approaiety 2,500 square feet of space in
Secaucus, New Jersey for trading operations. Tdselen that space expires in 2013 and includegtiondo renew for two additional years.

We believe the space we occupy is sufficient totroae current and future needs.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings

As of December 31, 2011 , the Company was subjettet various legal proceedings and claims discubs®w, as well as certain
other legal proceedings and claims that have nen ligly resolved and that have arisen in the @dircourse of business. In the opinion of
management, the ultimate resolution of any of auremt legal proceedings or claims is not expetddddividually or in the aggregate
materially affect our financial condition, resuttsoperations or cash flows.

Index Options Litigation

On November 15, 2006, the Company, The McGraw-Elilinpanies, Inc. ("McGraw-Hill*) and CME Group IndServices, LLC
(substituted for Dow Jones & Co.) ("Dow Jones")eatex] claims in the Circuit Court of Cook Countiinbis against ISE and its parent
company ("ISE"), seeking a declaration to prev&t from offering SPX and DJX options and to prev@@iC from issuing and clearing st
options. ISE filed a lawsuit on November 2, 2006hie United States District Court for the SouthBistrict of New York, seeking a
declaration that the rights asserted by McGraw-&till Dow Jones are preempted by federal law. The Yk action is currently pending,
but has been stayed in light of the lllinois acti@he lllinois court has permanently restrained enpined ISE from listing or providing an
exchange market for the trading of SPX and DJXamystiand enjoined OCC from issuing, clearing oflingtthe exercise of such ISE options.
ISE and OCC appealed this ruling and oral argumeastheard before the lllinois Appellate Court opt8mber 22, 2011. CBOE is now
awaiting a decision from the court.

Patent Litigation
ISE

On November 22, 2006, ISE filed an action in thététhStates District Court for the Southern DigtaENew York claiming that
CBOE's Hybrid trading system infringes ISE's U.&teat No. 6,618,707 ("the '707 patent”). On Jan@4ar2007, CBOE filed an action in
federal court in the Northern District of lllinogeeking a declaratory judgment that the '707 patastnot infringed, not valid and/or not
enforceable against CBOE. The New York case wasfeared to the Northern District of Illinois on dust 9, 2007.

The Court issued a construction of the claims ef 7 patent, on the basis of which CBOE has #fleispositive motion for
noninfringement. On March 2, 2011, the Court grd@BOE's summary judgment motion and entered judgingavor of CBOE. ISE has
appealed this decision, and oral argument was Hesfodte the Federal Circuit on February 6, 20120EBs now awaiting a decision from 1
court.



On October 8, 2010, C2 filed a complaint in fedexalrt in the Northern District of lllinois again§E seeking a
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declaratory judgment that ISE's '707 patent, wigdlirected towards an automated exchange forrtgadiérivative securities, is not infringed,
not valid and not enforceable against C2. The aatias dismissed without prejudice pending the cutcof the ISE v. CBOE appeal
discussed above.

Realtime

In July 2009, Realtime Data, LLC filed a complamthe United States District Court for the East@istrict of Texas claiming that
CBOE, certain other exchanges and the Options Rap®rting Authority (OPRA) infringed four Realtippatents by using, selling or
offering for sale data compression products orisesvallegedly covered by those patents.

Additionally, on May 11, 2010, Realtime filed a cplaint in the same federal court against CBOE, ORRé certain other exchanges
claiming that they infringe another Realtime patentising, selling or offering for sale data congsien and decompression products or
services allegedly covered by that patent. On Augjés2010, Realtime filed a complaint in federalid against CBOE, OPRA and certain
other exchanges alleging that they infringe antamithl Realtime patent by making, using, sellingg/ar offering for sale, one or more
financial data compression and decompression ptedund/or services allegedly covered by that palérse lawsuits have been
consolidated with the prior pending case.

The case has been transfered to the SoutherndDisftiNew York and a trial date has been set fovéyaber 2012.
Last Atlantis Litigation

On November 7, 2005, a complaint was filed by ¢enmtaarket participants against CBOE, three othéioap exchanges and 35 market
maker defendant groups (the "Specialist Defendaimtghe United States District Court for the Nanth District of Illinois. The complaint
alleged that CBOE and the other exchange defendatsed the Specialist Defendants to discrimireagainst the plaintiffs' electronic orde
allowed the Specialist Defendants to violate CBGRtltes and the rules of the SEC, and falsely reptesl and guaranteed that electronically
entered orders would be executed immediately. #igisought unspecified compensatory damagesteetliajunctive relief, attorneys' fees
and other fees and costs.

The Court has dismissed the claims against CBOEeateted judgment in favor of it. The Court, howevas continued the litigation
with respect to certain of the plaintiffs and soofi¢he Specialist Defendants. The plaintiffs wi#l &ble to appeal the dismissal of their claims
against CBOE after the disposal of the remainiags.

Other

As a self-regulatory organization under the jusidn of the SEC, with respect to CBOE and C2, and designated contract market
under the jurisdiction of the CFTC, with respecCi6E, we are subject to routine reviews and inspestby the SEC and the CFTC.

The SEC is investigating CBOE's compliance wittolttigations as a self-regulatory organization uritle federal securities laws. The
Company is cooperating with the investigation, wh& ongoing, and is conducting its own reviewtsfdompliance.

We are also currently a party to various otherllpgaceedings including those already mentionedhad@ment does not believe that
outcome of any of these reviews, inspections oerdégal proceedings will have a material impacbanconsolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Sktolder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities
Unrestricted Common Stock

The Company's unrestricted common stock is listethe NASDAQ Global Select Market under the tradsggibol CBOE. As of
January 26, 2012, there were approximately 349emsldf record of our unrestricted common stock.

The following table sets forth the high and lowesgprices by quarter, since our initial public affg, for shares of our unrestricted
common stock as reported on NASDAQ and cash didsigrer quarter:

Price Range Di\fi:gslr’:ds
Calendar Period High Low per Share
2010
Second Quarter $ 34.1¢ $ 30.7¢ $ —
Third Quarter 32.5( 19.6( 0.1C
Fourth Quarter 25.3(C 19.8: 0.1C
2011
First Quarter 29.71 22.4: 0.1C
Second Quarter 29.4C 23.3: 0.1C
Third Quarter 27.62 21.5¢ 0.1z
Fourth Quarter 28.1¢F 23.5¢ 0.1z
2012 (1)
Through February 21, 2012 28.4¢ 24.4¢ 0.12

(1) On February 7, 2012, the Company's board of direateclared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.12tscper share. The dividend is
payable on March 23, 2012 to stockholders of reepttie close of business on March 2, 2012.

Dividends

Each share of unrestricted common stock and resdrgtock is entitled to receive dividends if, ad ahen declared by the board of
directors of the Company.

The Company’s expectation is to continue to paydéinds, with any such dividend based on prior yeagt income adjusted for
unusual items. The decision to pay a dividend, Maneemains within the discretion of our boardlwéctors and may be affected by various
factors, including our earnings, financial conditicapital requirements, level of indebtednessathdr considerations our board of directors
deems relevant. Future credit facilities, otheufatdebt obligations and statutory provisions niigmt] or in some cases prohibit, our ability to
pay dividends.

As a holding company, the Company's ability to declnd pay dividends in the future with respedistcommon stock will also be
dependent upon the ability of its subsidiariesdg gividends and make payments to the Company wapj#icable corporate law.

Restricted Stock

On January 13, 2010, the Board approved the Ameadddrestated CBOE Holdings, Inc. Long-Term InaenRlan (the "LTIP"). The
board amended and restated the plan, effective tgumiving stockholder approval, which was receigethe Company's May 17, 2011
Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The LTIP provideattan aggregate of 4,248,497 shares of the Cortgpemynmon stock are reserved for
issuance to participants under the LTIP. As of dan31, 2012, the Company had outstanding grantssficted stock covering
1,484,602 shares of its common stock. The restiisteck granted is entitled to participate in aiwdgnds granted on the unrestricted
common stock.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities



None

30




Table of Contents

Use of Proceeds
None

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers

The table below shows the purchases of equity g&=uby the Company in the three months ended mbee 31, 2011 , reflecting the
purchase of unrestricted common stock under thegaogis share repurchase program:

Total Number of

Total Shares Purchased  Approximate Dollar Value
Number of Average as Part of Publicly of Shares that May Yet Be

Shares Price Paid Announced Plans Purchased Under the Plans
Period Purchased per Share or Programs or Programs (1)
October 1, 201 October 31, 2011 329,100 $ 25.4¢ 329,100 $ 76,741,04
November 1, 201- November 30, 2011 383,00( 26.2: 383,00( 66,694,95
December 1, 201- December 31, 2011 524,00( 26.12 524,00( 53,008,07
Totals 1,236,100 ¢ 25.97 1,236,101

(1) On August 2, 2011, the Company announced thétiard of directors had adopted a share repurghlas. Under this plan, the Company
is authorized to repurchase up to $100 milliortsrunrestricted common stock, including on the apenket and in privately negotiated
transactions. There can be no assurance as tathieen of additional shares the Company will repaseh The timing and extent to which the
Company repurchases its shares will depend upoon@mther things, market conditions, share prigejdity targets, regulatory
requirements and other factors. Share repurchaagdencommenced or suspended at any time or fromtth time without prior notice, and
the share repurchase plan does not currently haeg@ration date.

The table below reflects the purchases of equitursiies by the Company in the three months endeceBhber 31, 2011 consisting of
shares surrendered to satisfy employee tax obdigatipon the vesting of restricted stock:

Total Number of Approximate Dollar Value
Total Shares Purchased of Shares that May Yet Be
Number of Average as Part of Publicly Purchased Under the Plan
Shares Price Paid Announced Plans
Period Purchased per Share or Programs or Programs
October 1, 201- October 31, 2011 — — — 3 —
November 1, 201— November 30, 2011 (a) 46,96: 26.92 — —
December 1, 201- December 31, 2011 = = —— —
Totals 46,96: § 26.92 —

(a) Reflects unrestricted common stock surrendirdiae fourth quarter of 2011 to satisfy employéas'obligations upon the vesting of
restricted stock

Stockholder Return Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative togélim provided to stockholders on our unrestrici®ehimon stock since our initial
public offering against the return of the S&P Midce#00 Index and a customized peer group that iesi@ME Group Inc.,
IntercontinentalExchange Inc., NYSE Euronext, THESWAQ OMX Group Inc. and CBOE Holdings. An investmef $100, with
reinvestment of all dividends, is assumed to haenbmade in our unrestricted common stock, thexiade the peer group on June 15, 2010,
and its performance is tracked through Decembe2@1].
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COMPARISON OF 18 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among CBOE Holdings, Inc., the S&P Midcap 400 Index
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* $100 invested on 6/15/10 in stock or 5/31/A@nidex, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.

Copyright© 2012 Standard & Poor's, a division oBTWcGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.

1) @) 7/10 8/10 9/10 10/10 11/10 12/10 111 2/11 3/11 4/11 5/11 6/11 7111 8/11 9/11 10/11 11/11 12/11
CBOE
Holdings,
Inc. 10C 100.1¢ 81.87 64.3¢ 61.97 74.2¢  73.5¢€ 70.9¢ 71.4% 91.8¢ 90.2¢ 83.5¢ 82.0z 76.91 72.0¢ 79.31 76.92 82.1¢« 85.0C 81.6%
S&P
Midcap
400 10C 93.4¢ 99.9C 94.9% 105.7( 109.3t  112.€ 119.9¢ 122.37 128.0% 131.27 134.7% 132.9¢ 130.2¢ 125.6¢ 116.7: 104.3¢ 118.7( 118.3¢ 117.9C
Peer
Group 10C 92.1% 90.6¢ 81.7¢ 86.41 95.32  92.97 101.7¢ 101.4¢ 109.5¢ 105.2% 107.0¢ 102.57 102 101.1% 93.01 87.3¢ 97.0¢ 93.4¢ 90.3¢
(1) Reflects the date of the Company's initial pubffering, June 15, 2010
2 Reflects the value at June 30, 2010
Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table shows selected financial ddtthe Company that should be read together witiCthesolidated Financial
Statements and corresponding notes and "ManageniEstussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operations" included
in ltems 7 and 8 of this Form 10-K:
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Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Income Statement Data:
Total operating revenues (1) $ 508,14: $ 437,10 $ 426,08. $ 416,78 344,27(
Total operating expenses 266,51: 269,76: 248,49° 229,47 207,80
Operating income 241,63. 167,34: 177,58 187,31( 136,46t
Total other income/(expense) (1,54¢) (2,71%) (355) 6,097 3,48¢
Income before income taxes 240,08 164,62: 177,23( 193,40° 139,95:
Income tax provision 100,67¢ 65,227 70,77¢ 78,11¢ 56,78:
Net income $ 139,40t $ 99,39¢ $ 106,45. $ 115,28t 83,16¢
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 136,58: $ 98,16¢ $ 106,45: $ 115,28t 83,16¢
Net income per share allocated to common
stockholders (2)
Basic $ 152 $ 1.0 $ 117 $ 1.27 0.9z
Diluted 1.52 1.0z 1.17 1.27 0.9z
Cash dividends per share paid on Class A and
Common Stock — 1.2¢ — — —
Cash dividends per share post-restructuring and
demutualization 0.44 0.2C — — —
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 327,86¢ $ 254,11 $ 571,94¢ $ 496,13¢ 341,69!
Total liabilities 91,59¢ 78,23¢ 383,81« 114,47¢ 75,32¢
Total stockholders'/members equity 236,27( 175,87 188,13« 381,66( 266,36°
Average daily volume by product (3)
Equity options 2,04¢ 2,27 2,51¢ 2,381 1,99¢
Index options 1,271 1,071 884 1,02¢ 91¢
Options on exchange-traded funds 1,462 1,097 1,10C 1,30¢ 84¢
Total options average daily volume 4,781 4,441 4,50z 4,717 3,76:
Futures 48 17 5 5 4
Total average daily volume 4,82¢ 4,45¢ 4,50¢ 4,72z 3,761
(1) In December 2009, we recognized as revenuel$8dlion of access fees assessed and collect2@f and 2007, which were

(2)

(3)

included in deferred revenue pending the final,-appealable resolution of the Delaware Action.

Net income per share allocated to common stocki®idecalculated by dividing net income for eachhef periods as if th

restructuring transaction had occurred at the mginof the years ended December 31, 2010, 2033 26d 2007.

Average daily volume equals the total contractdedaduring the period divided by the number ofitrgdiays in the perio
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations
General

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financ@idition and Results of Operations ("MD&A") shoblel read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements of the Comijzand the notes thereto included in Item 8 of Ariaual Report on Form 10-K. The
following discussion contains forwelooking statements. Actual results could diffettenally from the results discussed in the forward-
looking statements. See "Risk Factors" and "Forwandking Statements" above.

Overview

The primary business of the Company is the operatfonarkets for the trading of listed options ¢ants on three broad product
categories: 1) the stocks of individual corporagigequity options), 2) various market indexes (indptions) and 3) exchange-traded funds
(options on ETFs) and exchange-traded notes (aptarETNS). We also offer futures and options darks products through a futures
exchange. The Company owns and operates three aliamel exchanges, but reports the results of #satjpns in one reporting segment.
CBOE is our primary market and offers trading fetdd options through a single system that integratectronic trading and traditional open
outcry trading on our trading floor in Chicago. $lvtegration of electronic trading and traditionpkn outcry trading into a single market is
known as our Hybrid trading model. C2, launche®utober 2010, is our all-electronic exchange thsd affers trading for listed options, but
with a different market model and fee schedule BBOE. Finally, CFE, our all-electronic futures baage, offers futures and options on
futures on the CBOE Volatility Index (the VIX Indgxas well as on other products. All of our exchesgperate on our proprietary
technology platform known as CBQftrect.

Restructuring Transaction

On June 18, 2010, CBOE converted from a non-stogsaration owned by its members into a stock cafon that is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CBOE Holdings.

In the consolidated statements of income of CBOKlidgs for the twelve months ended December 310201 2009, net income per
share allocated to common stockholders is calalilayedividing historical net income for the periogdthe weighted average number of
common shares as if the restructuring transactiere wonsummated at the beginning of the period.

Components of Operating Revenues
Transaction Fees

The primary and largest source of operating reveisigansaction fee revenue. Transaction fee revena function of three variables:
(1) exchange fee rates; (2) trading volume; andré3jsaction mix between contract type. Becausbngafees are assessed on a per contract
basis, exchange fee revenue is highly correlatédet@olume of contracts traded on the Companyhanges. While exchange fee rates are
established by the Company, trading volume andéetion mix are primarily influenced by factorsside its control, including price
volatility in the underlying securities and natibaad international economic and political condigo

Revenue is recorded as transactions occur on e-thaie basis. Transaction fee revenue accountétBfé®o , 75.6% and 73.8% of total
operating revenues for the year ended Decembe&t(31], , 2010 and 2009, respectively. The main optairgories traded are equities,
indexes and ETFs. The equity options categorygeflgading in options contracts on the stocksidiviidual companies. The index options
category reflects trading in index options consamt market indexes and on the interest rates®f Treasury securities. ETF options are
baskets of stocks designed to generally track dexinbut which trade like individual stocks.

The Company believes that the number of investasuse options represents a growing proporticdhefotal investing public and th
the growth in the use of options represents a tengr-trend that will continue in the future. Funtimere, we believe significant opportunities
exist to expand the use of options by both institgl and professional investors and for the migredf activity from the over-the-counter
market to exchanges.

While there is no certainty, we expect that thaustd/-wide and Company-specific factors that ctmiied to past volume changes will
continue to contribute to future volume changesréfore, if these same factors continue to existmay experience similar changes in
contract trading volume. However, additional fastoray arise that could offset future increase®mtract trading volume or result in a
decline in contract trading volume, such as newxisting competition or other events. Accordinggent contract trading volume history
may not be an indicator of future contract traditume.
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Access Fees

On July 1, 2010, the Company began charging moifidely to Trading Permit Holders under a new traditgess program. The trading
access program could be impacted by seasonalitynankiet fluctuations that affect trading volume.

Prior to July 1, 2010, access fees representedafsessed to Temporary Members and interim Trdeinmit Holders for the right to
trade at CBOE and dues charged to Members. Theafsessed Temporary Members and interim TradingiPEolders were based on
average lease rates and the number of temporaggapoints and interim trading permits.

In 2009, access fees revenue primarily resultem fite recognition of Temporary Member access fedleated in 2007 and 2008 that
were deferred until the final, non-appealable netsoh of the Delaware Action pursuant to the Setdat Agreement.

Access fees accounted for 13.5% , 9.5% and 10.6%tafoperating revenues for the year ended Deeeib, 2011 , 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Exchange Services and Other Fees

To facilitate trading, the Company offers traditapf space, technology services, terminal and c¢geipment rentals, maintenance
services and telecommunications services. Tradouy &ind equipment rentals are generally on a mtmthonth basis. Facilities, systems
services and other fees are generally monthly &sedh, although certain services are influenceddaujrtg volume or other defined metrics,
while others are based solely on demand.

Market Data Fees

Market data fees represent income derived frons#ife of our transaction information through thei@u Price Reporting Authority
("OPRA") and the Company's market data serviceRRR a limited liability company consisting of mgsentatives of the member
exchanges and is authorized by the SEC to provadsatidated options information. OPRA gathers miadie¢a from various options
exchanges, including CBOE and C2, and, in turrsegiénates this data to third parties who pay fe€&RRA to access the data. We are
members of a management committee with other mepxmranges that administer the OPRA limited lipdigreement. Revenue generated
by OPRA from the dissemination of market data srei among OPRA members according to the relatimeber of trades executed by each
of the member exchanges as calculated each qua@R&A is not consolidated with the Company. A tradesists of a single transaction, but
may consist of several contracts. Each member exg's share of market data revenue generated byA@P¢lculated on a per trade basis
and is not based on the underlying number of cotgra

The Company also derives revenue from the dirdetcfea wide range of current and historical madega.
Regulatory Fees

Regulatory fees are charged to Trading Permit Hel@resupport of our regulatory responsibilitiessalf regulatory organizations under
the Exchange Act. Beginning on March 1, 2009, CBf#@gan charging the Options Regulatory Fee undezhwiieies are based on the number
of customer contracts executed by each firm. Thisce of revenue could decline in the future if thwenber of customer contracts executed
by Trading Permit Holder declines and rates arémaeased or if our costs to perform our regulatesponsibilities stabilize or decrease.

The SEC requires that the revenues derived fromaicesf the fees from our regulatory functions, soof which are included in this
revenue category, and regulatory fines must be fase@gulatory purposes. Expenses related to egulatory functions are included in our
operating expenses, mainly in employee costs.

Other Revenue

The following sub-categories are the primary sosiaferevenue within other revenue:
* Revenue associated with advertisements througkarporate web siteyww.cboe.com
» Rental of commercial space in the lobby of ourdtini;
* Revenue generated through our order routing cdees

» Revenue generated from courses and seminars offexatgh CBOE's Options Institu



» Revenue generated through licensing of VIX prod
* Revenue derived from fines assessed for rule viwigt an

e Other sources of reven
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Components of Operating Expenses

Most of our expenses do not vary directly with adpsin our trading volume except royalty fees aadihg volume incentives. We
remain focused on managing expense growth to drieater operating leverage and continue to exglpp®rtunities to expand our operating
margins.

Employee Costs

Employee costs are our most significant expenseararhgde employee wages, stock-based compensatitentive compensation,
benefits and employer taxes. Salaries and bemefitesent our largest expense category and temel doiven by both our staffing
requirements and the general dynamics of the emqm#ay market. Stock-based compensation is a nonecgsinse related to restricted stock
grants. Stock-based compensation can vary depepditige quantity and fair value of the award ondhte of grant and the related service
period.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense results ftmdepreciation of long-lived assets purchasedfamdmortization of purchased
and internally developed software.

Data Processing

Data processing expense consists primarily of dostsetwork connections to our electronic tradpatforms and market data
customers.

Outside Services

Outside services consist primarily of consulting/eees, which include: the supplementation of staffactivities primarily related to
systems development and maintenance and legalcandraing services.

Royalty Fees

Royalty fees primarily consist of license fees paidproprietary products based on current volumel$ée The Company has licenses
with the owners of the S&P 500 and S&P 100 indettess DJIA, the NASDAQ 100 and the Russell indexes.

Trading Volume Incentives

Trading volume incentives consist of market linkagpenses incurred to send certain orders to etteranges. If a competing
exchange quotes a better price, we route the ces®worder to that exchange and pay certain oh$seciated costs. Regardless of whether
the transaction is traded at our exchanges, ther dlalv potential enhances our overall market pasiand participation and provides cost
savings to customers. Trading volume incentivey Based on the volume of contracts linked to othxehanges and fees charged by other
exchanges.

Travel and Promotional Expenses

Travel and promotional expenses primarily condistdvertising, costs for special events, sponsprehindustry conferences, options
education seminars and travel for company staff.

Facilities Costs

Facilities costs primarily consist of expensestezldo owned and leased properties including reatntenance, utilities, real estate te
and telecommunications costs for the Company.

Other Expenses

Other expenses represent costs we incur on otipensgs necessary to support our operations bubarecluded in the above



categories.
Other Income/(Expense)

Income and expenses incurred through activitiesioetof our core operations are considered nonatipgrand are classified as other
income/(expense). These activities primarily inelilivesting of excess cash, financing activitied iawestments in other business ventures.

» Investment income represents our return fromitaestment of our excess cash. Currently, the Gmpjinvests its excess cash
in highly liquid, short-term investments, such asng money market funds and U.S. Treasury secsritigstorically, we have
also invested our cash in liquid, investment greal@mercial paper and
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corporate bonds. Our highest priority in makingestment decisions is to assure the preservatiprimfipal and secondarily to
retain liquidity to meet projected cash requirerseartd maximize yield within the specified qualitydanaturity restrictions.

* Net loss from investment in affiliates and/or impaénts recorded on investments in affilie

»  Other borrowing costs are associated with a $&lidon senior credit facility, which expired onddember 23, 2011 and was not
renewed.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the Company's consolidated @izdistatements requires the Company to make etinzand judgments that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, reeeamd expenses, and related disclosure of contirgsets and liabilities. On an ongoing b
the Company evaluates its estimates, includingethekated to areas that require a significant le¥@idgment or are otherwise subject to an
inherent degree of uncertainty. The Company bdsestimates on historical experience, observahtrerds in particular areas, information
available from outside sources and various otheuraptions that are believed to be reasonable uhdarircumstances. Information from
these sources form the basis for making judgmebustahe carrying values of assets and liabilitieg may not be readily apparent from
other sources. Actual amounts may differ from thestenates under different assumptions or condition

We have identified the policies below as criti@abtur business operations and the understandingrakesults of operations. The imp
of, and any associated risks related to, theseipslbn our business operations is discussed thoaigManagement's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiiems." For a detailed discussion on the appbecatif these and other accounting policies,
see Note 2 to our consolidated financial statemamdsrelated notes included elsewhere in this AhReaort on Form 10-K.

Revenue Recognition

Transaction fees revenue is considered earnedthpogxecution of the trade recognized on a tradeoasis and presented net of
applicable volume discounts. In the event liquigitpviders prepay for transaction fees, revenuedsgnized based on the attainment of
volume thresholds resulting in the amortizationhaf prepayment over the calendar year. Accessfamue is recognized during the period
the service is provided and assurance of collditals provided. Exchange services and other fegenue is recognized during the period
service is provided. Market data fees from OPRAadiczated based upon the share of total opti@s#ictions cleared for each of the OPRA
members and is received quarterly. Revenue frommauket data services are recognized in the péhiediata is provided. Regulatory fees
are primarily assessed based upon customer catileeired by Trading Permit Holders and are rezeghon a trade-date basis.

Software Development

The Company accounts for software development eogter ASC 350intangibles—Goodwill and Oth€ASC 350). We expense
software development costs as incurred during telnpinary project stage, while capitalizing costsurred during the application
development stage, which includes design, codimgallation and testing activities.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are determined in accordaitbeASC 740,Income Taxe§'ASC 740"), and arise from temporary differences
between the tax basis and book basis of assetsadildies. The Company accounts for income taneder the asset and liability method,
which requires the recognition of deferred tax tssaad liabilities for the expected future tax cmmngences of the events that have been
included in the consolidated financial statemedteder this method, deferred tax assets and lisgsilare determined based on the differences
between the financial statements and tax basessetsaand liabilities using enacted tax ratesfecefor the year in which the differences are
expected to be reversed. The effect of a changgexirates on deferred tax assets and liabilitieedegnized in the period that includes the
enactment date. The Company files tax returnsederfal, state and local income tax purposes. Aatialn allowance is recognized if it is
anticipated that some or all of a deferred taxtassy not be realized.

If the Company considers that a tax position is rerlgkely-than-not" of being sustained upon aubdésed solely on the technical merits
of the position, it recognizes the tax benefit. TTmmpany measures the tax benefit by determiniadaityest amount that is greater than 50%
likely of being realized upon settlement, presuntimag the tax position is examined by the apprdéeiiaxing authority that has full knowlec
of all relevant information. These assessmentdearomplex, and the Company often obtains assistiiom external advisors. To the extent
that the Company's estimates change or the firautcome of these matters is different than thewrts recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax provision in the period inighhsuch determinations are made. Uncertain taitipos are classified as current only
when the Company expects to pay cash within theémetve months. Interest and penalties, if ang,racorded within the provision for
income taxes in
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the Company's consolidated statements of incomasndlassified on the consolidated balance shé#ighe related liability for
unrecognized tax benefits.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@oeleased an update for Accounting Standard €pirg20Comprehensive
Income("ASC 220"). ASC 220 is intended to improve the mequality of financial reporting by increasiniget prominence of items reported
in other comprehensive income (“OCI"), and additityalign the presentation of OCI in financialtstaents prepared in accordance with US
GAAP with those prepared in accordance with Inteomal Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). Artisy now has the option to present
the total of comprehensive income, the componeimgbincome, and the components of other compherncome either in a single
continuous statement of comprehensive income twanseparate but consecutive statements. Regafi@éssapproach, the entity is expec
to present each component of net income alongtaitth net income, each component of other compratenncome along with a total for
other comprehensive income, and a total amourtdomprehensive income. The amendments are effefatiymublic entities for fiscal years,
and interim periods within those years, beginnifigrdDecember 15, 2011. The Company has adopted 3220 and has included the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income as a demadement following the Statement of Income.

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the yeded December 31, 2010
Overview

The following summarizes changes in financial pemance for the year ended December 31, 2011 cowhpar2010.

Percent
2011 2010 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Total operating revenues $ 508.1 % 4371 % 71.C 16.2%
Total operating expenses 266.t 269.¢ (3.3 1.2%
Operating income 241.¢ 167.: 74.: 44.4%
Total other expense (1.5 (2.7 (1.2 (44.9H%
Income before income taxes 240.1 164.¢ 75.5 45.€%
Income tax provision 100.% 65.2 35.8 54.4%
Net income $ 139.. $ 99.4 % 40.C 40.2%
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 1366 $ 98.2 % 38.4 39.1%
Operating income percentage 47.5% 38.2%
Net income percentage 27.2% 22. %
Diluted—net income per share allocated to common
stockholders $ 1.5z § 1.0¢

* The Company's market share of total optionsrestd traded on U.S. exchanges was 26.4% for thegreled December 31,
2011 compared to 28.7% for the year ended DeceBihe2010 .

* Total operating revenues increased due to highasaction fees, access fees and regulatorygedsally offset by decreases in
market data fees and other revenue.

» Total operating expenses decreased primariljtauecreases in employee costs, data processitgijde services and trading
volume incentives, partially offset by increasesl@preciation and amortization and royalty fees.

Significant Events in 2011

The Company and the options industry experiencgldenitrading volumes during 2011. We believe tlyhéi volume was achieved ¢
to volatility and movements in the financial maskatising primarily out of domestic and internatibuncertainties surrounding certain
political events such as the continued budget sguiVashington, D.C. and the economic unrest amdreign debt issues in Europe.

Pursuant to an employment agreement with a seramugive, the Company recorded $3.7 million in saxee expense for payments in
connection with his departure from the company chtis included in employee costs in the Consolidlate
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Statement of Income for the period ended Decembge?@®11.

The Company recorded income tax expense of $4lbmtb reserve for potential additional tax liatids as a result of an advisory
opinion from New York State taxing authorities igdun the third quarter, which attempts to extdradtate's taxing power over certain
electronic transactions and other fees of out-atfesexchanges going back to 2007.

Operating Revenues

Total operating revenues for the year ended DeceBthe2011 were $508.1 million , an increase of.8#illion , or 16.2% , compared
with the prior year. The following summarizes chesgn total operating revenues for the year endsgkBber 31, 2011 compared to 2010.

Percent
2011 2010 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Transaction fees $ 3731 $ 330.: % 42.¢ 13.C%
Access fees 68.7 41.4 27.% 66.C %
Exchange services and other fees 18.2 16.€ 1.3 7.2%
Market data fees 19.€ 21.: (1.9 (6.71%
Regulatory fees 19.2 5.8 3.9 25.€%
Other revenue 9.0 11.€ (2.9 (24.2%
Total operating revenues $ 508.1 $ 4371 $ 71.C 16.2%

Transaction Fees

Transaction fees increased 13.0% to $373.1 miftionthe year ended December 31, 2011 , represerintyo of total operating
revenues, compared with $330.3 million for the pygiear period, or 75.6% of total operating revendéss increase was largely driven by a
4.4% and 8.3%ncrease in the average transaction fee per cdrgrattrading volume, respectively. The increasavierage transaction fee
contract is impacted by the mix of contracts traded trading volume. The following summarizes teantion fees by product for 2011
compared to 2010.

Percent
2011 2010 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Equities $ 84.5 % 100.¢ $ (16.9) (16.2%
Indexes 197.2 159.¢ 37.¢ 23.£%
Exchange-traded funds 74.4 62.7 11.5 18.7%
Total options transaction fees 356.( 322.% 33.c 10.2%
Futures 17.1 7.€ 9l5 125.C%
Total transaction fees $ 3731 $ 3305 $ 42.¢ 13.C%

Trading Volume

The Company's average daily trading volume ("ADW3s 4.83 million contracts in 2011, an increas8.8% compared with 4.46
million for 2010. Total trading days in 2011 ar@{l® were two hundred fifty-two. The Company expecid volume increases of 33.3% and
18.7% in options on exchange-traded funds and ing¢ons, respectively. These increases were fiartifiset by a decrease in equity
options volume of 9.9% . The Company continuedxmeeence significant growth in futures primarilgivan by futures contracts on the VIX
index. The following summarizes changes in totdlitng volume and ADV by product for 2011 compae@@10.
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2011 2010 Volume ADV
Percent Percent
Volume ADV Volume ADV Change Change
(in millions)

Equities 516.1 2.0t 572.% 2.217 (9.9% (9.9%
Indexes 320.¢ 1.2 270.( 1.07 18.7% 18.7%
Exchange-traded funds 368.4 1.4¢€ 276.% 1.1C 33.2% 33.2%
Total options contracts 1,204.¢ 4.7¢ 1,119.( 4.44 7.7% 77%
Futures contracts 12.C 0.0t 4.4 0.0z 172.1% 172.1%
Total contracts 1,216. 4.8t 1,123.4 4.4¢ 8.2% 8.2%

Average transaction fee per contract

The average transaction fee per contract was $0r30311, an increase of 4.4% compared with $0i@2010. Average transaction f
per contract represents transaction fees dividettay contracts. In general, the Company facesimoad downward pressure on transaction
fees in the markets in which we compete.

The following summarizes average transaction feepptract by product for 2011 compared to 2010 .

Percent

2011 2010 Change
Equities $ 0.16: % 0.17¢€ (7.4%
Indexes 0.61¢ 0.591 42%
Exchange-traded funds 0.20z 0.227 (11.0%
Total options average transaction fee per contra 0.29¢ 0.28¢ 24%
Futures 1.41¢ 1.72¢ (17.6%
Total average transaction fee per contract $ 0307 $ 0.29¢ 4.4%

There are a number of factors that have contribtéke increase in our average transaction feeqaract in 2011 compared to 2010.
These include:

Product mi—The increase in the average transaction fee parammeflects a shift in the volume mix by produgxchange-
traded funds and indexes accounted for 30.3% ar®¥%@6f total contracts traded in 2011 , respedfivieldex options represent
the Company's highest options average transaa®pédr contract which coupled with the volume iaseecontributed to the
increase in the total average transaction fee gatract. The Company also experienced significamivth in futures, which
generates our highest total average transactiopdieeontract.

Premium index produc— Contract volume in premium index products increak&d% in 2011 compared with 2010 , primarily
due to a 56.9% and 12.9% increase in VIX and SR¥0p, respectively. As a percentage of total indptions volume for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, SPX anaptiEns accounted f61.7% and 30.6% , respectively, and 64.9% and
23.1% , respectively. As a percentage of totabxmajations transaction fees for the years ended mbee 31, 2011 and 2010,
SPX and VIX options accounted for 65.6% and 27.fé&spectively, and 70.0% and 18.8% , respectively.

Multiply-listed options fee cap for Clearing Trading Perialders —n January 2011, the Company instituted a fee cap o
ransaction fees in all products except propriepmoducts. In the aggregate, transaction fees vappead at $75,000 per month
per Clearing Trading Permit Holder, except thataiarfees did not count towards the cap. We belibedmplementation of the
multiply-listed fee cap contributed to the reduntio the average transaction fee per contractdtn bquity options and
exchange-traded funds.

CBOE proprietary products sliding scale for Cleayifirading Permit Holders—n January 2011, the Company instituted a
sliding scale for transaction fees in CBOE propigiproducts. Clearing Trading Permit Holder prefaiy transaction fees in
proprietary products in a month were reduced preia Clearing Trading Permit Holder reaches cexalnme thresholds in
multiply-listed options on CBOE in a month. Therstard Clearing Trading Permit Holder proprietagnsaction fee in CBOE
Proprietary Products will be reduced for Clearingding Permit Holders that executed at least 3Thg@htracts but less than
1,500,000 contracts in multiply-listed options o0B@E in a month, excluding contracts executed in Alidt incurred the AIM
Execution Fee. We believe the implementation ofsliténg scale contributed to the increase in indefume.
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We have and will continue to change our fees irftifigre in light of the competitive pressures im sudustry. These future fee changes
may increase or decrease our average transactgrefecontract. Our average transaction fee mayiatsease or decrease based on changes
in trading patterns of market-makers and order-fioaviders, which are based on factors not in amtrol.

At December 31, 2011 , there were approximatelytamared CBOE clearing firms, two of which cleasedombined 48% of our
billings collected through the OCC in 2011 . Thetrargest clearing firm accounted for approximatdo of our billings collected through
the OCC. No one affiliate of either of the top talearing firms represented more than 15% of thagmae in 2011 or 2010. Should a clearing
firm withdraw from CBOE, we believe the affiliat@gion of that firm's trading activity would likeltyansfer to another clearing firm.

The two largest clearing firms mentioned aboverdlea majority of the marketaker sides of transactions at CBOE, C2 and aif
the U.S. options exchanges. If either of thesedimware to withdraw from the business of market-malearing and market-makers were
unable to make new clearing arrangements, thislamelate significant disruption to the U.S. optiomarkets, including ours.

Access Fees

Access fees for the year ended December 31, 2@tdased to $68.7 million from $41.4 million in tbemparable prior year period,
representing 13.5% and 9.5% of total operatingnmege for 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

Subsequent to the restructuring transaction atidlipiublic offering, a new access fee structure waplemented and access fees under
the new structure were assessed to Trading Pemiders beginning on July 1, 2010. Prior to Jul@10, the Company only charged access
fees to Temporary Members and participants intterim trading permit program. Under the curremigoam, the Company charges monthly
access fees to all Trading Permit Holders.

In 2011, the Company implemented a sliding scalerfarket-maker trading permits. The sliding scatevfsles market-markers a
reduced rate if they commit to a minimum numbetrafling permits for the calendar year.

Exchange Services and Other Fees

Exchange services and other fees for the year eddedmber 31, 2011 increased 7.9% to $18.2 mifliom $16.9 million in the
comparable period in the prior year. The increag@imarily due to the increase in volume and @neiase in rates for customers locating
servers in close proximity to the Company's setvers

Market Data Fees

Market data fees decreased 6.7% to $19.9 milliothfe year ended December 31, 2011 from $21.3anill the prior year. Market
data fees represent income derived from OPRA alsasehe Company's market data services. OPRA antpb@ny market data fees for the
years ended 2011 and 2010 w$12.9 million and $7.0 million and $15.6 millionc&5.7 million , respectively. OPRA income is afited
through OPRA based on each exchange's share btledaed options transactions. The Company's shfaDdPRA income for the period
ended December 31, 2011 decreased to 21.4% frad@f2er the same period in 2010 as a result of acdee in the Company's share of total
cleared options transactions. The Company's mddtetservices provide users with current and héstboptions and futures data. The
increase in the Company's market data fees is phintue to the introduction of new market datadarots in 2011.

Regulatory Fees

Regulatory fees increased 25.6% for the year e@féd to $19.2 million from $15.3 million in the sarperiod in the prior year. The
increase in regulatory fees was primarily due ghhr trading volume and an increase in the ratasgeld for regulatory functions as
compared to the same period in 2010.

Other Revenue

Other revenue was $9.0 million for the year endeétiZzompared with $11.9 million for the compargiéeiod in 2010, representing a
decrease of $2.9 million . In the fourth quarte2610, the Company recognized $4.4 million of pperiod transaction fees to adjust for
coding errors made by a CBOE exchange particigdm.coding errors were identified through a revemmducted by the Company's
regulatory division. Excluding the $4.4 millionhet revenue increased by $1.5 million. This inceeaas primarily due to increased licens
revenues for the VIX methodology and other miscetaus revenue.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses decreased $3.3 milliorL,2% , to $266.5 million for the year ended 2&bin $269.8 millionin the year ag



period. This decrease was primarily due to loweplegee costs, data processing, outside servicesaditg

41




Table of Contents

volume incentives, partially offset by higher depation and amortization and royalty fees. Expenigeseased to 52.5% of total operating
revenues in the year ended 2011 compared with 6ih7B& same period in 2010.

The following summarizes changes in operating esesffor the year ended December 31, 2011 compai2@ilD.

Percent
2011 2010 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Employee costs $ 1045 % 1062 % @.7) (1.6)%
Depreciation and amortization 34.1 29.¢ 4.2 14.C%
Data processing 17.¢ 19.5 (1.6 (8.2%
Outside services 27.C 31.2 (3.9 (12.5%
Royalty fees 47.¢ 41.4 6.4 15.5%
Trading volume incentives 14.2 21.:2 (7.2 (33.9%
Travel and promotional expenses 9.8 9.€ 0.2 2.1%
Facilities costs 5.4 5.8 (0.9 (6.9%
Other expense 5.5 4.8 0.€ 12.2%
Total operating expenses $ 2665 $ 269.8 $ 3.9 (1.2%

Employee Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2011 , employés wese $104.5 million , or 20.6% of total opergthevenues, compared with
$106.2 million , or 24.3% of total operating reveapin the same period in 2010. This representiteease of $1.7 million , or 1.6% . The
decrease was primarily attributed to a reductiostatk-based compensation of $8.2 million . In 2048 Company recorded an expense of
$20.8 million consisting of the recognition of $Trllion and $13.0 million of stock-based compeiwateflecting: (a) the recurring
recognition of expense due to the awarding of iett stock to employees and (b) the acceleratempretion of expense for certain
executives due to provisions contained in agreesmegfarding their employment, respectively. Stoakdal compensation expense for 2011
included $12.2 million and $0.5 milliareflecting: (a) the recurring recognition of expemkie to the awarding of restricted stock to emgxée
and (b) the accelerated recognition of expensdifectors that left the board in May 2011. Recgritock-based compensation increabéd
million over the prior year due to the current pdrieflecting twelve months of expense comparesiX@and a half months in the prior year.
The decrease in stock-based compensation wasllyaoffaet by increases in accrued incentive conga¢ion, which is aligned with the
Company's performance, and an increase in seveexpenses of $3.7 million due to the departure s#rdor executive pursuant to his
employment agreement with the Company.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased by $4.%aniko $34.1 million for the year ended Decembé&r 2011 compared with $29.9
million for the same period in 2010, primarily ®dfting additions to fixed assets placed in serwvic@011 and 2010. With the launch of C2 on
October 29, 2010, assets totaling approximately4gdilion were reclassified from construction asuaftware in progress to furniture and
equipment and data processing and other softwespectively. The depreciation expense for thesstatstaled $5.4 million and $0.8 million
in 2011 and 2010, respectively. In addition tolthench of C2, the Company has purchased systerds/aes and software to enhance sys!
functionality and expand capacity. Depreciation anmbrtization charges represented 6.7% and 6.8%tafoperating revenues for the years
ended 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Data Processing

Data processing expenses decreased $1.6 milligh2® million for the year ended December 31, 2€drhpared with $19.5 million in
the prior-year period, representing 3.5% and 4.5%tal operating revenues in the years ended 20112010, respectively. The decrease in
data processing expenses is primarily due to uggradhardware technology allowing for reduced itesiance costs, fewer subscriptions to
external data resources due to migration from apgary to electronic trading and growth in exteresiranet vendors/connectivity, which
reduced managed network costs.

Outside Services

Expenses related to outside services decreaset¥t8 fillion for the year ended 2011 from $31.2lionil in the prior-year period and
represented 5.4% and 7.1% of total operating reegmespectively. The $3.9 million decrease pritpaeflected a reduction in legal and



consulting fees.
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The Company received an insurance reimbursemetedat expenses of $0.9 million for the year enBedember 31, 2010.
Royalty Fees

Royalty fees for the year ended December 31, 204ré %47.8 million compared with $41.4 milliéor the prior year period, an incre:
of $6.4 million . This increase was the direct teetihigher trading volume in CBOE's licensed imd@oducts in 2011 compared with the
same period in 2010. Royalty fees represented add®.5% of total operating revenues for the yeaded 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Trading Volume Incentives

Trading volume incentives decreased $7.1 millio1d.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2€drhpared to $21.3 million for
the same period a year ago, representing 2.8% .86 df total operating revenues in the years ei2@4d and 2010, respectively. The
decrease was primarily due to a modification indhteria for contracts qualifying for certain quigyrbased fee waivers.

Operating Income

As a result of the items above, operating incom20ihl was $241.6 million compared to $167.3 millier2010, an increase of $74.3
million .

Other Expense
Net Loss from Investment in Affiliates

Net loss from investment in affiliates was $0.8lioril for the year ended December 31, 2011 compaitd$2.3 million for the same
period in the prior year. The loss in 2011 reflddiee Company's share of the operating loss ofdbigrading Systems, LLC and the
impairment of the carrying value of our investmienNSX Holdings, Inc. The loss in 2010 primarilypresented an impairment in our
investment in OneChicago of $1.6 million.

Other Borrowing Costs

On December 23, 2008, the Company entered intoiarseredit facility with three financial instituths. The credit agreement expired
on December 23, 2011 and was not renewed. Theteredflected the payment of commitment fees andrazation of deferred financing
costs associated with the credit facility whicratetd $0.9 million for the years ended Decembe281,1 and 2010. There were no borrowings
against the credit facility in 2011 or 2010.

Income before Income Taxes

As a result of the items above, income before iretemes in 2011 was $240.1 million compared to $.64llion in 2010, an increase
of $75.5 million .

Income Tax Provision

For the year ended December 31, 2011 , the incarprbvision was $100.7 million compared with $6&million for the same period
2010. This increase was directly related to higheome before income taxes and an increase inftbetige tax rate. The effective tax rate
was 41.9% and 39.6% for the years ended Decembh@031 and 2010, respectively. The higher rate griignreflects the impact of an
increase in the lllinois tax rate effective Janukr011 and a charge taken of $4.2 million tomeséor potential additional tax liabilities as a
result of an advisory opinion from New York Stadgihg authorities issued in the third quarter, wahattempted to extend the state's taxing
power over certain electronic transactions andrdées of out-of-state exchanges going back to 20B&se increases were partially offset by
current and prior years income tax credits for aede and development costs and a reduction in ef@ried Illinois apportionment factor ra
In December 2011, the State of lllinois enactealxabill which resulted in a reduction of statutagyportionment rates assigned to the
Company. The statutory apportionments affect atl-pbysical floor receipts attributed to matchinggeution and clearing transactions. The
change in apportionment rate resulted in a $0.¥amiteduction in deferred tax liabilities.

Net Income

As a result of the items above, net income allat&aecommon stockholders in 2011 was $136.6 miliompared to $98.2 million in



2010, an increase of $38.4 million . Basic andtdidunet income per share allocated to common stid&ls were $1.52 and $1.03 for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, rasgect

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to the yedeed December 31, 2009
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Overview

The following summarizes changes in financial pemfance for the year ended December 31, 2010 cohpai2009.

Percent
2010 2009 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Total operating revenues $ 4371 % 426.1 % 11.C 2.6%
Total operating expenses 269.¢ 248.t 21.: 8.€%
Operating income 167.: 177.€ (10.9 (5.8%
Total other expense (2.7) (0.9 2.3 575.(%
Income before income taxes 164.€ 177.2 (12.€) (7.)%
Income tax provision 65.2 70.€ (5.6) (7.9%
Net income $ 994 % 106« $ (7.0 (6.€)%
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 98z % 106« $ (8.2 (7.7%
Operating income percentage 38.2% 41.7%
Net income percentage 22. 1% 25.(%
Diluted—net income per share allocated to common
stockholders $ 1.0 $ 1.17

e The Company's market share of total optionsreaitg traded on U.S. exchanges was 28.7% for thegreled December 31,
2010 compared to 31.4% for the year ended DeceB1he2009.

» Total operating revenues increased due to highaséiction fees, market data fees and other revpatt@lly offset by decreas
in access fees and exchange services and other fees

* In 2009, the Company recorded revenue of $38lIBmin access fees and $2.1 million of expensa aesult of the final, non-
appealable resolution of the Delaware Action punstmthe Settlement Agreement.

e Total operating expenses increased primarilytduecreases in employee costs and royalty fessialy offset by decreases in
trading volume incentives and data processing costs

* Total other expense increased primarily dudéorecognition of an impairment in the Companyw®aiment in OneChicago of
$1.6 million and a reduction in interest income.

Significant Events in 2010

On October 29, 2010, C2, the Company's new all@leic exchange, initiated operations. C2 operateter a separate exchange
license, with its own board of directors, rulespiectivity, systems architecture and access streic2 employs a maker-taker fee schedule
and a modified price-time algorithm for multi-listelasses.

On July 1, 2010, the Company began charging morfigely to Trading Permit Holders under a new traditmess program.

On June 18, 2010, the Company finalized the refstrung transaction and settled all obligations pard to the Settlement Agreement,
including the payment of $300 million to Exerciseiber Claimants.

On June 18, 2010, CBOE Holdings declared and pajkaial dividend of $113.4 million following thesuance of the Class A comn
stock in the restructuring transaction and Clag®m®Bmon stock pursuant to the Settlement Agreement.

The initial public offering of 13,455,000 sharesusirestricted common stock, including 2,085,774 ehaf unrestricted common stock
sold by the selling stockholders, for a price 09 $® per share, was completed on June 18, 201(rieteds to the Company after deduc
underwriter's fees and commissions and other kktpenses were $301.2 million.

On June 15, 2010, trading of CBOE Holdings unretgd common stock commenced on the NASDAQ Globlgcs#larket under the
trading symbol CBOE.

Operating Revenues



Total operating revenues for the year ended DeceBthe2010 were $437.1 million , an increase of.@illion, or 2.6%, compared
with the prior year. The following summarizes chesin total operating revenues for the year ended
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December 31, 2010 compared to 2009.

Percent
2010 2009 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Transaction fees $ 330.5 % 314t % 15.¢ 5.C%
Access fees 41.4 45.1 (3.7 (8.2%
Exchange services and other fees 16.€ 22.¢ (5.7) (25.29%
Market data fees 21.: 20.t 0.8 3.8%
Regulatory fees 5.8 15.2 0.1 0.7%
Other revenue 11.€ 8.2 3.7 45.1%
Total operating revenues $ 4371 $ 426.1 $ 11.C 2.6%

Transaction Fees

Transaction fees increased 5.0% to $330.3 milliwrtHe year ended December 31, 2010 , represerhif@§o of total operating
revenues, compared with $314.5 million for the pyiear period, or 73.8% of total operating reven{dss increase was largely driven by a
6.1% increase in average transaction fee per adrgeatially offset by a decrease in trading volushé.1%. The following summarizes
transaction fees by product for 2010 compared 6920

Percent
2010 2009 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Equities $ 100.¢ $ 1152 $ (14.€) (12.9%
Indexes 159.¢ 126.¢ 33.C 26.1%
Exchange-traded funds 62.7 70.€ (7.9 (11.29%
Total options transaction fees 322.7 312.2 10.t 3.4%
Futures 7.6 2.3 5.3 230.4%
Total transaction fees $ 3305 $ 3145 $ 15. 5.C %

Trading Volume

The Company's average daily trading volume ("ADW3gs 4.46 million contracts in 2010, down 1.1% canepl with 4.51 million for
2009. Total trading days in 2010 and 2009 werehwadred and fifty-two. The following summarizes gfaes in total trading volume and
ADV by product for 2010 compared to 2009.

2010 2009 Volume ADV
Percent Percent
Volume ADV Volume ADV Change Change
(in millions)

Equities 572.% 2.2 634.7 2.52 (9.8% (9.8%
Indexes 270.( 1.07 222.¢ 0.8¢ 21.2% 21.2%
Exchange-traded funds 276.% 1.1C 277.% 1.1C (0.9% (0.9%
Total options contracts 1,119.( 4.44 1,134.¢ 4.5(C (1.4% (1.9%
Futures contracts 4.4 0.0z 1.2 0.01 266.71 % 266.1%
Total contracts 1,123.4 4.4¢ 1,136.( 4.51 (1.2)% (1.2)%

Average transaction fee per contract

The average transaction fee per contract was $0r2®2d10, an increase of 6.1% compared with $0i@722009. Average transaction f
per contract represents transaction fees dividettay contracts. The following summarizes averagesaction fee per contract by produc
2010 compared to 2009.
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Percent

2010 2009 Change
Equities $ 0.17¢ $ 0.181 (2.9%
Indexes 0.591 0.567 4.2%
Exchange-traded funds 0.227 0.25¢ (11.0%
Total options transaction fee per contract 0.28¢ 0.27¢ 4.7 %
Futures 1.72: 1.98¢ (13.9%
Total average transaction fee per contract $ 0.29¢ % 0.27i 6.1%

There are a number of factors that have contribtgéke increase in our average transaction feeqeract in 2010 compared to 2009.
These include:

Product mi— The increase in the average transaction fee paramtmeflects a shift in the volume mix by produatlexes
accounted for 24.2% and 19.6% of total optionsemts in 2010 and 2009, respectively. This prodattgory represents the
Company's highest-margin option product, and itame contributed to the increase in the total ayetsansaction fee per
contract.

Premium index produc— Contract volume in premium products increased ih(2€bmpared with 2009, primarily due to a
13.2% and 87.4% increase in SPX and VIX optiorspeetively. As a percentage of total index optioolsime for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, SPX and VIX mptacounted for 64.9% and 23.1%, respectively 686 and 15.0%,
respectively. As a percentage of total index oggivansaction fees for the years ended Decemb@(030, and 2009, SPX and
VIX options accounted for 70.0% and 18.8%, respetti and 73.3% and 12.4%, respectively.

New order typ—In 2010, CBOE implemented a new order type, refetoeas "Professional." The purpose of the newrdaggee
is to distinguish between those public customeerdouted to CBOE that are for non-professiomdgirinvestors and those
public customer orders that are for persons otiestihat have access to information and technadleglenables them to
professionally trade listed options in the samemeatas a broker-dealer. In the prior year, CBOEidcharge transaction fees
for these types of orders as they were includeterorder type "Customer."

Impact of clearing firm sliding sce— CBOE has a program that, based on attainment tdinarolume levels, allows clearing
firms to be assessed reduced transaction feeswathpecific month. The program provides for a céidua of transaction fees at
five distinct volume levels. Each level achievedvides a further reduction in transaction fees. @learing firm sliding scale
applies to clearing firms' proprietary orders ihpmbducts except for certain excluded orders.tReryear ended December 31,
2010, the number of transactions that occurred@ar price on the clearing firm sliding scalereased compared to the prior-
year period due to an increase in permit holdeadifging for the reduced fees, an increase in thmer of contracts traded |
those permit holders and an increase in the nuofb@ntracts traded by the permit holders achiettreghighest level of
reduced fees. We believe the increase in qualifpirgnit holders and contracts qualifying for thegést fee reduction negative
impacted average transaction fee per contractnergeand was the primary contributor to the deséa the per contract fee
received for equities.

99 or less contracts-Effective May 2009, CBOE waived transaction feasciagstomer orders of 99 contracts or less in the
exchange-traded fund category. We believe the wateatract fees were a contributing factor to #duction of average
transaction fee per contract for exchange-tradadsdor the year ended December 31, 2010 as cothpmtbe same period in
20009.

Access Fees

Access fees for the year ended December 31, 20¥@aked to $41.4 million from $45.1 million in tbemparable prior year period,
representing 9.5% and 10.6% of total operatingrregs for 2010 and 2009, respectively.

A new access fee structure was implemented andgséees under the new structure were assesseddmdPermit Holders beginning
on July 1, 2010. Prior to July 1, 2010, the Compamnly charged access fees to Temporary Membergpanidipants in the interim trading
permit program. Under the new program, the Compdmayges monthly access fees to all Trading Perwiéis.

In 2009, access fees revenue primarily resultem fite recognition of $38.3 million in Temporary Mieen access fees due to the final,
non-appealable resolution of the Delaware Actiorspant to the Settlement Agreement and $5.8 milhanterim trading permit revenue.
The $38.3 million includes $24.1 million of feedleoted in 2008 and 2007, included in
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deferred revenue at December 31, 2008, pendin fina-appealable resolution of the Delaware Acpansuant to the Settlement
Agreement. These amounts were partially offseth9 #illion paid by CBOE to compensate Membersufdeased memberships in
accordance with the interim trading permit progr&BOE operated the interim trading permit progrard Essor compensation plan from
July 2008 until the demutualization in June 2010.

Exchange Services and Other Fees

Exchange services and other fees for the year eddedmber 31, 2010 decreased 25.2% to $16.9 mfllaom $22.6 million in the
comparable period in the prior year. The decreasepcimarily be attributed to the elimination oflbfid electronic quoting fees on January 1,
2010, which totaled a net assessed amount of $Bi@dmfor the year ended December 31, 2009. Tmeaiader of the decrease was primarily
due to an overall reduction in fees charged foa datvices provided by exchanges and other infeoma&endors to exchange participants due
to a reduction in demand for the services.

Market Data Fees

Market data fees increased 3.9% to $21.3 milliartlie year ended December 31, 2010 from $20.5anillh the same period in the
prior year. Market data fees represent income ddritom OPRA as well as the Company's market dataces. OPRA and Company market
data fees were $15.6 million and $5.7 million, etjvely, and $19.1 million and $1.4 million, respeely, for the years ended 2010 and
2009, respectively. OPRA income is allocated thto@PRA based on each exchange's share of totahsgtiansactions cleared. The
Company's share of OPRA income for the period efzember 31, 2010 decreased to 25.9% from 30.8%hdéosame period in 2009 due
a decrease in total options transactions clearetsmptions exchanges. The Company's market éatéces provide users with current and
historical options and futures data. The increagbe Company's market data fees is due to thedattion of new market data products in
first quarter of 2010.

Regulatory Fees

Regulatory fees increased 0.7% for the year enG&@ ® $15.3 million from $15.2 million in the saperiod in the prior year. As a
percent of total operating revenues, regulatorg seounted for 3.5% and 3.6% in 2010 and 200pentively.

Other Revenue

Other revenue was $11.9 million for the year er@l@t) compared with $8.2 million for the compargiéeiod in 2009, representing an
increase of $3.7 million. In the fourth quarter26fL0, the Company recognized $4.4 million of pperiod transaction fees to adjust for
coding errors made by a CBOE exchange particifdr.coding errors were indentified through a revemnducted by the Company's
regulatory division.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased $21.3 millmmB,.6%, to $269.8 million for the year ended 26bon $248.5 million in the year
ago period. This increase was primarily due to &ighmployee costs, depreciation and amortizatiohrayalty fees, partially offset by a
decrease in trading volume incentives. Expensasased to 61.8% of total operating revenues iry¢ae ended 2010 compared with 58.3%
in the same period in 2009.

The following summarizes changes in operating egeeffior the year ended December 31, 2010 compau2aD0.
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Percent
2010 2009 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Employee costs $ 1062 $ 845 % 21.7 25.7%
Depreciation and amortization 29.¢ 27.t 2.4 8.7%
Data processing 19.5 20.t (1.0 (4.9%
Outside services 31.2 30.7 0.t 1.€%
Royalty fees 41.4 33.1 8.3 25.1%
Trading volume incentives 21.:2 28.€ 7.3 (25.5%
Travel and promotional expenses 9.6 10.c (0.7) (6.8%
Facilities costs 5.8 5.€ 0.2 3.€%
Exercise Right appeal settlement — 2.1 (2.7 (100.0%
Other expense 4.9 5.€ (0.7) (12.5%
Total operating expenses $ 269.6 § 2485 § 21.t 8.6 %

Employee Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2010, employes aese $106.2 million , or 24.3% of total operatirgenues, compared with $84.5
million , or 19.8% of total operating revenuesthie same period in 2009. This represents an ine@@$21.7 million , or 25.7% . The
increase was primarily attributed to stock-basedmensation expense of $20.8 million and increasedrance expense of $0.6 million from
targeted staff reductions. The $20.8 million coesif the recognition of $7.8 million and $13.0limn of stock-based compensation
reflecting: (a) the recurring recognition of expemsie to the awarding of restricted stock to emggyand (b) the accelerated recognition of
expense for certain executives due to provisiomsaioed in agreements regarding their employmespectively.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased by $2.4anito $29.9 million for the year ended Decembgr 3010 compared with $27.5
million for the same period in 2009, primarily mdting additions to fixed assets placed in serwic2010 and 2009. When C2 began
operations on October 29, 2010, assets totalingpappately $24.4 million were reclassified from sbruction and software in progress to
furniture and equipment and data processing aref stbftware, respectively. The depreciation expénsthese assets totaled $0.8 million in
2010. The remaining increase in depreciation wamagily attributable to fixed asset additions farrghases of systems hardware and soft
to enhance system functionality and expand capdR#preciation and amortization charges represeh&¥ and 6.5% of total operating
revenues for the years ended 2010 and 2009, résglgct

Data Processing

Data processing expenses decreased $1.0 milli#hdd million for the year ended December 31, 2€d@pared with $20.5 million in
the prior-year period, representing 4.5% and 4.8%tal operating revenues in the years ended 20802009, respectively. The decrease in
data processing expenses was primarily due to dpgrim hardware technology allowing for reducedmegiance costs, fewer subscriptior
external data resources due to migration from apgary to electronic trading and growth in exteresiranet vendors/connectivity, which
reduced managed network costs.

Outside Services

Expenses related to outside services increasedllt@ $nillion for the year ended 2010 from $30.7lionil in the prior-year period and
represented 7.1% and 7.2% of total operating reegmespectively. The $0.5 million increase pritgaeflected higher legal, accounting and
auditing expenses partially offset by a decreasmirsulting fees.

The Company received insurance reimbursementedal expenses of $0.9 million for the years endedenber 31, 2010 and 2009.
Royalty Fees

Royalty fees expense for the year ended Decembh&03D was $41.4 million compared with $33.1 milli@r the prior year period, an
increase of $8.3 million , or 25.1% . This increases directly related to an increase in tradinguwa in CBOE's licensed options products
and a fee increase on certain licensed index ptedacthe year ended 2010 compared with 2009. Rojees represented 9.5% and 7.8% of



total operating revenues for the years ended 20d®609, respectively.

Trading Volume Incentives
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Trading volume incentives decreased $7.3 millio2a&.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2€dfipared to $28.6 million for
the prior year period, representing 4.9% and 6.7%tal operating revenues in the years ended 20002009, respectively. The decrease
reflects a reduction of $8.2 million from the markekage program, reflecting a reduction in cuséorarders routed to CBOE and changes in
fees for this program implemented in 2010, pastiaffset by a $0.9 million increase for an inceatprogram for market-makers related to
Penny Pilot classes that increased due to the highding volume in those classes under the Peilayg?ogram.

Facilities Costs

Facilities costs for the year ended December 310 2¢ere $5.8 million , an increase of $0.2 millmsncompared to $5.6 million in
2009. Facilities costs represented 1.3% of totarajing revenues for the years ended 2010 and 2009.

Exercise Right Appeal Settlement

In 2009, the Company recognized $2.1 million ofenge relating to the settlement of the appeals frenDelaware Court's order of
approval and final judgment approving the Settlermfgreement. On November 30, 2009, CBOE reachedtiement with the parties
appealing from the order approving the Settlemegredment, resulting in an agreement for CBOE togragiggregate of approximately
$4.2 million. Separately, CME Group Inc. agreegay $2.1 million to CBOE in connection with CBORa&yments to the settling appellants.
The Company recorded an expense of $2.1 milliggresenting the aggregate expense of $4.2 millidonaed by $2.1 million due from CME
Group.

Other Expenses

Other expenses totaled $4.9 million for the yealeeh2010, a decrease of $0.7 million from the py@ar. The decrease is due to
charges incurred in 2009 in connection with endirgautoquote subsidy program resulting in a deer@aother expenses of $0.5 million.
Other expenses were 1.1% and 1.3% of total opgrativenues for the years ended December 31, 2@L2GOY, respectively.

Operating Income

As a result of the items above, operating incon20ih0 was $167.3 million compared to $177.6 millior2009, a reduction of $10.3
million .

Other Expense
Investment Income

Investment income was $0.5 million for the yearexh®ecember 31, 2010 , representing a 68.8% dembmpared with $1.6 million
for the same period in 2009. The drop in investnieedme was due to lower yields realized on movested cash in 2010 compared with
2009 and the Company recognized $0.4 million ienest on deferred access fees in the fourth quafr2009 due to the final non-appeal
resolution of the Settlement Agreement. The intenas recorded on fees assessed and collectedha2@ 2008.

Net Loss from Investment in Affiliates

Net loss from investment in affiliates was $2.3lior for the year ended December 31, 2010 compaitd$1.1 million for the same
period in the prior year. The loss in 2010 and 2@dects the Company's share of the operating®s§ OneChicago and an impairment in
the investment of $1.6 million recorded in 2010dzhen the annual impairment analysis.

Other Borrowing Costs

On December 23, 2008, the Company entered intoiarseredit facility with three financial instituths. The credit agreement was a
three-year revolving credit facility of up to $164llion and expired on December 23, 2011. We paidmmitment fee on the unused portion
of the facility. The commitment fee and amortizataf deferred financing costs associated with tiedlit facility totaled $0.9 million for the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. Therenwdyerrowings against the credit facility in 202609.

Income before Income Taxes

As a result of the items above, income before iretemes in 2010 was $164.6 million compared to $@llion in 2009, a reduction



of $12.6 million .
Income Tax Provision

For the year ended December 31, 2010 , the incarprbvision was $65.2 million compared with $7th#lion for the
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same period in 2009. This decrease is directlytedlto the decline in income before income taxekaadecrease in the effective tax rate. The
effective tax rate was 39.6% and 39.9% for the yeaded December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectivietyd&crease in our effective tax rate
was primarily due to reduced permanent book tadtiigrences in 2010 compared to 2009.

Net Income

As a result of the items above, net income allat&decommon stockholders in 2010 was $98.2 miliompared to $106.4 million in
2009, a reduction of $8.2 million . Basic and ddldinet income per share allocated to common stéd&wwere $1.03 and $1.1at the year
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have financed our operations, tapxpenditures and other cash needs throughgeastrated from operations. C.
requirements principally consist of funding opargtexpenses, capital expenditures and includesleata anticipated quarterly dividend
payments and common stock repurchases under tloeiraced program. We expect to use cash on handcaniieer 31, 2011 and funds
generated from operations to continue to meet 62 Zash requirements.

Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to the Wfeded=December 31, 2010
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $208illion and $134.9 million for the years ended 2@&nd 2010, respectively. The
increase in net cash provided by operating actiwitvas primarily due to higher transaction feesltieg from higher trading volumes and a
shift in product mix and increased profitabilityef\cash provided by operating activities was $&3llion higher than net income for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 . The netasergvas mainly a result of $34.1 million in depation and amortization, the recognition
of stock-based compensation totaling $12.6 mildod increase in income taxes payable of $9.0 millio

Investing Activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities toth&®.3 million and $32.5 million for the year end®edcember 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Expenditures for capital and otheetstotaled $29.1 million and $23.6 million foe thears ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively, primarily representing purclasiesystems hardware and software. The Companyg madstments in IPXI Holdings,
LLC for $1.3 million and Signal Trading Systems,Clfor $8.0 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Financing Activities

Net cash flows used in financing activities tota#€d.7 million and $432.3 million for the years eddDecember 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The decrease in net cash flows usédancing activities resulted primarily from thgor year payment of the exercise right
privilege of $300.0 million due to the completiohtlee restructuring transaction, the special dintleeclared and paid to the holders of the
Class A and Class B common stock totaling $11314ami, the payment of quarterly dividends totali®$9.7 million and the completion of
two concurrent tender offers for shares of Clask@ad Class A-2 common stock totaling $299.2 millicollectively, partially offset by net
proceeds received from the initial public offerimigCBOE Holdings common stock of $301.2 millionarEhe period ended December 31,
2011, net cash flows used in financing activitieasisted of $47.0 million in unrestricted commanc&tpurchases under the Company's share
repurchase program, $40.4 million for the paymémtividends and $4.3 million for other shares pas#d, which consisted of unrestricted
common stock surrendered to satisfy employee®héigations upon the vesting of restricted stock.

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to the ViededDecember 31, 2009
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $d34illion and $112.8 million for the years ended@@nd 2009, respectively. Net
cash provided by operating activities was $35.3ionilhigher than net income for the fiscal yearesh@ecember 31, 2010 . The net increase
was primarily a result of the recognition of stdzksed compensation totaling $20.8 million .

Investing Activities



Net cash flows used in investing activities tota&&.5 million and $10.3 million for the year end@ecember 31, 2010
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and 2009, respectively. Expenditures for capital atier assets totaled $23.6 million and $38.0ionilfor the year ended December 31, 2010
and 2009, respectively. The majority of capitalengitures in both years were for the enhancemetiteoexpansion of the Company's trading
technology and applications. In 2009, the fundsldee capital expenditures were offset in part iy tlecrease in restricted funds of $26.2
million due to the recognition of CBOE Temporary ateer access fees resulting from the final, non-algide resolution of the Delaware
Action pursuant to the Settlement Agreement. Tigadri amount of capital expenditures in 2009 conmpsre010 was primarily due to the
level of expenditures in 2009 for the developmdrt2.

Financing Activities

Net cash flows used in financing activities tota$&82.3 million and $0.1 million for the year end@ecember 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Net cash flows used in financing\diiis for the year ended December 31, 2010 regsyitEnarily from the payment of the
exercise right privilege of $300.0 million due ketcompletion of the restructuring transaction,gpecial dividend declared and paid to the
holders of the Class A and Class B common stoelitot $113.4 million , the payment of quarterly idends totaling $19.7 million and the
completion of two concurrent tenders offers forrssaf Class A-1 and A-2 common stock totaling $29fillion, collectively, partially
offset by net proceeds received from the initidbluoffering of CBOE Holdings common stock of $32illion .

Dividends

The Company’s expectation is to continue to paydeéinds, with any such dividend based on prior yeaet income adjusted for
unusual items. The decision to pay a dividend, Manaemains within the discretion of our Boarddifectors and may be affected by
various factors, including our earnings, financiahdition, capital requirements, level of indebtesthand other considerations our Board of
Directors deems relevant. Future credit facilit@ber future debt obligations and statutory priovis may limit, or in some cases prohibit,
ability to pay dividends.

Credit Facility

The Company entered into a credit agreement datefl Recember 23, 2008 with The Bank of Americad.Nas administrative agent,
and the other lenders party thereto that expireBerember 23, 2011 and was not renewed by the Qompa

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We currently do not have any relationships withamsolidated entities or financial partnershipsewofteferred to as structured finance
or special purpose entities, that have been eskaddifor the purpose of facilitating off-balanceetharrangements or other contractually
narrow or limited purposes.

Lease and Contractual Obligations

The Company leases office space in downtown Chiddlgmis for its Regulatory Division, in a subudf Chicago for its disaster
recovery center, in New York City for certain markg activities and in Secaucus, New Jersey forv@f lease terms remaining from 8
months to 68 months as of December 31, 2011al Temt expense related to these lease obligatiortbe year ended December 31, 2011
and 2010 were $3.2 million and $3.2 million , retpely. In addition, the Company has contractuaigations related to certain advertising
programs and licensing agreements with variousi$ioes. The licensing agreements contain annuahmimi fee requirements that total $13.3
million for the next five years and $1.5 millionrfthe five years thereafter. Future minimum payreemder these non-cancelable lease and
advertising agreements were as follows at Dece®be?011 (in thousands):

Less than
Total(1) 1year 1-3years 3-5years
Operating leases $ 4,86t % 2,70: % 193¢ $ 227
Advertising obligations 1,452 1,452 — —
Total $ 6,317 $ 4,158 $ 193¢ $ 228
(1) Gross unrecognized income tax liabilitiesJudng interest and penalties, of $12.2 million aot included in the table due to

uncertainty about the date of their settlement.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Mark®isk

We are exposed to market risk in the ordinary amofdusiness. This market risk consists primarflinterest rate risk associated with
our cash and cash equivalents. We have no longdeshort-term debt. The Company does not tradempfor its own account.

Interest Rate Risk

We have exposure to market risk for changes ingstaates relating to our cash and cash equivaléstof December 31, 2011 and
2010, our cash and cash equivalents were $134li@méind $53.8 million , respectively. We investdable cash in highly liquid, short-term
investments, such as money market funds and Uegasuiry securities. Our investment policy is to @nes capital and liquidity. A
hypothetical three basis point decrease in shami-teterest rates would decrease annual earning38y00, assu ming no change in the
amount or composition of our cash and cash equitale

Impact of Inflation

We have not been adversely affected by inflatioteaknological advances and competition have géneaused prices for hardware
and software that we use for our electronic platfoto remain constant or decline. Since transasonour exchanges are not governed by
long-term contracts, we believe that any increas@¥lation are unlikely to have a material adweedfect on us.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&%1 2010

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@iikcember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéoyears ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaided December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
Consolidated Statements in Stockholders'/Membepsit¥for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2080809
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Chicago, lllinois

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of CBOE Holdings, Inc. and subsidiatles ({Company") as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statsréincome, comprehensive income, stockholdersthbers' equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended DeceBih@011. These financial statements are theresiipility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion the financial statements

based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by maregeas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetegresent fairly, in all material respects, tin@ricial position of CBOE Holdings, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010thengksults of their operations and their cash dléov each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with acciognprinciples generally accepted in the Unitede@f America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2011, based on the criteria establighbdéarnal Control - Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission and our report datdaisey 28, 2012 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company's internal cohtiver financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 28, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Chicago, lllinois

We have audited the internal control over finangéglorting of CBOE Holdings, Inc. and subsidiafihe “Company”) as of December 31,
2011, based on criteria establishedniternal Control-Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike
Treadway Commission. The Company's managemengp@nsible for maintaining effective internal cohtsaer financial reporting, and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internarabaver financial reporting included in the acqmamying Management's Annual Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the Compsumternal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq@nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordv@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiadpthe design and operating effectiveness ofiiraiecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considereessary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process by, or under the supervision efctimpany's principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performisiguilar functions, and, effected by the compabyard of directors, management, and other
personnel to provide reasonable assurance regattngliability of financial reporting and the pegation of financial statements for extel
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles. A company's internal control ofiaancial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to thenteaiance of records that, in reasonable detailjrately and fairly reflect the transactions
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)ideweasonable assurance that transactions anelegcas necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generalbepted accounting principles, and that receiptisesgpenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngan@ent and directors of the company; and (3) peoxé@dsonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asitjon, use, or disposition of the company's ast®it could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the positi of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoarover financial reporting to future periods ateject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, btttbalegree of compliance with the policies orcpaures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialeespects, effective internal control over fingl reporting as of December 31, 2011,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control-Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway
Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year endsteBber 31, 2011 of the Company and our reportidagbruary 28, 2012 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 28, 2012
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CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

(in thousands, except share amounts) December 31, 2011  December 31, 2010
Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 134,93t $ 53,78¢
Accounts receivable—net allowances of $304 and $108 37,57¢ 37,74¢
Marketing fee receivable 5,19¢ 7,81¢
Income taxes receivable 6,75¢€ 5,537
Other prepaid expenses 4,152 4,51(
Other current assets 1,06t 537
Total Current Assets 189,68: 109,93:
Investments in Affiliates 14,30¢ 12,61
Land 4,914 4,914
Property and Equipment:

Construction in progress 1,264 1,72¢
Building 60,91 60,91
Furniture and equipment 252,90¢ 240,71:
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (238,289 (221,279
Total Property and Equipment—Net 76,79¢ 82,08
Other Assets:

Software development work in progress 6,16¢ 1,131
Data processing software and other assets (lessnadated amortization—2011, $121,173; 2010, $101),77 36,00 43,43¢
Total Other Assets—Net 42,16¢ 44,56¢
Total $ 327,86¢ % 254,11;

Liabilities and Stockholders'/Members' Equity

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 46,077 $ 40,08
Marketing fee payable 5,76t 8,34¢
Deferred revenue and other liabilities 351 28C
Post-retirement medical benefits 10C 103
Total Current Liabilities 52,287 48,81¢
Long-term Liabilities:

Post-retirement medical benefits 1,781 1,782
Income taxes payable 12,18t 3,16t
Other long-term liabilities 3,90¢ 3,99:
Deferred income taxes 21,43¢ 20,48:
Total Long-term Liabilities 39,31! 29,42:

Commitments and Contingencies
Total Liabilities 91,59¢ 78,23¢

Stockholders' Equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value: 20,000,000 star#®rized, no shares issued and outstandingaerbteer 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010 — —

Unrestricted common stock, $0.01 par value: 325@@shares authorized; 90,781,222 issued and 883% outstanding at

December 31, 2011; 51,786,717 issued and outstguadiDecember 31, 2010 90¢ 51¢
Class A-2 common stock, $0.01 par value: 45,366620es authorized; none and 38,297,994 sharexdissul outstanding at

December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, resphctive — 383
Additional paid-in-capital 55,46¢ 42,85¢
Retained earnings 232,12: 133,08°
Treasury stock at cost — 2,012,337 shares at Deme®ih 2011 and no shares at December 31, 2010 (51,329 —
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (899 (972)

Tatal CtanllhAaldAava! Criiha 228 271 17K Q7.



Total $ 327,86¢ $ 254,11:

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended December 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

(in thousands, except per share amounts) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Operating Revenues:
Transaction fees $ 373,06¢ $ 330,26: $ 314,50t
Access fees 68,69: 41,38¢ 45,08¢
Exchange services and other fees 18,18: 16,84¢ 22,64%
Market data fees 19,90¢ 21,34 20,50¢
Regulatory fees 19,24: 15,31¢ 15,15¢
Other revenue 9,05¢ 11,95: 8,18¢
Total Operating Revenues 508,14« 437,10« 426,08
Operating Expenses:
Employee costs 104,45¢ 106,24 84,48
Depreciation and amortization 34,09 29,89: 27,51:
Data processing 17,93 19,50: 20,47t
Outside services 27,31( 31,24¢ 30,72¢
Royalty fees 47,82: 41,35: 33,07¢
Trading volume incentives 14,23¢ 21,29« 28,63
Travel and promotional expenses 9,812 9,56¢ 10,24¢
Facilities costs 5,40( 5,801 5,62¢
Exercise Right appeal settlement — — 2,08¢
Other expenses 5,44¢ 4,86¢ 5,63«
Total Operating Expenses 266,51. 269,76: 248,49
Operating Income 241,63. 167,34: 177,58!
Other Income/(Expense):
Investment income 14z 47k 1,607
Net loss from investment in affiliates (811) (2,299 (1,087
Interest and other borrowing costs (879 (89€) (875)
Total Other Income/(Expense) (1,54¢) (2,719 (35%)
Income Before Income Taxes 240,08 164,62: 177,23(
Income tax provision 100,67¢ 65,227 70,77¢
Net Income 139,40¢ 99,39¢ 106,45:
Net Income allocated to participating securities (2,829 (1,230 —
Net Income allocated to common stockholders $ 136,58: $ 98,16¢ $ 106,45:
Net income per share allocated to common stocki®liéote 17)

Basic $ 152 $ 10 $ 1.17

Diluted 1.52 1.0z 1.17
Weighted average shares used in computing net iag@nshare

Basic 89,99 95,75¢ 90,73t

Diluted 89,99 95,75¢ 90,73t

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

(in thousands) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Net Income $ 139,40t $ 99,39¢ $ 106,45;

Comprehensive Income (Loss) - net of tax:

Post retirement benefit obligation 73 a7y 23

Comprehensive Income 139,47¢ 99,22¢ 106,47:

Comprehensive Income allocated to participating segities (2,83)) (1,22¢) —

Comprehensive Income allocated to common stockholdse $ 136,64t $ 97,99° $ 106,47-

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009

(in thousands)

Year Ended
December 31, 2011

Year Ended
December 31, 2010

Year Ended
December 31, 2009

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net Income 139,40¢ 99,39%¢ $ 106,45:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casiwdlprovided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 34,094 29,891 27,51z
Other amortization 90 69 2132
Provision for deferred income taxes 94C 21 1,367
Stock-based compensation 12,61¢ 20,801 —
Equity in loss of affiliates 352 677 89¢
Impairment of investment in affiliates and othesets 45¢ 1,62( 18€
Loss on disposition of property 1,22¢ 13¢ —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 16€ (7,309 (959
Marketing fee receivable 2,62( 1,15¢ (1,06¢)
Income taxes receivable (1,219 (3,959 7,86¢
Prepaid expenses 704 53¢t 462
Other receivable — 2,08¢ (2,08¢€)
Other current assets (52¢) (85) 99
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,78¢ (3,339 (8,15%)
Marketing fee payable (2,589 (1,437 46C
Deferred revenue and other liabilities (16) 12 (25,929
Post-retirement benefit obligations 4) 9) @
Income taxes payable 9,02( 35C (240)
Settlement with appellants — (3,000 3,00(
Access fees subject to fee-based payment — (2,68¢) 2,68¢
Net Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities 203,12¢ 134,918 112,76¢
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Restricted funds—temporary access fees — — 26,157
Capital and other assets expenditures (29,149 (23,55¢) (37,997
Investment in Signal Trading Systems, LLC — (7,990 —
Investment in IPXI Holdings, LLC (1,250 — —
Other 112 (999 1,50¢
Net Cash Flows used in Investing Activities (30,28;) (32,549 (10,340)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Payment for debt issuance costs — (23 (119
Payment of quarterly dividends (40,377 (19,667) —
Purchase of unrestricted stock from employees (4,339 — —
Purchase of unrestricted common stock under anmoupmgram (46,990 — —
Exercise Right privilege payable — (300,000) —
Net proceeds from issuance of unrestricted comrtmoks — 301,23¢ —
Payment of special dividend — (113,41) —
Tender offer for Class A-1 common stock — (149,59) —
Tender offer for Class A-2 common stock — (149,594 —
Other stock repurchases — (1,257 —
Net Cash Flows used in Financing Activities (91,709 (432,31() (119
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent 81,147 (329,94) 102,30°
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 53,78¢ 383,73( 281,42!
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 134,93t 53,78¢ $ 383,73(




Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for income taxes
Non-cash activities:
Change in post-retirement benefit obligation
Unpaid liability to acquire equipment and software
Unpaid liability for investment in Signal TradingSems, LLC
Unpaid liability for investment in IPXI Holdings,UC

Exercise Right privilege payable

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders'/Members' @ity
Years Ended December 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009

Class A-1
and Accumulated Total
Unrestricted Class A and B A- Additional Other Stockholders'/
Members'  Preferred Common Common 2 Common Paid-In Retained Treasury Comprehensive Members'

(in thousands) Equity Stock Stock Stock Stock Capital Earnings Stock Loss Equity
Balance—December 31, 2008 $ 1957 % = $ = $ = $ — $ 259 $360,31¢ $ = $ 829 $ 381,66(
Net income 106,45: 106,45:
Post-retirement benefit obligation
adjustment—net of tax expense of $28 23 23
Exercise right privilege payable (300,000 (300,00()
Balance—December 31, 2009 19,57« — — — — 2,59: 166,76¢ — (801) 188,13«
Conversion of all Exchange Seats into
shares of Class A common stock (19,574 744 18,83( —
Issuance of Class B common stock as
forth in the Settlement Agreement 163 (169) —
Cash dividends on common stock (113,41) (113,417)
Conversion of Class A and Class B

common stock into unrestricted

common stock in connection with th

sale by selling stockholders 21 21 —
Initial public offering of unrestricted
common stock, net of underwriting and
offering expense 112 301,12! 301,23¢
Automatic conversion of the shares of

Class A and Class B common stock

not converted into unrestricted

common stock and sold in the initial

public offering into Class A-1 and A

common stock (88€) 88€ —
Cash dividends on common stock (19,667) (19,667)
Tender Offer for Class A-1 Common
Stock (59  (149,53¢) (149,599
Tender Offer for Class A-2 Common
Stock (60)  (149,53Y (149,599
Automatic conversion of Class A-1 to
Unrestricted Common Stock 384 (389) —
Other stock purchases — — (1,257 (1,25%)
Stock based compensation 20,80: 20,80:
Net income 99,39¢ 99,39¢
Post-retirement benefit obligation
adjustment—net of tax benefit of $118 a73) a7y
Balance—December 31, 2010 — — 51¢ — 382 42,85¢ 133,08 — (972) 175,87
Automatic conversion of the shares of

Class A-2 into unrestricted common

stock 388 — (383 —
Cash dividends on common stock (40,377 (40,377
Stock-based compensation 12,61¢ 12,61¢
Issuance of vested restricted stock
granted to employees 7 () —
Purchase of unrestricted common stoc (51,32¢) (51,329
Net income 139,40t 139,40t
Post-retirement benefit obligation
adjustment—net of tax expense of $17 73 73
Balance—December 31, 2011 $ — $ — 3 90¢f $ — — $ 55460 $232,120 $(51,329 $ (899 $  236,27(

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CBOE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2011 , 2010 and20
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business—CBOE Holdings, Inc. ("CBOE Holdings" or the "Conmmyd) is the holding company of registered secsitie
exchanges, subject to oversight by the Securitidsexchange Commission (the "SEC") and as a desidrmantract market under the
jurisdiction of the Commodity Futures Trading Comgion ("CFTC"). Our principal business is providemgarketplace for the trading
options on individual equities, exchange-tradedifuand various indexes.

Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial statements includeait@unts and results of operations of CBOE Holdargs$its
wholly-owned subsidiaries: Chicago Board Optionsh@ange, Incorporated ("CBOE"), C2 Options Exchahgegrporated ("C2"), CBOE
Futures Exchange, LLC ("CFE"), Market Data Exprés$s;, Chicago Options Exchange Building Corporati@BOE, LLC and DerivaTech
Corporation. Inter-company balances and transaxtiawe been eliminated in consolidation. The Compaports the results of its operations
in one reporting segment.

Concentrations of Credit Risk—The Company's financial instruments, consistirgarily of cash and cash equivalents and account
receivables, are exposed to concentrations oftarisli The Company places its cash and cash elgmitgawith highly-rated financial
institutions, limits the amount of credit exposwi¢h any one financial institution and conducts oing evaluations of the creditworthiness of
the financial institutions with which it does bus@s. Accounts receivable are primarily collectedugh the OCC (formerly the Options
Clearing Corporation) and are with large, highlfethclearing firms; therefore, concentrations edirrisk are limited.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of consolidated financial statets@nconformity with accounting principles genéralccepted in
the United States ("GAAP") requires managementa&arestimates and assumptions that affect thetesbamounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities r@ported amounts of revenues and expenses. Ongaing basis, management evaluates its
estimates based upon historical experience, obsesvaf trends, information available from outsidarses and various other assumptions
that are believed to be reasonable under the cstamoes. Actual results may differ from these estiam under different conditions or
assumptions.

Revenue Recognition—The Company's revenue recognition policies comytit ASC 605 Revenue RecognitighASC 605"). On
occasion, customers will pay for services in a ltlsum payment. When these circumstances occur, wevismecognized as services are
provided. Deferred revenue typically representsuamsreceived by the Company for which serviceshwt been provided.

Revenue recognition policies for specific sourcesvenue are discussed below:

Transaction Fees: Transaction fee revenue is considered earned thfe execution of a trade and is recognized wade date basis.
The Company's C2 exchange uses a maker-takergrivadel for its multiply-listed exchange tradediops in which orders that take
liquidity from the marketplace are charged a tratiea fee, dependent on origin type, and ordersghavide liquidity to the marketplace may
receive a rebate for doing so, dependent on otygie. Transaction fee revenue from C2 is recoragahthe maker rebate.

Transaction fee revenue is presented net of ajgiicablume discounts. In the event liquidity prosfigl prepay for transaction fees,
revenue is recognized based on the attainmentlomethresholds resulting in the amortization & pnepayment over the calendar year.

Access Fees: Access fee revenue is recognized during thieghéine service is provided. On July 1, 2010, tleen@any began
charging monthly fees to Trading Permit Holdersanttie new trading access program. Under the pmagiee Company charges monthly
access fees to all Trading Permit Holders. Pridkuly 1, 2010, access fees represented fees adsesBemporary Members and interim
Trading Permit Holders for the right to trade at@Band dues charged to Members.

Exchange Services and Other FeeBxchange services and other fees are recogniméthdhe period the service is provided.
Exchange services and other fees include systeritesytrading floor charges and application reeenu

Market Data Fees: Market data fee revenue includes Options FRiggorting Authority ("OPRA") income and Company ketrdata
services. OPRA is a limited liability company catisig of representatives of the member exchangassamuthorized by the SEC to provide
consolidated options information. OPRA income Isadted based upon the individual exchanges relatume of total cleared options



transactions. The Company receives monthly estenat©@PRA's
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distributable revenue (See Note 5). Company mat&et service fees represent fees charged for ¢wamenhistorical options and futures di
Market data services are recognized in the pehiediata is provided.

Regulatory Fees: Regulatory fees are assessed primarily based cystomer contracts cleared and are recognizedtiaale-date
basis.

Concentration of Revenue: At December 31, 201lthere were approximately one hundred CBOE clgdiims, two of which cleare
a combined 48% of our billings collected througa @CC in 2011 . The next largest clearing firm acted for approximately 5% of our
billings collected through the OCC. No one afféiaf either of the top two clearing firms representore than 15% of that revenue in 2011
or 2010. Should a clearing firm withdraw from CBQt believe the affiliate portion of that firm'sitling activity would likely transfer to
another clearing firm.

The two largest clearing firms mentioned aboverdiea majority of the markatiaker sides of transactions at CBOE, C2 and aif
the U.S. options exchanges. If either of thesediwere to withdraw from the business of market-makearing, and market-makers were
unable to make new clearing arrangements, thidamelate significant disruption to the U.S. optiomarkets, including ours.

Trading Volume Incentives—Trading volume incentives consist of market linkagxpenses incurred to send certain orders to other
exchanges. If a competing exchange quotes a Ipeiter, we route the customer's order to that exghamd pay certain of the associated
costs. Regardless of whether the transactiondetrat our exchanges, the order flow potential eodsour overall market position and
participation and provides cost savings to custsmdarket linkage expenses vary based on the vobfraentracts linked to other exchanges
and fees charged by other exchanges. Costs inclarssshd certain orders to other exchanges aregdlsough to the original order sending
firm.

Advertising Costs—Advertising costs, including sponsorships withdlogrofessional sports organizations, print adsen and
production costs, product promotion campaigns @&mairsar, conference and convention costs relatéde shows and other industry events,
are expensed as incurred or amortized over thegsmmnal sports organization season. The Companyred advertising costs of $5.5
million , $5.5 million and $5.9 million for the yemended December 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009, résggct

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquicegtnents with maturities of three months or legs!
the date of purchase. There are no redemptionatistis on the Company's invested cash balances.

Accounts Receivable—Accounts receivable consists primarily of trangacand regulatory fees from the OCC and the Coiyipan
share of distributable revenue receivable from OPR# Company has no financing related receivables.

Prepaid expenses—Prepaid expenses primarily consist of prepaidis@ maintenance and licensing expenses.

Investments in Affiliates —Investments in affiliates represent investment®@C, Signal Trading Systems, LLC ("Signal Tradng"
IPXI Holdings, LLC ( "IPXI") and CBOE Stock ExchaagLLC ("CBSX").

The investment in OCC (20% of its outstanding syaskarried at cost because of the Company'slitatn exercise significant
influence.

We account for the investment in Signal Tradingeaurttie equity method due to the substantive ppettizig rights provided to the other
limited liability company member, FlexTrade Systemns. ("FlexTrade"). The Company received a 50%rshn Signal Trading in return for
its contributions.

The investment in IPXI is accounted for under thstanethod of accounting for investments. The Cargpthrough DerivaTech
Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary, receivedratial 6.25% share in IPXI in return for its caifiution in December 2011. The
Company's share of IPXI is expected to incread®6 in June 2012 based on the achievement of cetédiverables outlined in the
agreement with IPXI which will result in an additia payment by the Company. We expect the achientaighe deliverables and have
accrued for the additional payment as of DecemheRB11.

The Company received a 50% share in CBSX in returnon-cash property contributions. The Companyently holds a 49.96%
equity interest in CBSX. In December 2011, CBSXuae( the National Stock Exchange, Inc. ("NSX"}egistered national securities



exchange that trades stocks. The acquisition by>C#& not have an impact on the Company's equiréast in CBSX.

Investments in affiliates are reviewed to determifether any events or changes in circumstancésaiedthat the
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investments may be other than temporarily impaihedhe event of impairment, the Company would ggipe a loss for the difference
between the carrying amount and the estimated/&hire of the equity method investment.

Property and Equipment —Property and equipment are carried at cost, natofimulated depreciation. Depreciation on building
furniture and equipment is provided on the stralgted method. Estimated useful lives are 40 yearsHe building and five to ten years for
furniture and equipment. Leasehold improvementsarertized over the lesser of their estimated usieks or the remaining term of the
applicable leases.

Long-lived assets to be held and used are reviégwwddtermine whether any events or changes inmistances indicate that the
carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverdble Company bases the evaluation on such impatrmedicators as the nature of the
assets, the future economic benefit of the asaeyshistorical or future profitability measuremeras well as other external market conditions
or factors that may be present. If such impairnigicators are present that would indicate thatc#imeying amount of the asset may not be
recoverable, the Company determines whether aniimpat has occurred through the use of an undigedurash flow analysis of assets at
the lowest level for which identifiable cash floesist. In the event of impairment, the Company geizes a loss for the difference between
the carrying amount and the estimated fair valuthefasset as measured using quoted market pricestibe absence of quoted market pri
a discounted cash flow analysis.

Property and equipment—construction in progressytalized and carried at cost in accordance A8IE 360Property, Plant and
Equipmen("ASC 360"). Projects are monitored during the depment stage to ensure compliance with ASC 360aaedrdance with proje
initiatives. Upon completion, the projects are pldin service and amortized over the appropriagéuliives, using the straight-line method
commencing with the date the asset is placed wricger

Software Development Work in Progress and Data Praxssing Software and Other Assets-The Company accounts for software
development costs under ASC 3&ttangibles—Goodwill and Oth€!ASC 350"). The Company expenses software devedoproosts as
incurred during the preliminary project stage, whihpitalizing costs incurred during the applicatievelopment stage, which includes
design, coding, installation and testing activitiestimated useful lives are five years for datacpssing software and generally are five years
or less for other assets.

Deferred Financing Fees—Costs associated with the Company's senior revgleredit facility were capitalized. The deferred
financing fees were amortized to interest expemsa straight-line basis over three years to mdteltérms of the facility. Deferred financing
fees were none and $0.3 million at December 311 2011 2010, respectively. The credit facility ergion December 23, 2011 and was not
renewed.

Income Taxes—Deferred income taxes are determined in accordaitbeASC 740,/ncome Taxe§'ASC 740"), and arise from
temporary differences between the tax basis anll basis of assets and liabilities. The Company @etofor income taxes under the asset
and liability method, which requires the recognitaf deferred tax assets and liabilities for thpemted future tax consequences of the events
that have been included in the consolidated firedrstatements. Under this method, deferred taxsasel liabilities are determined based on
the differences between the financial statemerdgabases of assets and liabilities using enaatedates in effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to be reversed. The affecthange in tax rates on deferred tax asset$iailities is recognized in the period that
includes the enactment date. The Company filesaixns for federal, state and local income taypses. A valuation allowance is
recognized if it is anticipated that some or alhafeferred tax asset may not be realized.

If the Company considers that a tax position isrerikely-than-not" of being sustained upon aub#sed solely on the technical merits
of the position, it recognizes the tax benefit. TTmmpany measures the tax benefit by determiniadaityest amount that is greater than 50%
likely of being realized upon settlement, presuntimat the tax position is examined by the appraétiaxing authority that has full knowlec
of all relevant information. These assessmentdeatomplex, and the Company often obtains assistnom external advisors. To the extent
that the Company's estimates change or the firauécome of these matters is different than thewts recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax provision in the period iniebhsuch determinations are made. Uncertain takipos are classified as current only
when the Company expects to pay cash within themestve months. Interest and penalties, if ang,racorded within the provision for
income taxes in the Company's consolidated statenoéimcome and are classified on the consolidatddnce sheets with the related liab
for unrecognized tax benefits.

See Note 11 for further discussion of the Compangsame taxes.



Employee Benefit Plans—The funded status of a postretirement benefit darcognized in the Consolidated Balance Shegt an
changes in that funded status are recognized ipgeof change in other comprehensive income)(I®an assets
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and obligations are measured at year end. The Qoympaognizes changes in actuarial gains and l@ssprior service costs in the year in
which the changes occur through accumulated ottrapoehensive loss.

Evaluation of Subsequent Events—For the period ended December 31, 2011 , managdmserevaluated all subsequent events
through the issuance of financial statements.

Commitments and Contingencies—Litigation—The Company accrues loss contingencies when fsgddoth probable and
estimable. All legal costs incurred in connectidthvoss contingencies are expensed as servia®sded.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements—In June 2011, the Financial Accounting StandaroarB released an update for Accounting
Standard Concept 2Z0omprehensive InconftASC 220"). ASC 220 is intended to improve the rflequality of financial reporting by
increasing the prominence of items reported inrotenprehensive income (“OCI”), and additionalligalthe presentation of OCl in
financial statements prepared in accordance witlGA8P with those prepared in accordance with Iriéiomal Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS"). An entity has the option tospre the total of comprehensive income, the commisng net income, and the components
of other comprehensive income either in a singlginaous statement of comprehensive income or mg@parate but consecutive stateme
Regardless of its approach, the entity is expetttguiesent each component of net income alongtwitth net income, each component of
other comprehensive income along with a total fbebcomprehensive income, and a total amountdomeehensive income. The
amendments are effective for public entities fecdil years, and interim periods within those ydaegjnning after December 15, 2011. The
Company adopted ASC 220 and included separate lideitsal statements of comprehensive income.

2. SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

On August 23, 2006, CBOE and its directors wera sa¢he Court of Chancery of the State of Delaw{#lre "Delaware Court") by the
Board of Trade of the City of Chicago, Inc. ("CBQ,TJCBOT Holdings Inc., the parent corporation of @B("CBOT Holdings"), and two
members of the CBOT who purported to represenassabf individuals ("Exercise Member Claimants"ovdtaimed that they were, or had
the right to become, members of CBOE pursuantddetkercise Right. "Exercise Right" refers to thergmunder Paragraph (b) of Article Fi
of CBOE's Certificate of Incorporation when CBOEswanon-stock corporation to members of CBOT ofridiet to be members of CBOE
without having to acquire a separate CBOE membgr¥kie refer to this lawsuit as the "Delaware Action

In the Delaware Action, the plaintiffs sought aipidl declaration that Exercise Member Claimantsenentitled to receive the same
consideration in any proposed restructuring tramsaénvolving CBOE as all other CBOE Members, déiné plaintiffs also sought an
injunction to bar CBOE and CBOE's directors frosuisag any stock to CBOE Members as part of a preghosstructuring transaction, unless
the Exercise Member Claimants received the sanol stied other consideration as other CBOE Members.

On June 3, 2009, the Delaware Court entered am apfEoving the Settlement Agreement, while resgrvuling on whether certain
objectors were eligible to participate in thatlsstient. After subsequently ruling on those objewidhe Delaware Court, on July 29, 2009,
entered an order of approval and final judgment@ygpg the Stipulation of Settlement (the "Settlemagreement"), resolving all open
issues about the settlement and dismissing then2etaAction. While several appeals from the ordeapgproval were filed, on November 30,
2009, CBOE reached a settlement with the appepknties under which CBOE agreed to pay approxim#&4l2 million . Separately, CME
Group Inc. agreed to pay $2.1 million to CBOE imeection with CBOE's payments to the settling dppé&d. On December 2, 2009, the
Delaware Supreme Court approved the dismissal apglkeals, and as a result, the Delaware Couder a@f approval and final judgment is
final and is no longer subject to appeal.

The Settlement Agreement approved by the Delawargt@nhcluded a non-opt out settlement class, whielant that anyone in the
settlement class was bound by the Settlement Agreeand did not have the right to pursue sepataims against CBOE. The settlement
class consists of two groups: Group A and Grou@Bup A is defined as all persons who, prior to AstgP2, 2008, simultaneously ownec
possessed at least one CBOT B-1 membership, atolea£xercise Right Privilege ("ERP") and at l&#&B38shares of CBOT stock or, aff
the CME acquisition of CBOT, 10,251.75 shares ofEC@roup stock (collectively, a "Group A Packag&joup B is defined as all persons
who owned an ERP as of 5:00 p.m., central timeQotober 14, 2008 (excluding Exercise Right Privéleghat were used as components of
Group A Packages and their transferees and asslgrader to receive consideration under the Smitint Agreement, the members of Group
A and Group B must have met certain other eligipéind procedural criteria contained in the SetdetiAgreement and have been approved
by the Delaware Court.
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As a final resolution of the claimed ownership metds in CBOE, qualifying members of the settlenutas received a share of $@0(
million cash pool that was paid upon the completbthe Company's restructuring transaction. Graupembers received $235,327 for each
approved Group A Package. Group B members rec&i266,000 for each approved Group B Package. Irtiaddthe approved members of
Group A collectively received an equity interesittivas equal to 21.9% of the total equity interested to the CBOE Seat owners in the
conversion of the CBOE Seats in the CBOE restruguransaction. "CBOE Seat" refers to a regulamipership that was made available by
the CBOE in accordance with its Rules and which aagiired by a CBOE Member.

Based on the final, non-appealable resolution @@klaware Action pursuant to the Settlement Agereinthe Company, in December
2009, recorded a $300.0 million current liabilitygettlements payable and a $300.0 million redndtiaetained earnings in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet for the year ended December 31, ZB@Company considered the payment to be a redmmgftclaimed ownership intere:
of CBOE, and thus, the liability for the paymentswaccounted for as an equity transaction. The $30@n represented the cash payment
required to be made by the Company under the 8atieAgreement. The final payment related to thte®eent Agreement was made on
June 18, 2010 (See Note 9).

3. CONVERSION, DIVIDEND PAYMENT AND INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

On June 18, 2010, after receiving required appsoV@BOE converted from a non-stock corporation aiumeits Members into a stock
corporation that is a wholly-owned subsidiary of @B Holdings. In the restructuring transaction, eBgbhange Seat owned by a CBOE
Member on June 18, 2010 converted into 80,000 star€lass A common stock of the Company. Exch&wep owners received a total of
74,400,000 shares of Class A common stock of thap2amy in the restructuring transaction. In additicertain persons who satisfied the
qualification requirements set forth in the Set@éatnAgreement received a total of 16,333,380 shafr€dass B common stock of the
Company.

Immediately following the issuance of the Classmil £lass B common stock, the board of directoth@fCompany declared and pa
special dividend of $1.25 per outstanding shar€lags A and Class B common stock, or $113.4 miliiotihe aggregate.

The initial public offering of 13,455,000 sharesunfrestricted common stock, including 2,085,744 ehaf unrestricted common stock
sold by the selling stockholders, for a price c® $®per share, was completed on June 18, 2010. Ne¢@dsdo the Company after deduct
underwriter's fees and commissions and other ktpenses were $301.2 million . Costs directlpeissed with the Company's initial
public offering were recorded as a reduction ofghass proceeds received in arriving at the amoeadrded in additional paid-in capital.

Upon consummation of the initial public offerindpases of Class A and Class B common stock not gtetvénto unrestricted common
and sold in the offering automatically convertetbin4,323,803 shares of Class A-1 common stockddrgl 3,803 shares of Class A-2
common stock.

Following the restructuring transaction, accesSB®OE was and continues to be made available thraagling permits rather than
through memberships.

In the consolidated statements of income of CBOHKlidgs for the years ended December 31, 2010 affl, 26t income per share is
calculated by dividing historical net income fockaf the periods presented by the weighted averageer of common shares as if the
restructuring transaction were consummated at ¢lginbing of each respective period.

4. INVESTMENT IN AFFILIATES

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the investmentfitiedés was comprised of the following (in thoudaijt



2011 2010

Investment in OCC $ 332 % 338
Investment in Signal Trading 11,47: 11,82:
Investment in NSX — 46C
Investment in IPXI 2,50( —
Investment in Affiliates $ 14,30t $ 12,61¢

In May 2010, CBOE acquired a 50% interest in Sigrralding from FlexTrade for $11.5 million , congist of $7.7

65




Table of Contents

million in cash and $3.8 million due to FlexTradelaontributed property and equipment of $0.3 wmilli The purpose of the joint venture is
to develop and market a multi-asset front-end oedénry system, known as "Pulse," which has pasdicemphasis on options trading. The
Company assists in the development of the termanadisprovides marketing services to the joint vemtuhich is accounted for under the
equity method.

In December 2011, the Company, through DerivaTemtp@ation, a wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired 2666 interest in IPXI for
$2.5 million . The Company contributed cash of $tiBion and has accrued a liability of 1.2 millionvhich based on the achievement of
certain deliverables, will become due in June 281@ will increase the Company's share of IPXI t®%®. IPXI is creating a marketplace for
a unique portfolio of financial products and seegithat facilitate investment in and risk manageroémtellectual property assets, helping
buyers and sellers efficiently allocate intellet¢torperty rights. The Company accounts for itsestment in IPXI using the cost-method.

In December 2011, CBSX acquired NSX, a registesdtbnal securities exchange that trades stocksedulent to the acquisition,
CBOE no longer holds an interest in NSX.

5. RELATED PARTIES

The Company collected transaction and other fe&&42.8 million , $455.5 million and $447.7 milliamthe years endddecember 31
2011 , 2010 and 2009, respectively, by drawingamoants of CBOE and C2 market participants held@€. The amounts collected for
CBOE included $93.7 million , $101.3 million and2B12 million , respectively, of marketing fees digrithe years ended December 31, 2011
2010 and 2009. The Company had a receivable doe@6C of $35.6 million and $38.2 million at DecemBé, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

OPRA is a limited liability company consisting @fresentatives of the member exchanges and isreagttidoy the SEC to provide
consolidated options information. This informatisrprovided by the exchanges and is sold to outsétes services and customers. OPRA's
operating income is distributed among the exchabgsed on their relative volume of total clearetioms transactions. Operating income
distributed to the Company was $12.9 million , $1fillion and $19.1 million during the years end®ecember 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The Company had a receivable from ®BR$3.3 million and $4.1 million at December 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Company incurred re-billable expenses on betigdBSX for expenses such as employee costs, c@meguipment and software
of $5.1 million , $3.5 million and $3.9 million dag the years ended December 31, 2011 , 2010 0@}, 28spectively. These amounts are
included as a reduction of the underlying experiee.Company had a receivable from CBSX of $0.%ianiland $0.2 million at
December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Options Regulatory Surveillance Authority ("ORSAS)esponsible for conducting insider trading iigegions related to options on
behalf of all options exchanges. CBOE is the ReguyaServices Provider under a plan entered intthkyoptions exchanges and approve
the SEC to administer ORSA. The Company incurrebilfable expenses on behalf of ORSA for expenses sis employee costs, occupancy
and operating systems of $2.0 million , $2.0 millemd $1.9 million , during the years ended Decerilhe2011 , 2010 and 2009,
respectively. These amounts are included as a tieduf the underlying expenses. The Company hagt@ivable due from ORSA of $0.6
million and $1.0 million at December 31, 2011 afd @ respectively.

The Company incurred immaterial administrative eges for its affiliate, the Chicago Board Optionglfange Political Action
Committee (the "Committee"), during the years endedember 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009. The Commitegganized under the Federal
Election Campaign Act as a voluntary, not-for-prainincorporated political association. The Conteeitis empowered to solicit and accept
voluntary contributions from the Company's exeatimd administrative personnel and all of its stotl#ters ("shareholders" as defined by
Federal Election Commission regulations) and tdridmute funds to the election campaigns of candislébr federal offices.

6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, accounts payablaeerdied liabilities consisted of the following {frousands):
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2011 2010
Compensation and benefit related liabilities $ 18,34¢ $ 15,45¢
Royalties 10,79¢ 8,19¢
Data processing related liabilities 49€ 1,25¢
Facilities 2,22¢ 2,15(
Legal 962 1,015
Accounts payable 1,871 5,00(
Linkage 1,65: 2,31(
Other 9,71C 4,69¢
Total $ 46,07. $ 40,08¢

7. MARKETING FEE

The Company facilitates the collection and payneémharketing fees assessed on certain trades takicg at CBOE. Funds resulting
from the marketing fees are made available to Deseyl Primary Market-Makers and Preferred MaMeakers as an economic inducemer
route orders to CBOE. Pursuant to ASC 605Ré&yenue Recognition—Principal Agent Consideratjathe Company reflects the assessir
and payments on a net basis, with no impact omrea&or expenses.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, amounts assbydbé Company on behalf of others included inentrassets totaled $5.2 million
and $7.8 million , respectively, and payments duethers included in current liabilities totaled&nillion and $8.3 million , respectively.

8. DEFERRED REVENUE

The following tables summarize the activity in dedel revenue for the years ended December 31, 204 2010.

Balance at Balance at
December 31, Cash Revenue December 31,

(in thousands) 2010 Additions Recognition 2011

Liquidity provider sliding scale $ — $ 40,02: $ (40,02) $ —

Other, net 28C 3,25¢ (3,185 351

Total deferred revenue $ 28C $ 43270 $ (43,200 $ 351

Balance at Balance at
December 31, Cash Revenue December 31,

(in thousands) 2009 Additions Recognition 2010
Liquidity provider sliding scale $ — 3 44.67. $ (44,67) $ —
Other, net 207 28C (207) 28C
Total deferred revenue $ 207 % 4495. $ (44,879 $ 28C

The liquidity provider transaction fee sliding sealas implemented in 2007. Liquidity providers aaguired to prepay an entire year of
transaction fees for the first two levels of thiiglg scale in order to be eligible to participateeduced fees assessed to contract volume
above 1.4 million per month. The prepayment of2fi#1 and 2010 transaction fees totaled $40.0 mibiod $44.7 million , respectively.
These amounts are amortized and recorded as ttemstees over the respective year.

9. SETTLEMENTS PAYABLE

The final cash payments for the Exercise Rightilede payable, settlement with appellants and acfeEs subject to fee-based



payments were made on June 18, 2010 following dhgptetion of the restructuring transaction.
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employees are eligible to participate in the ChicBgard Options Exchange SMART Plan ("SMART Plaithe SMART Plan is a
defined contribution plan, which is qualified undeternal Revenue Code Section 401(k). The Comganyributed $4.5 million , $3.5
million and $3.5 million to the SMART Plan for eachthe years ended December 31, 2011 , 2010 &b@, 28spectively.

Eligible employees may participate in the Supplet@leBmployee Retirement Plan ("SERP"), ExecutivérBment Plan ("ERP") and
Deferred Compensation Plan. The SERP, ERP and fledf@ompensation Plan are defined contributiongthat are nonqualified by Inter
Revenue Code regulations. The Company contributedlillion , $1.6 million and $1.8 million to thebove plans for the years ended
December 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Company also had a Voluntary Employees' Beiagfidssociation ("VEBA"). The VEBA was a trust, gjifying under Internal
Revenue Code Section 501(c)(9), created to prasadiain medical, dental, severance and short-tésabiity benefits to employees.
Contributions to the trust were based on resemudeestablished by Section 419(a) of the InteRelenue Code. The trust was terminated as
of December 31, 2010, so no contributions were na@011. The Company contributed $3.7 million &&d6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Company has a postretirement medical planeidain current and former members of senior managérmhe Company recorded
immaterial postretirement benefits expense foryers ended December 31, 2011 , 2010 and 200%imgsuom the amortization of service
costs and actuarial expense included in accumutgtest comprehensive loss at December 31, 2011Q 26d 2009.

11. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of the statutory federal incomg tate to the effective income tax rate for thergemded December 31, 2011 , 2010
and 2009 is as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income tax rate, net of federal income téecef 5.5 4.C 4.4
Other permanent differences, net 1.4 0.€ 0.t
Effective income tax rate 41.%% 39.6% 39.9%

The components of income tax expense for the yaradted December 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009 are asvfo(in thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Current:
Federal $ 76,637 $ 51,50: $ 57,66(
State 23,10: 13,70¢ 11,75:
Total current 99,73¢ 65,20¢ 69,41:
Deferred:
Federal (48) 3,47( 1,86:
State 98¢ (3,449 (495)
Total deferred 94(C 21 1,367
Total $ 100,67¢ $ 65227 $ 70,77¢

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the net deferreshiiectax liability approximated (in thousands):

68




Table of Contents

CBOE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 200

December 31, December 31,
2011 2010
Deferred tax assets $ 21,58t $ 21,85
Deferred tax liabilities (43,02 (42,33
Net deferred income tax liability $ (21,439 $ (20,489

The tax effect of temporary differences giving risesignificant portions of deferred tax assets latullities at December 31, 2011 and
2010 are presented below (in thousands):

2011 2010
Deferred tax assets:
Intangibles $ 51C $ 1,15¢
Accrued compensation and benefits 8,28¢ 7,781
Property, equipment and technology, net 887 3,161
Investment in affiliates 8,431 8,68¢
Other 3,47: 1,06¢
Total deferred tax assets 21,58¢ 21,85
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, equipment and technology, net (38,967) (38,44)
Investment in affiliates (1,596 (1,796
Prepaid (96¢) (1,129
Other (1,499 (969
Total deferred tax liabilities (43,02 (42,33%)
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (21,439 $ (20,489

The net deferred tax liabilities are classifiedamy-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balandee8ts at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending unagrtax positions, including interest and penaltiess follows (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Balance as of January 1 $ 3,168 % 281t % 3,05¢
Gross increases on tax positions in prior period 9,18¢ 20E 49t
Gross decreases on tax positions in prior period (2,215 (87€) (1,809
Gross increases on tax positions in current period 2,76¢ 1,13¢ 1,092
Lapse of statue of limitations (719 (11%) (29
Balance as of December 31 $ 12,18t $ 3,16t $ 2,81¢

As of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Cognpad $11.4 million , $2.5 million and $2.3 milligmespectively, of uncertain ti
positions excluding interest and penalities, whithecognized in the future, would affect the aaheffective income tax rate. Reductions to
uncertain tax positions from the lapse of the ajaflie statutes of limitations during the next tveetronths are estimated to be approximately
$0.1 million , not including any potential new afilofis.

Estimated interest costs and penalties are cladsi part of the provision for income taxes in@loenpany's consolidated statements of
income and were $0.1 million , $0.1 million andSillion for the periods ended December 31, 202010 and 2009, respectively. Accrued
interest and penalties were $0.8 million , $0.7ioriland $0.5 million as of December 31, 2011 ,@8hd 2009, respectively.

The Company is subject to U.S. federal tax, llllpdlew Jersey and New York state taxes and WashirigiC. taxes, as well as other local
jurisdictions. The Compar's tax returns have been examined by the IntereakeRue Service through 2009
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and the lllinois Department of Revenue through 26@8 New Jersey and Washington D.C., the opersyaa@ 2008 and forward. The
Company is currently under audit by the State ofNerk for the 2007-2009 tax years.

12. SENIOR REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY

On December 23, 2008, the Company entered intcaecured senior revolving credit facility with terénancial institutions. The
credit agreement expired on December 23, 2011 ashwat renewed by the Company. Borrowing undefabiéity became available upon
the final, non-appealable resolution of the Delavaction pursuant to the Settlement Agreement (Sme 2). As part of the Settlement
Agreement, the Company was required to pay qualifgiass members $300 million in cash at the cotigplef the restructuring transaction.
The Company secured this line of credit to ensuat it had adequate funds available to meet tHigation. As of December 31, 2011 and
2010 and during the years ended December 31, 264 2@i0, there were no borrowings against the tfadility.

13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received ugale of an asset or paid upon transfer of a Itghil an orderly transaction betwe
market participants at the measurement date athebiprincipal or most advantageous market for disaet or liability. The fair value should
be calculated based on assumptions that marketiparits would use in pricing the asset or liapjlitot on assumptions specific to the entity.
In addition, the fair value of liabilities shoulddlude consideration of non-performance risk, idizlg the Company’s own credit risk.

The Company applied Financial Accounting Stand&uaksrd ("FASB") ASC 820Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure
(formerly, FASB Statement No. 15Fair Value Measurements)which provides guidance for using fair value teasure assets and liabilities
by defining fair value and establishing the framéwimr measuring fair value. ASC 820 applies t@fioial and nonfinancial instruments that
are measured and reported on a fair value baséstirbe-level hierarchy of fair value measuremenbsmsed on whether the inputs to those
measurements are observable or unobservable. Qibdeiaputs reflect market data obtained from irahelent sources, while unobservable
inputs reflect the Company’s market assumptions. feir-value hierarchy requires the use of obsdevatarket data when available and
consists of the following levels:

. Level 1—Unadjusted inputs based on quoted markets forimdrassets or liabilitie

. Level 2—Observable inputs, either direct or iedt, not including Level 1, corroborated by marttata or based upon
guoted prices in non-active markets.

. Level 3—Unobservable inputs that reflect managiet’s best assumptions of what market participasatsid use in valuing
the asset or liability.

The Company has included a tabular disclosureifiantial assets that are measured at fair valuereurring basis in the
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31,&0d 2010. The Company holds no financial liab#itieat are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis.

(amounts in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets at fair value:

Money market funds $ 126,00( — — 126,00(
Total assets at fair value at December 31, 2011 $ 126,00C  $ — 9 — 9 126,00(
(amounts in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets at fair value:

U.S. Treasury securities $ 25,000 $ — 8 — 8 25,00(

Money market funds 26,00( — — 26,00(
Total assets at fair value at December 31, 2010 $ 51,00C $ — 3 — 3 51,00(
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In March 2011, the Company revalued its investnelNSX Holdings, Inc. as a result of an other-themporary impairment. The
investment is classified as Level 3 as the faingabas based on both observable and unobservahits jmesulting in a full impairment
totaling $0.5 million , which represented the remiagy carrying value of the investment.

During 2010, the Company revalued its investmem@ireChicago as a result of an other-than-tempangpgirment. The investment is
classified as Level 3 as the fair value was baseloth observable and unobservable inputs, reguttim full impairment totaling $1.6
million , which represented the remaining carryueabf the investment.

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of December 31, 2011 , the end of the periocky by this report, the Company was subject tovéinus legal proceedings and
claims discussed below, as well as certain otlgal lproceedings and claims that have not been fefiglved and that have arisen in the
ordinary course of business. In the opinion of ng@naent, the ultimate resolution of any of our cotilegal proceedings or claims is not
expected to individually or in the aggregate matbriaffect our financial condition, results of spgons or cash flows.

Index Options Litigation

On November 15, 2006, the Company, The McGraw-Elilinpanies, Inc. ("McGraw-Hill*) and CME Group IndServices, LLC
(substituted for Dow Jones & Co.) ("Dow Jones")eatex] claims in the Circuit Court of Cook Countiinbis against ISE and its parent
company ("ISE"), seeking a declaration to prev&t from offering SPX and DJX options and to prev@@iC from issuing and clearing st
options. ISE filed a lawsuit on November 2, 2006hie United States District Court for the SouthBistrict of New York, seeking a
declaration that the rights asserted by McGraw-&till Dow Jones are preempted by federal law. The Yk action is currently pending,
but has been stayed in light of the lllinois acti@he lllinois court has permanently restrained enpined ISE from listing or providing an
exchange market for the trading of SPX and DJXamystiand enjoined OCC from issuing, clearing oflingtthe exercise of such ISE options.
ISE and OCC appealed this ruling and oral argumeastheard before the lllinois Appellate Court opt8mber 22, 2011. CBOE is now
awaiting a decision from the court.

Patent Litigation
ISE

On November 22, 2006, ISE filed an action in thététhStates District Court for the Southern DigtaENew York claiming that
CBOE's Hybrid trading system infringes ISE's U.&teat No. 6,618,707 ("the '707 patent”). On Jan@4ar2007, CBOE filed an action in
federal court in the Northern District of lllinogeeking a declaratory judgment that the '707 patastnot infringed, not valid and/or not
enforceable against CBOE. The New York case wasfeared to the Northern District of Illinois on dust 9, 2007.

The Court issued a construction of the claims ef 7 patent, on the basis of which CBOE has #leispositive motion for
noninfringement. On March 2, 2011, the Court grd@BOE's summary judgment motion and entered judgingavor of CBOE. ISE has
appealed this decision, and oral argument was Hesfodte the Federal Circuit on February 6, 20120€EBs now awaiting a decision from 1
court.

On October 8, 2010, C2 filed a complaint in fedexlrt in the Northern District of lllinois againSE seeking a declaratory judgment
that ISE's '707 patent, which is directed towardaatomated exchange for trading derivative sdesrits not infringed, not valid and not
enforceable against C2. The action was dismissttbuit prejudice pending the outcome of the ISEBOE appeal discussed above.

Realtime

In July 2009, Realtime Data, LLC filed a complamthe United States District Court for the East@istrict of Texas claiming that
CBOE, certain other exchanges and OPRA infringed Realtime patents by using, selling or offeringgale data compression products or
services allegedly covered by those patents.

Additionally, on May 11, 2010, Realtime filed a cplaint in the same federal court against CBOE, ORIRé certain other exchanges



claiming that they infringe another Realtime patanusing, selling or offering for sale data congsien and decompression products or
services allegedly covered by that patent. On Aufjés2010, Realtime filed a complaint in federal
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court against CBOE, OPRA and certain other excheaatieging that they infringe an additional Readtipatent by making, using, selling,
and/or offering for sale, one or more financialadedmpression and decompression products andiocegrllegedly covered by that patent.
These lawsuits have been consolidated with the pgading case.

The case has been transfered to the SoutherndDistiNew York and a trial date has been set fovéyaber 2012.

Last Atlantis Litigation

On November 7, 2005, a complaint was filed by ¢entaarket participants against CBOE, three othéioap exchanges and 35 market
maker defendant groups (the "Specialist Defendaimtghe United States District Court for the Nanth District of Illinois. The complaint
alleged that CBOE and the other exchange defendfatsed the Specialist Defendants to discrimireagainst the plaintiffs' electronic orde
allowed the Specialist Defendants to violate CBGtltes and the rules of the SEC, and falsely remtesl and guaranteed that electronically
entered orders would be executed immediately. #igisought unspecified compensatory damagesteetliajunctive relief, attorneys' fees
and other fees and costs.

The Court has dismissed the claims against CBOEeatated judgment in favor of it. The Court, howeveas continued the litigation
with respect to certain of the plaintiffs and sonfi¢ghe Specialist Defendants. The plaintiffs wil &ble to appeal the dismissal of their claims
against CBOE after the disposal of the remainiagcs.

Other

As a self-regulatory organization under the judidn of the SEC, with respect to CBOE and C2, and designated contract market
under the jurisdiction of the CFTC, with respecC6E, we are subject to routine reviews and inspestby the SEC and the CFTC.

The SEC is investigating CBOE's compliance wittolttigations as a self-regulatory organization uritle federal securities laws. The
Company is cooperating with the investigation, vahi& ongoing, and is conducting its own reviewtsfdompliance.

We are also currently a partyvarious other legal proceedings including thoseaaly mentioned. Management does not believe th
outcome of any of these reviews, inspections ocerdtgal proceedings will have a material impacbanconsolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

Leases and Other Obligations

The Company leases facilities with lease terms meimg@from 8 months to 68 months as of Decembe2B11 . Total rent expense
related to these lease obligations, reflected ta geocessing and facilities costs line items @nGlonsolidated Statements of Income, for the
years endeDecember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, were $3.2 miJl8.2 million and $3.4 millionrespectively. In addition, the Company
contractual obligations related to certain advierigprograms and licensing agreements with varicessors. The licensing agreements
contain annual minimum fee requirements that t%18.3 million for the next five years and $1.5 ioifl for the five years thereafter. Future
minimum payments under these non-cancelable leabadvertising agreements are as follows at DeceB8he2011 (in thousands):

Operating Advertising

Year Leases Obligations Total

2012 $ 2,70: % 1,452 $ 4,15¢
2013 1,62: — 1,62
2014 31€ — 31€
2015 11C — 11C
2016 112 — 112
Total $ 4,86 $ 145: $ 6,317

15. COMMON STOCK

The following provides a description of the comnsbdock activity in stockholders' equity during theays ended December 31, 2@t



2010:

Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock
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On April 26, 2010, the Company filed Amendment Mdo the Form 3t Registration Statement with the SEC setting farehdetails o
its restructuring transaction. A special meetinghefvoting Members of CBOE was held on May 21,®@t which the adoption of an
Agreement and Plan of Merger was approved by theredtive vote of 89.6% of the memberships outstag@nd entitled to vote at the
special meeting. The Agreement and Plan of Mergariged for the restructuring of CBOE pursuant tuieh it converted from a non-stock
corporation owned by its Members into a stock coapon that is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOEIléings. In the restructuring
transaction, each Exchange Seat owned by a CBOEbleom June 18, 2010, the date of the restructdramgsaction, converted into 80,000
shares of Class A common stock of CBOE Holdingshaxge Seat owners received a total of 74,400 0@@s of Class A common stock of
CBOE Holdings in the restructuring transaction.

Immediately following the restructuring transacticertain persons who satisfied the qualificatieguirements set forth in the
Settlement Agreement received a total of 16,333s30es of Class B common stock of CBOE Holdings.

Unrestricted Common Stock

On June 18, 2010, the Company converted 1,698 )J#@@s of Class A common stock and 387 ,3ddres of Class B common stock i
2,085,744 shares of unrestricted common stockmmection with the sale of such shares by the gedlinckholders in the Company's initial
public offering.

The initial public offering of 13,455,000 sharesusifrestricted common stock, including 2,085,744 ehaf unrestricted common stock
sold by the selling stockholders, for a price 09 $® per share, was completed on June 18, 2010.

Class A-1 and Class A-2 Common Stock

Upon consummation of the initial public offeringetClass A and Class B common stock not conventiedlinrestricted common stock
and sold in the offering automatically convertetbin4,323,803 shares of Class A-1 common stockddrgl 3,803 shares of Class A-2
common stock.

Tender offers

On November 29, 2010, the Company completed twewwent tender offers for 5,983,713 shares of CAa§scommon stock and
5,983,713 shares of Class A-2 common stock at ehpse price of $25.00 per share. The purpose déttaer offers was to allow our
Class A-1 and A-2 stockholders to obtain liquidity a certain portion of their shares. The net peats received from our initial public
offering were used to purchase the shares of Glassand A-2 common stock in the tender offers. gpent to the closing of the tender
offers and automatic conversion of Class A-1 comsstock 31,723 shares of unrestricted common stodkl&,746 shares of A-2 common
stock were purchased by the Company due to claa@jaktments.

Conversion into unrestricted common stock

The Class A-1 and Class 2eommon stock had all the same rights and priggess the unrestricted common stock; however ey
subject to certain transfer restrictions that aaplintil December 15, 2010 and June 13, 2011, c&sphy.

On December 15, 2010, and June 13, 2011, resplyctaaeh share of Class A-1 and Class A-2 commacksssued and outstanding,
totaling 38,340,090 and 38,297,994 , respectivapyerted into one share of unrestricted commockstotaling 76,638,084 shares.

Unrestricted common stock purchases

On August 2, 2011, the Company announced thab#sdoof directors approved a share repurchase gmograt authorizes the
Company to purchase up to $100.0 million of itsastricted common stock. Through the period endezebéer 31, 2011 , the Company
purchased 1,836,000 shares of unrestricted cominch at an average cost per share of $25.59 tgt&47.0 million in purchases under the
program.

In 2011, the Company purchased 176,337 sharesre$tiicted common stock at an average cost pee li&24.61 totaling $4.3
million to satisfy employees' tax obligations ugba vesting of restricted stock.



16. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock-based compensation is based on the fair wditiee award on the date of grant, which is recxephover the related service
period, net of estimated forfeitures. The serviedqa is the period over which the related seridggerformed,
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which is generally the same as the vesting period.

On January 13, 2010, the board approved the AmeadgdRestated CBOE Holdings, Inc. Long Term IneenBlan (the "LTIP"). The
board amended and restated the LTIP, effective upogiving stockholder approval, which was receiaethe May 17, 2011 annual meeting
of stockholders. The LTIP provides that an aggeght4,248,497 shares of the Company's common steckeserved for issuance to
participants under the LTIP.

The Compensation Committee of the Company's bdadiectors administers the LTIP and may desigaate of the following as a
participant under the LTIP: any officer or otherpayee of the Company or its affiliates or individsl engaged to become an officer or
employee and non-employee directors of the CompHEmg.LTIP permits the granting of non-qualifiedadt@ptions, restricted stock,
restricted stock units, incentive compensation d&/ar any combination of the foregoing. The Comp&ors Committee has the authority ¢
complete discretion to prescribe, amend and resciled and regulations relating to the LTIP, sepasticipants and to determine the form
terms of any awards.

There were no non-qualified stock options or rettd stock units granted during the year ended mbee 31, 2011. On June 15, 2010,
the Company granted 2,217,911 shares of restratteak to certain officers, directors and employeeSBOE Holdings at a fair value of
$29.00 per share, which is equal to the initiallpubifering share price. The shares granted hafeeiayear vesting schedule in which 2%
the shares granted vest each year on the anniyaftre grant date. Vesting accelerates upon ticaroence of a change in control of CBOE
Holdings. Unvested portions of the restricted stgdats will be forfeited if the participant termates employment prior to the applicable
vesting date, except in limited circumstances.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 201Cdimpany recognized $12.6 million and $20.8 millijoaspectively, of stock-
based compensation related to restricted stock010, the Company recorded $13.0 million to recogiie remaining fair value of stock-
based compensation awards granted to Messrs. BradskDuFour, as well as Edward J. Joyce, our fofPnesident and Chief Operating
Officer, due to provisions contained in their restpe agreements regarding employment. The Complsnyaccelerated stock-based
compensation for three members of the board ottire that left the board in May 2011 based ord#étermination by the board of directors
on December 15, 2010, to decrease its size by thireetors. The expense related to acceleratett-ft@sed compensation is included in
employee costs in the consolidated statementscofie.

The activity in the Company's restricted stocktfer year ended December 31, 2011 was as follows:

Number of Shares Weighted Average
of Restricted Grant-Date Fair
Stock Value
Unvested restricted stock at January 1, 2011 1,712,780 $ 29.0(
Granted — —
Vested (443,967 29.0(
Forfeited (16,579 29.0C
Unvested restricted stock at December 31, 2011 1,252,23°  $ 29.0C

As of December 31, 2011 , the Company had unrezedrstock-based compensation expense of $29.@mililated to outstanding
restricted stock. The remaining unrecognized stzded compensation is expected to be recognizedstraight-line basis over a remaining
service period of 2.5 years, based on a June(lf) @ward date. The Company is projecting a farfeitate of 5% . The total fair value of
shares vested during the year ended December 31,28 $10.7 million .

17. NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

The unvested share-based payment awards that comtaiforfeitable rights to dividends or dividerglésalents, whether paid or
unpaid, are participating securities and shallnoduded in the computation of net income per comsitare pursuant to the two-class method.
Our restricted stock awards granted to officeneaors and employees on June 15, 2010 qualifpgiipating securities.

The Company computes net income per common sharg e two-class method, which is an allocatiomfola that determines the
net income for common shares and participatingri¢esi Under the authoritative guidance the prestéon of basic and diluted earnings per



share is required for each class of common stodknai for participating securities. As such, therany will present basic and dilut
net income per share for its one class of commuorkst
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The computation of basic net income allocated taroon stockholders is calculated by reducing nedrime for the period by dividends
paid or declared and undistributed net incomekergeriod that are allocated to the participaticusities to arrive at net income allocated to
common stockholders. Net income allocated to comstockholders is divided by the weighted averagaber of common shares
outstanding during the period.

The dilutive effect of participating securitiesclculated using the more dilutive of the treasatock or the two-class method. Diluted
net income per common share is calculated by digidiet income allocated to common stockholdersbystim of the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding plus all additicommon shares that would have been outstaiifdimg potentially dilutive common
shares had been issued.

The weighted average number of common shares adtstafor both basic and dilutive for the first asetond quarters of the year
ended December 31, 2010 and the year ended Dec&hh2009 were calculated as if the restructuniaggdaction was consummated at the
beginning of the period.

The following table reconciles net income applieatadl common stockholders and the number of shaes to calculate the basic and
diluted net income per common share for the forydwrs ended December 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009:

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2011 2010 2009
Basic EPS Numerator:
Net Income $ 139,40t $ 99,39¢ $ 106,45:
Less: Earnings allocated to participating seciwitie (2,829 (1,230 —
Net Income allocated to common stockholders $ 136,58: $ 98,16¢ $ 106,45:
Basic EPS Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding 89,99 95,754 90,73:
Basic net income per common share $ 152 $ 1.0 $ 1.17
Diluted EPS Numerator:
Net Income $ 139,40t $ 99,39¢ $ 106,45:
Less: Earnings allocated to participating secuwitie (2,829 (1,230 —
Net Income allocated to common stockholders $ 136,58: $ 98,16¢ $ 106,45:
Diluted EPS Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding 89,99/ 95,754 90,73:

Dilutive common shares issued under restricteckgpoogram — — —

Diluted net income per common share $ 152 $ 1.0 $ 1.17

For the year ended December 31, 2011 , 1,252,Ph3%es of restricted stock were not included incbmputation of diluted net income
per common share because to do so would have w@il@ite effect.

18. QUARTERLY DATA (unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth

Year ended December 31, 2011 (in thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

Operating revenues $ 124,04: $ 120,29( $ 143,60: $ 120,20¢ $ 508,14-
Operating expenses 66,507 63,83¢ 68,63¢ 67,52¢ 266,51.
Operating income 57,53¢ 56,45: 74,96¢ 52,67¢ 241,63:
Net income $ 32,87 $ 33,40 $ 41,327 $ 31,807 $ 139,40¢
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 32,08¢ $ 32,60¢ $ 40,597 $ 31,287 $ 136,58:

Diluted—net income per share to common
stockholders $ 03¢ $ 03¢ $ 04t $ 0.3 $ 1.52
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First Second Third Fourth

Year ended December 31, 2010 (in thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Operating revenues $ 101,08: $ 112,61¢ $ 106,01* $ 117,39C $ 437,10
Operating expenses 62,352 70,79: 71,08 65,531 269,76:
Operating income 38,72¢ 41,82¢ 34,93 51,85:¢ 167,34:
Net income $ 22,67¢ % 24,89 $ 20,45: % 31,37¢  $ 99,39¢
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 22,67¢ $ 24,80¢ $ 20,000 $ 30,68 $ 98,16¢
Diluted—net income per share to common

stockholders $ 02t $ 027 $ 02C $ 031 % 1.0c

In the first quarter of 2011, the Company reedlits investment in NSX Holdings, Inc. as a restiin other-than-temporary
impairment. The investment is classified as Levat3he fair value was based on both observableiaolservable inputs,
resulting in a full impairment totaling $0.5 milliq which represented the carrying value of thestment.

In the first and second quarter of 2011, the Gany recognized $0.5 million of accelerated stoakdal compensation for three
members of the board of directors that left therbaa May 2011 based on the determination by therdbof directors on
December 15, 2010 to decrease its size by threetdns.

In the third quarter of 2011, the Company re¢oegh $4.2 million of income tax expense to resdéorgotential additional tax
liabilities as a result of an advisory opinion frédiew York state taxing authorities which attempieéxtend the state's taxing
power over certain electronic transactions andrdés of out-of-state exchanges going back to 2007

In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company redped $3.7 millionof expense due to the departure of a senior execptirsuar
to his employment agreement with the Company.

For the first and second quarters of 2010, thgkted average number of common shares is cadcliget if the restructuring
transaction were consummated at the beginningasf esspective period.

In the third and fourth quarter of 2010, the Qamy recognized as operating expenses $11.0 mdhain$2.0 million ,
respectively, of accelerated stock-based compeamstii certain executives due to provisions corgdiim their agreements
regarding employment.

In the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company retped as operating revenue $4.4 millwiprior period fees incorrectly coded
a CBOE participant. The coding error was identitiedugh a regulatory examination.

In the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company retped as total other income/(expense) an impairmerdur investment in
OneChicago of $1.6 million .

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 7, 2012, the Company's board of direateclared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.12tscper share. The dividend is
payable on March 23, 2012 to stockholders of reepttie close of business on March 2, 2012.
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcégnting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(&) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procechs

In accordance with Rule 13a-15(b) of the Securlieshange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), the @any's management, with the
participation of the Company's Chairman of the Blaand Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vicedtdent and Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and tiperaf the Company's disclosure controls and pilaoes (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or
15d-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Act) &3eakember 31, 2011 . Based upon their evaluatighesfe disclosure controls and
procedures, the Chairman of the Board and Chietlitkee Officer and the Executive Vice President &hief Financial Officer concluded
that the disclosure controls and procedures wéeetafe at a reasonable assurance level as of DeseBdi, 2011 to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in therntspbat it files or submits is recorded, processadhmarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC rules and forms, anehsure that information required to be discldsethe Company in the reports that it files
or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulatédcammunicated to the Company's management, imguth principal executive and
financial officers, as appropriate, to allow timelkgcisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) Management's Annual Report on Internal Controver Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financiglaing. Our internal control
system has been designed to provide reasonableassuo management and the board of directorsdiggthe preparation and fair
presentation of published financial statements.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cetapaternal control over financial reporting asD#cember 31, 2011 .
Management based its assessment on criteria fectisgfé internal control over financial reportingsdgbed in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission. Managemasgessment included
evaluating the design of our internal control ofieancial reporting and testing the operationagéefiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting. The results of its assessmare reviewed with the audit committee of the baardirectors.

Based on this assessment, management believeadtaftDecember 31, 2011 , our internal controf dwencial reporting is effective.

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of December 31, 2011 has beditealiby Deloitte & Touche LLP,
an independent registered public accounting fisrstated in their report on page 56.

Changes in internal control over financial repogin

There were no changes in the Company's internataasver financial reporting that occurred durihg three months ended
December 31, 2011 that have materially affectedrereasonably likely to materially affect, outreimal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govere

Information relating to our executive officersikiuded on pag es 18-19 of this Annual Report amFD0-K. Information relating to
our directors, including our audit committee andiaaommittee financial experts and the procedbsewhich stockholders can recommend
director nominees, and our executive officers bdlin our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2012nal Meeting of Shareholders to be t
on June 14, 2012, which will be filed within 120ydaf the end of our fiscal year ended DecembeRB1]1 (2012 Proxy Statement) and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsgtrat applies to our Chief Executive Officer, &l#inancial Officer and
principal accounting officer, as well as all otleenployees and directors. Our Code of Business Gurahd Ethics is available on our website
at http://ir.cboe.com/governance.cfm. We will aisovide a copy of the Code of Business Conductkthits to stockholders at no charge
upon written request.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

Information relating to our executive officer anidedgtor compensation and the compensation comnufteer board of directors will k
in the 2012 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedihday reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners amianagement and Related Stockholder Matters

Information relating to security ownership of cartheneficial owners of our common stock and infation relating to the security
ownership of our management will be in the 2012 i®tatement and is incorporated herein by referenc

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, adatector Independence

Information regarding certain relationships andtexd transactions and director independence with ltiee 2012 Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information regarding principal accountant fees asaices will be in the 2012 Proxy Statement andgéorporated herein by referen
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ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
@) Documents filed as part of this rep

(1) Financial Statements

Our consolidated financial statements and theadletports of management and out independent eegispublic accounting firm
which are required to be filed as part of this répoe included in this Annual Report on Form 1®dginning at page 54. These consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

+ Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December031,ghd 201

» Consolidated Statements of Income for the yeaded December 31, 2012010 and 20(

* Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Indomie years ended December 31, 202010 and 20(

» Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for tla@syended December 31, 2012010 and 20(

» Consolidated Statements of Stockholders/Memliieygity for the years ended December 31, 204010 and 20(
* Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The Company has not included any financial statérsemedules because they are not applicable oethered information is included
in the consolidated financial statements or ndtesgeto.

(3) List of Exhibits

See (b) Exhibits below
(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatib8®OE Holdings, Inc., incorporated by referencétmex C to
Amendment No. 7 to the Company's Registration 8tatt on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on ihp6, 2010.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of CBOE Holdings, incgrporated by reference to Annex D to Amendnimt7 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 {dle333-140574) filed on April 26, 2010.

10.1 Restated License Agreement, dated November 1, 189dnd between Standard & Poor's Financial Ses\it€ (as successor-
in-interest to Standard & Poor's, a division of Ma@-Hill, Inc.) and the Chicago Board Options Eacbe, Incorporated (the
"S&P License Agreement"), incorporated by referetoacExhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 6 to the CompsaiRegistration
Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filadMpril 12, 2010.+

10.z  Amendment No. 1 to the S&P License Agreement, dadediary 15, 1995, incorporated by reference toldixt0.2 to
Amendment No. 6 to the Company's Registration Statt on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on ihp2, 2010.+

10.2  Amendment No. 2 to the S&P License Agreement, dagd 1, 1998, incorporated by reference to Exhitf).3 to Amendment
No. 6 to the Company's Registration Statement amF-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 12, ZD%
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Exhibit

No. Description of Exhibit

10.4 Amendment No. 3 to the S&P License Agreement, daitdyl28, 2000, incorporated by reference to Extibi4 to Amendment
No. 6 to the Company's Registration Statement amF-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 12, ZD%

10.E  Amendment No. 4 to the S&P License Agreement, d&etdber 27, 2000, incorporated by reference taltixh0.5 to
Amendment No. 6 to the Company's Registration 8tate on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on inp2, 2010.+

10.6  Amendment No. 5 to the S&P License Agreement, distaecth 1, 2003, incorporated by reference to ExHiBi6 to Amendmer
No. 6 to the Company's Registration Statement amF-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 12, ZD%

10.7 Amended and Restated Amendment No. 6 to the S&enksie Agreement, dated February 24, 2009, incogubiat reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to Amendment No. 6 to the Company'giReation Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-1740)5iled on April 12,
2010.+

10.¢ Amended and Restated Amendment No. 7 to the S&enksie Agreement, dated February 24, 2009, incogubiat reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to Amendment No. 6 to the Company'giReation Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140)5iled on April 12,
2010.+

10.¢  Amendment No. 8 to the S&P License Agreement, dadediary 9, 2005, incorporated by reference toliixh0.9 to
Amendment No. 6 to the Company's Registration Statt on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on ihp2, 2010.+

10.1C Amendment No. 10 to the S&P License Agreement,ddaitme 19, 2009, incorporated by reference to Exhib10 to
Amendment No. 6 to the Registration Statement amF®-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 12, ZD%

10.11 Amendment No. 11 to the Restated License Agreemetetd as of April 29, 2010, by and between Stah&aPoor's Financial
Services LLC and the Chicago Board Options Exchamgerporated, incorporated by reference to ExHibito the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-34774gdilon May 11, 2010.+

10.1z Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated ExeziRetirement Plan, incorporated by referencexoilit 10.13 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Registration 8tate on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on Asigl4, 2009.*

10.12 Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated Supghtal Retirement Plan, incorporated by refereadexhibit 10.14 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Registration Statt on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on Asigl4, 2009.*

10.1¢ Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated Defe@ompensation Plan for Officers, incorporateddfgrence to
Exhibit 10.15 to Amendment No. 4 to the CompanyggiBtration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 3335I4)) filed on
August 14, 2009.*

10.1¢  Amendment No. 1 to the Chicago Board Option Exckeahgcorporated Supplemental Retirement Plan, paated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Quartedport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septerd®, 2010 (File
No. 001-34774) filed on November 12, 2010.*

10.1¢ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, efiee@iacember 31, 2009, by and between the ChicagaiEgations
Exchange, Incorporated and William J. Brodsky, impooated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Amendnimt5 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 ({fdle333-140574) filed on March 11, 2010.*

10.17 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, efie€@izcember 31, 2009, by and between the ChicagaiEations
Exchange, Incorporated and Edward J. Joyce, incatpad by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Amendment Bto the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 3335I4) filed on March 11, 2010.*

10.1¢  Amendment No. 1 to the Company's Employment Agregmwéih Edward J. Joyce, effective August 1, 20h0prporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Quartedport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Sepeerd®, 2010 (File
No. 001-34774) filed on November 12, 2010.*

10.1¢ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, efie€@izscember 31, 2009, by and between the ChicagaiEations
Exchange, Incorporated and Edward T. Tilly, incogbed by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Amendment BNto the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 3385%4}) filed on March 11, 2010.*

10.2C Amended and Restated CBOE Holdings, Inc. Long-Tiecantive Plan, incorporated by reference to ExHibi20 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Registration Statt on Form S-1 (File No. 333-165393) filed oneldd, 2010.*

10.21 Amended and Restated License Agreement, datedrSepte?9, 2006, by and between Dow Jones & Comganyand the

Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated, pa@ted by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Amendnimt6 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 ({dle333-140574) filed on April 12, 2010.
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
10.2z Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (for Exe@iOfficers), incorporated by reference to Exhitf).1 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endadch 31, 2010 (File No. 001-34774) filed on Jiiie 2010.*
10.2: Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (for Nanpéoyee Directors), incorporated by reference thikix 10.2 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for theriguanded March 31, 2010 (File No. 001-34774fim June 11, 2010.*
10.2¢ CBOE Holdings, Inc. Executive Severance Plan, ipomated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Comfsa@yrrent Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-34774) filed on October 61D.*
10.2¢  Form of Director Indemnification Agreement, incoragted by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa@ysent Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-34774) filed on December 2010.
10.2¢ Amended and Restated CBOE Holdings, Inc. Long-Teigantive Plan, incorporated by reference to ExHibil to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. B~74), filed on May 18, 2011. *
10.27 Amendment No. 1, dated August 22, 2011, to the Adedrand Restated License Agreement, dated Sept&9p2006, by and
between CME Group Index Services LLC (as succeissmterest to Dow Jones & Company, Inc.) and tic&go Board
Options Exchange, Incorporated, incorporated bgregfce to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quartedpdrt on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2011 (File No.330%4) filed on November 9, 2011.+
21.1 Subsidiaries of CBOE Holdings, Inc. (filed herewyith
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Account Firmadfilerewith)
24.1 Powers of Attorney (filed herewith)
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14 (filed herewith).
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14 (filed herewith).
32.1 Certificate of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRale 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 ¢ Ti8 of the United States
Code (filed herewith).
32.z Certificate of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRale 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 té T8 of the United States
Code (filed herewith).
101.INSt  XBRL Instance Document (filed herewith)
101.scHt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed ttig).
101.cALt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutn@iled herewith).
101.0EF+ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase (filégtrewith).
101.L.ABT XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documenggfiherewith).
101.PREt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doentiffiled herewith).

tPursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the httve Data files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemsd
filed or part of a registration statement or prasps for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the S&esIAct of
1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purpisesction 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act o
1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subjéabtlity under those sections.

*Indicates Management Compensatory Plan, Contra8tmngement.

+Confidential treatment has been previously regugkst granted to portions of these exhibits bySEE.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this Annual
Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalfi®yundersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CBOE HOLDINGS, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /sl WILLIAM J. BRODSKY

William J. Brodsky
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 28, 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacitieshendates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/s/ WILLIAM J. BRODSKY Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director February 28, 2012
William J. Brodsky

/s/ ALAN J. DEAN Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officeadalreasurer February 28, 2012
Alan J. Dean
/s/ DAVID S. REYNOLDS Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer February 28, 2012

David S. Reynolds

/sl JAMES R. BORIS Director February 28, 2012
James R. Boris

/sl MARK F. DUFFY Director February 28, 2012
Mark F. Duffy
/sl JANET P. FROETSCHER Director February 28, 2012

Janet P. Froetscher

82




Table of Contents

SIGNATURE

/s PAUL KEPES

Paul Kepes

/sl STUART J. KIPNES

Stuart J. Kipnes

/sl DUANE R. KULLBERG

Duane R. Kullberg

/sl BENJAMIN R. LONDERGAN

Benjamin R. Londergan

/s/ R. EDEN MARTIN

R. Eden Martin

/sl RODERICK A. PALMORE

Roderick A. Palmore

/sl SUSAN M. PHILLIPS

Susan M. Phillips

/s/ WILLIAM R. POWER

William R. Power
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SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES OF CBOE HOLDINGS, INC.

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011

Name of Subsidiary

Jurisdiction of Organization

EXHIBIT 21.1

CBOE Futures Exchange, LLC

CBOE, LLC

Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated
Chicago Options Exchange Building Corporation
DerivaTech Corporation

Market Data Express, LLC

The Options Exchange, Incorporated

CBOE Execution Services, LLC

C2 Options Exchange, Incorporated

Delaware
Delaware
laere
eldware
lllinois
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference is Registration Statement No. 333-174344 on FormoSe8ir reports dated February 28,
2012, relating to the financial statements of CBidings, Inc. and subsidiaries and the effectigsraf CBOE Holdings Inc. and

subsidiaries' internal control over financial rejray, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 1@fKCBOE Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries
for the year ended December 31, 2011.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Chicago, lllinois
February 28, 2012



Exhibit 24.1
POWERS OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below hereby constémgsppoints William J.
Brodsky as attorney-in-fact and agent, with fullyeo of substitution and re-substitution, to signhimor her behalf, individually and in any
and all capacities, including the capacities staddw, any and all amendments to this Annual RepoiForm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2011 and to file the same, with diilgis thereto, and other documents in connectienewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting to said attorneyaat-&nd agent, full power and authority to do aedggm each and every act and thing
requisite and necessary to be done in and abopirémises, as fully to all intents and purposelseasr she might or could do in person,
hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attey-in-fact and agent, or his substitute, may l&iyfdio or cause to be done by virtue hereof.



EXHIBIT 31.1
Certification Pursuant To
Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 39

[, William J. Brodsky, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 1fdikthe year ended December 31, 201 CBOE Holdings, Inc. (the "registrant

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedure (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedaortee designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati$slosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in theggnt's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regiss fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer arftblve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@nispersons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a si@gniifiole in the
registrant's internal controls over financial rejpay.
Date: February 28, 2012

/s/ WILLIAM J. BRODSKY
Name: William J. Brodsky
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
Certification Pursuant To
Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 39

I, Alan J. Dean, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 1fdikthe year ended December 31, 201 CBOE Holdings, Inc. (the "registrant

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedure (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedaortee designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati$slosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regiss fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer arftlve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@nispersons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a si@gniifiole in the
registrant's internal controls over financial rejay.
Date: February 28, 2012

/sl ALAN J. DEAN

Name: Alan J. Dean
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

Written Statement of the Chairman and Chief Executve Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted puesit to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Solely for the purposes of complying wihl.S.C. Section 1350, I, the undersigned Chairafahe Board and Chief Executive Officer
of CBOE Holdings, Inc. (the "Company"), hereby ifgrtbased on my knowledge, that the Annual ReparForm 10-K of the Company for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 (the "Rg§daily complies with the requirements of Sectib8(a) of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 and that information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, thaficial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/sl WILLIAM J. BRODSKY
William J. Brodsky
February 28, 2012




EXHIBIT 32.2

Written Statement of the Executive Vice Presidentad Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted puest to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Solely for the purposes of complying wihW.S.C. Section 1350, I, the undersigned Execitiece President and Chief Financial
Officer of CBOE Holdings, Inc. (the "Company"), béy certify, based on my knowledge, that the Anfieghort on Form 10-K of the
Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20iE1"Report") fully complies with the requiremsmtf Section 13(a) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contaiimethe Report fairly presents, in all materialpests, the financial condition and result
operations of the Company.

/s/ ALAN J. DEAN
Alan J. Dean
February 28, 2012




